
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

DECEMBER 1, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

                                                                  

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION: Pastor Johnny Hunt of Celebration Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes November 17, 2014 ............................................. 1 

 

PRESENTATION:     Certificate of Recognition to Battalion Chief Kenny Hanak .................................. 9 

 

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry  

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

   Review minutes / November 12, 2014  .......................................................................................... 10 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune  

   

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones      

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway   

C. Industrial Development Board – Davis      

 Review minutes / November 24, 2014 ........................................................................................... 15 

D. Library Board - Lake  

E. Planning Commission – Scott     

a. Review minutes / October 30, 2014 .............................................................................17 

b. Staff report / November 20
th

 meeting ..........................................................................25 

F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

G. Utility Board – Fry 

 

6. Mayor’s Report         

Donation of Real and Personal Property  

 

7. City Attorney’s Report 

 

8. Department Heads Comments 

 

9. City Clerk’s Report 

a) ABC License: Top of the Bay / 010 Lounge Retail Liquor – Class I ........................................... 27 

b) MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with 

EnCompass360 for the management of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA NOVEMBER 17, 2014 Page 2 of 2 

Grant for the City of Daphne ......................................................................................................... 33 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

a) Resolution 2014-57: Declaring Certain Property Surplus: 1998 Ford F-150 ............................... 42 

 

b) Resolution 2014-58: Supporting the Alabama Department of Transportation to 

Conduct a Signal Warrant Study at the Intersection of Bellaton Avenue, Austin 

 Road and State Route 181 .............................................................................................................. 43 

 

c) Resolution 2014-59: Donation of Real Property to City of Daphne ............................................. 44 

 

d) Resolution 2014-60: Donation of Real and Personal Property to City of Daphne ....................... 46 

 

ORDINANCES:  

 

2
ND

  READ 

 
a) Ordinance 2014-53: Appropriating Funds: Part-Time Events Assistant 

OR Additional Overtime and Temporary Services ........................................................................ 48 

 

b) Ordinance 2014-54: To Contribute to the Twenty Percent (20%) Local 

Match Requirement Funding a Traffic Signal System Technology 

Enhancements Study for Corridors Servicing the Eastern Shore ................................................... 49 

 

c) Ordinance 2014-55: Recreational Trails Program Project: Village Point 

Park Preserve Boardwalk/Trails Extension / Project #14-RT-54-08 ............................................. 51 

 

d) Ordinance 2014-56: Appropriation of Funds: Appraisal, Survey and 

Associated Fees For Marino Property Located Near D’Olive Creek............................................. 52 

 

e) Ordinance 2014-57: Repeal Ordinance 2011-08 and Establishing Rules, 

Regulation, Rates and A Lease Agreement for the Rental of the  Daphne 

Civic Center ................................................................................................................................... 53 

 

f) Ordinance 2014-58: Repeal Ordinance 2011-09 and Establishing Rules, 

Regulation, Rates and A Lease Agreement for the Rental of the  Bayfront 

Pavilion  ......................................................................................................................................... 91 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Jonathan Spuler with Bay Community Church gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk;  Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; David 

Carpenter, Police Chief;. James White, Fire Chief; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Account/Treasurer; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee and DRA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, BZA; Heiko Einfeld, ES 

Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Absent: Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge.  

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

November 3, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes 

There were no corrections to the November 3, 2014 council meeting minutes and the minutes stand 

approved as written. 

 

November 10, 2014 Council Work Session Minutes 

There were no corrections to the November 10, 2014 council work session minutes and the minutes 

stand approved as written. 

 

 

PRESENTATION:   Mrs. Ruth Seawell / Daphne Strike Club 

Mrs. Seawell gave a presentation with slides on how large participation in soccer and lacrosse is in the 

City of Daphne, and how important it is to create new fields for these sports with the new recreation 

facilities.  

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The November 10
th

 minutes are in the packet.  

 

Treasurer’s Report / October 2014 

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,200,469                  

 Decrease from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $(393,084)      

 

1



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 

4.2 months compared to the previous year - 4.3  months 

 
Sales and Use Tax Collection / September 2014 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $59,330.57  + 5.1 % 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   + 5.5 %  

 

 

Lodging Tax Collections /  September, 2014 

The collections for September 2014 were $71,7910.24 which is up $26,641.89 from September’s 

2013’s collections of $45,148.35.  

 YTD Variance over Budget $247,597 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  + 37.1  % 

 

 

Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, October 30, 2014 (draft/Unreconciled) 

The unreserved balance for Bayfront property related expenditures is $1,921,723 an increase of 

$9,978 from the previous month’s balance. Reserve for Recreation total is $269,998 an increase 

of $35,895 from the previous month’s balance. 

 

Councilman Lake made a statement disagreeing with the process of appointing the new chairman of 

the Finance Committee.  He said they did not follow the Council Rules of Procedure so he resigned 

from the Finance Committee. 

 

Councilman Scott said that they will review the Council Rules of Procedure at the next Ordinance 

Committee meeting. 

 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The November 3

rd
 minutes are in the packet, and the next meeting will be December 1

st
. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

No report.  The next meeting will be December 10
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

No report. The next meeting will be December 10
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the next meeting will be December 15
th

.  

The Lake Forest road improvements are moving quickly, and will be complete before 

Christmas. 

 

 

2



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report.   

 

B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be December 3
rd

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be November 24
th

 at 6:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room.   

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

The board met November 13
th

, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will be 

January 8, 2015.  

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The October 23
rd

 meeting minutes and the staff report for the October 30
th

 meeting are in the packet.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set Public Hearing dates for December 15, 2014 and approve 

advertising to consider: 

 

1. Pre-zoning:   George Kalasountas 

       Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

       Present Zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

       Requested Zoning:  B-2, General Business / R-7(T), Townhouse / R-1, Low Density Single 

                              Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

       Recommendation:  A unanimous favorable recommendation for appropriate zoning as 

determined by City Council 

 

2. Annexation:   George Kalasountas 

      Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 Renaissance Boulevard 

      Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable  

 

3. Annexation:   Provision Investment, LLC 

       Property Located:  West of the Estates of Tiawasee Subdivision and Southeast of the 

         Intersection of Park Drive and Pollard Road 

       Present Zoning:  RSF-2, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

       Requested Zoning:  R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential, District, City of Daphne 

       Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Seconded b y 

 

3



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

     

 F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report.  The deadline for letters of intent is Friday. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

No report.  The next November meeting will be December 3
rd

.  

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 A.  Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Haygood mentioned that the Daphne Museum received a $2,000 grant.  He also updated council 

on three parcels of donated property on Park Drive which was collectively appraised at $100,000.  This 

property was donated with no strings attached, but the closing has to be by the end of the year.  There 

are two other real properties and three personal properties, which are sculptures, being donated by an 

anonymous donor.  This also needs to be done by the end of the year.  There were excess funds from the 

Park Drive appraisal that can be used for this appraisal, but Mayor Haygood wants to make sure that 

council wants to move ahead with the acceptance of this donation of real property and personal property.  

He said that one parcel that is to be donated has already been submitted to be subdivided so it has to go 

before the Planning Commission first to be subdivided before it can be conveyed. These donations will 

be on the December 1
st
 agenda. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to use the remainder of the previously allocated funds for the 

Park Drive property appraisal and closing costs, $4,500, for the appraisal and closing costs of the 

anonymously donated real property and personal propert on U.S. Highway 98 and  U.S. Highway 

98 and Santa Rosa. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell   Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye    Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye    Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported on the different sports and tournaments going on at 

Trione Sports Complex.   

 

Adrienne Jones – Planning Director -  reported that the Planning Commission meets Thursday, and the 

maps are on the wall for the Public Hearings, and two project that will be considered. 

 

  

4



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

     D.   City Clerk’s Report  
   a.)   ABC License / Main Street Cigar Lounge / 040 – Retail Beer (On or Off Premises)  /  060 –        

           Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises)  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the ABC License for Main Street Cigar Lounge / 040 

– Retail Beer (On or Off Premises / 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises). Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

     

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Lawrence Rozolski – 102 Vega Circle – spoke regarding the April storms that took out his fencing 

at a cost of $4,000.  He said that Public Works breaking up all the concrete there created a cloud of dust 

over the whole circle which can cause health problems. 

 
A representative of the Lower Alabama Lacrosse – mentioned that they could not play at Trione this year 

because of a lack of fields.  He encouraged the expansion of soccer fields. 
 

Mrs. Earlene Harris – spoke regarding sports, and the girls besting the boys.  She asked what they can 

do to help to enhance the city’s sports facilities. 

 

Mrs. Mary Gibbs – 155 Bayview Drive – spoke regarding run-off and flooding from the Lake Forest 

Lake.  She encouraged council to look into this problem. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Davis left the dais at 7:26 p.m. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
a.)   Acceptance of Streets and Drainage / Located in Brookhaven Subdivision,  

       Unit Two, part B . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-55 

 

b.)   Agreement / Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Association, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-56 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2014-55 and 2014-56.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Davis left the dais at 7:26 p.m.  

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway  NAY    NONE OPPOSED 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 

5



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-55.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Davis was not on the dais for the vote. 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway  NAY    NONE OPPOSED 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-56.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Davis was not on the dais for the vote. 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Appropriating Funds: Part-Time Events Assistant OR Additional  

        Overtime and Temporary Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-53 

 

b.)   To Contribute to the Twenty Percent (20%) Local Match Requirement 

        Funding a Traffic Signal System Technology Enhancements Study for  

       Corridors Servicing the Eastern Shore. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ../Ordinance 2014-54 

 

c.)   Recreational Trails Program Project: Village Point Park Preserve 

       Boardwalk/Trails Extension / Project #14-RT-54-08. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-55 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds: Appraisal, Survey and Associated Fees 

       For Marino Property Located Near D’Olive Creek. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-56 

 

e.)   Repeal Ordinance 2011-08 and Establishing Rules, Regulation, 

       Rates and A Lease Agreement for the Rental of the  Daphne  

       Civic Center. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-57 

 

f.)   Repeal Ordinance 2011-09 and Establishing Rules, Regulation, 

       Rates and A Lease Agreement for the Rental of the  Bayfront  

       Pavilion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-58 

 

ORDINANCES 2014-53, 2014-54, 2014-55, 2014-56, 2014-57 AND 2014-58 ARE 1
ST

 READ 

6



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

 

NOTE: Councilman Davis returned to the dais at 7:35 p.m. 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Lake wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.  He said that he was leaving tomorrow for the NLC 

conference in Austin, Texas.  He also said that he may not be at the December 1
st
 council meeting due to another 

meeting.  He said that the city was not under OSHA. 

 

Councilman Rudicell wished everyone a safe holiday.  He thanked those that came out to the Veterans Day 

celebration. 

 

Councilman Davis wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

 

Mayor Haygood referenced the discussion a few months back about committees where Councilman 

Rudicell had brought up an idea of eliminating some committees and, potentially, utilizing additional 

work sessions from the council.  There is a high degree of involvement by this council, and maybe this 

will spearhead another opportunity to revisit that suggestion.  He wished Mrs. Gibbs had remained, 

because he knows that Ashley Campbell does a great job of representing the city in making sure that 

they are addressing stormwater issues, and he knows that Richard Johnson deals with his fair share as 

well.  There was another round of National Fish and Wildlife Foundation funding that was announced 

today.  There was not anything that impacts the city directly, but they had a $6.7 million award that will 

be administered by the MNEP that will be affecting primarily the D’Olive Creek watershed.  That is not 

enough money to fund all the fixes, but it is enough to help stop some of the issues at the head waters, 

and there will be some relief on the way in no small part thanks to Ashley and others that have really 

worked hard to protect the City of Daphne, and correct some of the issue that have been happening with 

stormwater.  He will not be attending the NLC because his budget will not allow him to attend any more 

events. He is trying to stay within his budget.  He gave kudos to the Public Works staff that were out in 

the cold weather putting up the Christmas decorations.  Mayor Haygood wished everyone a Happy 

Thanksgiving. 

 

Council President Conaway thanked the ladies of the Daphne Book Club for the invitation to the 

meeting.  She said it was a learning experience to hear all about the Daphne Museum.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



NOVEMBER 17, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

7:45 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk      Council President 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

NOVEMBER 24, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Dennis Kearney, III; Pokey Miller; Doug Bailey; John Cox; 

Jeffrey Ramsland. 

 

ABSENT: Dan Romanchuk. 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilman Joe Davis, Council Liaison; jOHNSON, 

BCEDA;  Mayor Haygood. 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / August 25, 2014 

 

MOTION BY John Cox to approve the August 25, 2014 meeting minutes.  Seconded by Denis Kearney. 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

3.  OLD BUSINESS   

No old business to discuss. 

 

4.   TREASURERS REPORT  

 

MOTION BY John Cox to postpone the Treasurers for October 2014 until the discrepancy is in totals is 

found.  Seconded by Denis Kearney. 

 

                                             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

5.    UPDATE BY MAYOR HAYGOOD ON PROPERTY 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to enter into Executive Session to discuss the purchase of real property.  

Seconded by John Cox. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The board entered into Executive Session at 6:10 p.m. 

 

The board returned from Executive Session at  7:50 p.m. 

 

6.   NEW BUSINESS 

No new business to discuss 

 

7.   NEXT MEETING        

The next meeting will be January 26, 2015 

 

 

15



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

NOVEMBER 24, 2014 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

8.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Jeffrey Ramsland to adjourn.  Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOUNED AT 

 7:51 P.M. 

 

 

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 

 

 Dane Haygood  Richard D. Johnson, PE 

 Mayor Public Works Director  

  

 

Public Works Department 

26435 Public Works Road     P.O. Box 400     Daphne, Alabama 36526 

Phone: (251) 621-3182     Fax: (251) 621-3189 

 

 

 

 

 
Memorandum 

 
 To: Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, President 

 From: Richard D. Johnson, P.E.; Public Works Director  

 CC: Honorable Dane Haygood, Mayor; Chip Martin, EM Coordinator; Rebecca  
  Hayes, City Clerk; File 

 Date: November 25, 2014 

 Re: Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) – Safe Room for Public Works –  
  Authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with EnCompass360 
 
 
Council President Conaway: 

 

The Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) provides grants to states and local governments to 

implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after a major disaster declaration. The purpose of the 

HMGP is to reduce the loss of life and property due to natural disasters and to enable mitigation measures 

to be implemented during the immediate recovery from a disaster. The HMGP is authorized under Section 

404 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act. 

 

Daphne has been selected for Grant Funding for a safe room at Public Works to house the City’s First 

Responders during hurricanes. Currently Public Works First Responders are housed in a non-fortified 

structure during hurricanes.  HMGP Grants are a 75%/25% cost share arrangement. The City’s match of 

25% can be cash and/or in-kind services. The expected cost of the safe room is $300K - $350K. The 

City’s match will be around $75K-$90K and the land and any worked done by Public Works will count 

towards that match. 

 

I am requesting a Motion on the December 1, 2014 agenda authorizing the Mayor to enter into attached 

agreement with EnCompass360 who would manage the HMGP Grant for the City. The cost of Phase 1 - 

Pre-Award HMGP Application Costs is reimbursable and the match will be funded out of Public Works 

Professional Service budgeted monies. EnCompass360 has teamed with the City through DEMA on past 

Emergency Management endeavors and has the expertise to manage the grant project. Once the full grant 

is awarded it will be present Finance and the full Council approval and appropriation.  

 

Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this grant agreement. 

 

Thanks, 

 

RDJ 

 

33



34



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 1 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING AND PROJECT SERVICES  

AGREEMENT 

For  

AEMA/FEMA HMGP Application Development – Phase 1 

City of Daphne Safe Room 

 

(Agreement) 

 

EnCompass360, Inc. will provide professional consulting and application development 

services related to preparing The City of Daphne, Alabama’s HMGP Application for 

Submission, Review and Approval by AEMA and FEMA – Phase 1. 

 

Between 

EnCompass360, Inc. 

And 

City of Daphne, Alabama 

_____________ 

 

This Agreement, effective as of November 24, 2014, is entered into between EnCompass360, 

Inc. (hereinafter called “EC360”), and The City of Daphne, Alabama. (hereinafter called 

“Daphne”), for the purpose of providing AEMA/FEMA HMGP professional consulting and 

application development services related to the submission, review, and approval by AEMA and 

FEMA – Phase 1. 

 

This agreement for professional services does not have a contingency clause and the scope of 

work and activities will be carried out consistent with FEMA laws, regulations, and eligibility 

guidelines.  Therefore, this agreement is not contingent upon the issuance of a Presidential 

declaration or FEMA’s approval or obligation of funds.  

 

EC360 is not employed by FEMA or Alabama Emergency Management Agency (AEMA).  

 

1. EnCompass360 - Phase 1 Tasks 

 

Project Tasks related to professional consulting and HMGP application development services for 

the submission, review, and approval by AEMA and FEMA – Phase 1. 

 

 Professional Consulting and HMGP Application Development  - Phase 1 

 

o Provide multiple safe room solutions, options, and costs to be considered by 

client.   

 

o Prepare initial safe room design drawings and specs for FEMA review. 
 

o Perform Peer Review of Safe Room Design and Specs by Architect  

 
 

35



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 2 

o Determine best location for safe room and the value of land for In-Kind 

contribution. 
 

o Determine any other In-Kind Services and Contributions to project 
 

o Prepare detailed cost estimate for safe room 

 

o Prepare Multiple Maps (Population Totals, FIRM, TOPO, QUAD, Street) 
 

o Prepare Site Photos 
 

o Run Benefit Costs Analysis 
 

o Prepare Environmental and Historical Data and Letter for Approval 
 

o Include County Mitigation Plan and assure clients inclusion in that plan  
 

o Prepare and Include Area Damage, Risk Assessment, and Historical Event Data 
 

o Prepare Maintenance Agreement for Signatures 
 

o Prepare Safe Room Operations Plan and Agreement Signatures  
 

o Input all data into AEMA Automated HMGP application system for client’s 

signature and submission to AEMA and FEMA for review.  

 

 Project and Grant Management Tasks related to the approved AEMA/FEMA HMGP 

project which includes Phase 2 - Detailed Design/Specs, Bidding, Construction, and 

Phase 3 - Project Closeout will be a separate agreement that has to be executed after 

FEMA’s approval to comply with FEMA Contingency clauses and contracts. 

 

2 EC360 Project Fee Payment for Phase 1 

 

Pre-Award HMGP Application Costs 

 

Costs incurred after the HMA application period has opened, but prior to the date of the grant 

award or final approval, are identified as pre-award costs.  For HMGP, the opening of the 

application period is the date when HMGP is authorized from a presidential declaration. 

 

Pre-award costs are directly related to development and submission of the HMGP application 

and are funded through the HMGP Grant. 

 

The pre-award costs must be identified as separate line items in the cost estimate of the 

application.  Applicants may identify pre-award costs as part of their non-Federal cost share. 

 

 

36



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 3 

EnCompass360 Professional Services Fee Pre-Award HMGP Application Development 

Costs 

 

 Pre-Award Application Development Fee includes all tasks identified in Phase 1 (See 

above tasks descriptions) 

 

 Pre-Award Application Development Fee will be included in the Client Application for 

AEMA/FEMA reimbursement 

 

 Pre-Award Application Development Fee will be based on 5% of estimated project costs 
 

 Pre-Award Application Development Fee is not contingent on FEMA approval or 

Obligation of funds. 
 

 Pre-Award Application Development Fee can be paid as a lump sum or as a mutually 

agreed fee schedule. 
 

 Pre-Award Application Development Fee must be paid before FEMA HMGP Grant 

Approval   
 

 Payment(s) shall be made to EnCompass360, Inc., P.O. Box 11275, Birmingham, 

Alabama, 35202 

 

 Delinquent payments shall bear interest at the rate of 18% annually. 

 

3 Proprietary Information 

 

During the term of this Agreement, EC360 and Daphne shall exchange such proprietary 

technical and other information as is reasonably required for each to perform its 

obligations hereunder.  EC360 and Daphne each agree to keep in confidence and prevent 

the disclosure to any person(s) outside their respective organizations or any person(s) 

within their organizations not having a need to know, all information received from the 

other which is designated in writing or by appropriate stamp or legend to be of a 

proprietary nature and to use such information only in connection with their obligations 

under this Agreement provided, however, that neither party shall be liable for disclosure 

or use of such data if the same is: 

 

3.1 In the public domain at the time of disclosure, or is subsequently made available to the 

general public without restriction by the disclosing party; 

 

3.2 Known to the receiving party at the time of disclosure without restrictions on its use or 

independently developed by the receiving party, and there is adequate documentation to 

demonstrate either condition; 

 

3.3 Used or disclosed inadvertently despite the exercise of the same degree of care that each 

party takes to preserve or safeguard its own proprietary information; 

37



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 4 

 

3.4 Used or disclosed with the prior written approval of the disclosing party; 

 

3.5 Furnished by the disclosing party to the Client with “unlimited rights”; 

 

3.6 Disclosed without restriction to the receiving party from a source other than the 

disclosing party; or 

 

3.7 Used or disclosed after a period of three (3) years after the date of receipt; 

 

4. Inventions and Patents 

 

Inventions conceived solely by employees of EC360 shall belong exclusively to EC360. 

Inventions conceived solely by employees of Daphne shall belong exclusively to 

Daphne. Inventions conceived jointly by the parties hereto in the course of work called 

for by this Agreement shall be subject to further agreement of the parties.  This 

understanding is subject to modification as may be required by applicable regulations, or 

the terms of the prime contractor resultant subcontract between the parties.  Except as 

stated in the preceding paragraph, nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed, 

by implication to grant any right or license in respect of any patents, inventions or 

technical information at any time owned by the other party. 

 

5. Relationship 

 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute, create, give effect to, or 

otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership, or formal business entity of any kind, 

and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be limited to those expressly set forth 

herein. 

 

Nothing herein shall be construed as providing for the sharing of profits or losses arising 

out of the efforts of either or both of the parties, except as may be provided for in any 

resultant subcontract agreed to between the parties.  The cooperation of the parties is for 

the purpose of complementing their respective capabilities to submit the highest quality 

product as possible. 

 

6. Publicity and News Release 

 

No releases shall be made to the news media or the general public relating to participation 

on the opportunity by either party without the prior written approval of the other party, 

which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The parties further agree that news 

releases made by either of them shall recognize the participation and contributions of the 

other party. 

 

 

 

38



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 5 

7. Indemnity 

 

The employees of EC360 and Daphne shall obey all pertinent rules and regulations of 

the other party while on the premises of the other party, including those relating to the 

safeguarding of classified information.  Each party agrees to indemnify and save harmless 

the other party from and against all claims for: 

 

7.1 Damage to, or loss of use of, the other party's property; and 

 

7.2 Injury or death of any of the other party's employees or agents, to the extent any such 

damage, injury or death is caused by any act or omission to act, including negligence, of 

the indemnifying party's employees or agents in connection with performance under this 

Agreement. 

 

8. Assignment 

 

Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein may be assigned, in whole or in part, by 

either party without the prior written consent of the other party, except that, without 

securing such prior consent, either party shall have the right to assign this Agreement to 

any successor of such party by way at merger or consolidation or the acquisition of 

substantially all of the assets of such party relating to the subject matter of this 

Agreement; provided, however, that such successor shall expressly assume all of the 

obligations of such party/ under this Agreement. 

 

9. Entire Agreement 

 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of and between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior representations 

and agreements, verbal or written.  It shall not be varied, except by an instrument in 

writing of subsequent date and duly executed by an authorized representative of each 

party.  Paragraph headings herein are for convenience only and shall not limit in any way 

the scope or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement.  The validity, construction, 

scope and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Alabama. 

  

10. Limitation of Liability 

 

AEMA and FEMA HMGP projects are grant awards and EC360 shall not be held liable 

for the decisions of AEMA or FEMA on eligible or ineligible items or disapproval of the 

entire project. 

 

Neither party shall be liable to the other for any indirect, incidental, special or 

consequential damages, however caused, whether as a consequence of the negligence of 

the one party or otherwise. 

 

39



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 6 

11. Conduction and Obligations 

 

11.1 There shall be no litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against the party or any 

of its officers or employees (i) which is for the purpose of enjoining or otherwise 

restricting the activities contemplated by this Agreement, or otherwise claiming that any 

such activity is improper, (ii) which would adversely affect the rights and/or capabilities 

of the party in respect of such activities, or (iii) which, in the judgment of the Officers of 

either party, would make the continuation of such activities inadvisable. 

 

11.2 During the period that this Agreement is in force and throughout the period of 

performance of any resultant contract or subcontract arrangements, including extensions 

or modifications thereto, the parties hereto agree that neither shall directly solicit for 

employment, any technical or professional employees of the other assigned to work on 

the contract/subcontract, without the prior written approval of the party whose employee 

is being considered for employment 

 

12.       Scope of Agreement 

 

This Agreement shall relate only to the opportunity specified herein, and nothing herein 

shall be deemed to: 

 

12.1 Confer any right or impose any obligation or restriction on either party with respect to any 

other program effort or marketing activity at any time undertaken by either party hereto, 

jointly or separately: or 

 

12.2 Nothing herein shall constrain either party from engaging in its standard business 

practices.  

 

13. Compliance with Laws 

 

The parties, in the performance of this Agreement, shall comply with all applicable 

federal, state and local laws and ordinances, including all regulations thereof.   

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 

the day and year first above written. 

 

 

City of Daphne     EnCompass360, Inc. 

    

By: ________________________  By: __________________________ 

 

Name: ________________________  Name: William E. Culpepper Jr. 

 

Title: ________________________  Title: EnCompass360 - President              

40



EnCompass360, Inc.  Confidential 7 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Notary of Public 

41



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2014 – 57 

 

 

 _________________________________________________________________  
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed below 

are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 

 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that  

 

1. The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 

 

  DEPT EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION     VIN

Street 107 1998 FORD F150 PU 1FTZF17WXWNB38596  
 

2. The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as contracted for the 

sale of such personal property, and 

 

3. The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and all 

proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the disposition of any 

property which is not claimed by any bidder and sign all necessary documents. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this 1
st
 day of December, 2014. 

                

                                                                                                                                                                                           

  _________________________________  

 Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

42



 

 

RESOLUTION 2014-58 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(ALDOT) TO CONDUCT A SIGNAL WARRANT STUDY AT THE INTERSECTION OF 

BELLATON AVENUE, AUSTIN ROAD AND STATE ROUTE 181 
 
WHERE AS, many citizens of Daphne have described in detail to the Public Safety Committee 
the difficulty of traversing the intersection of Bellaton Avenue, Austin Road and State Route 181 
during times of heavy traffic; and 
 
WHERE AS, citizens and Public Safety Officials have reported the occurrences of multiple 
accidents and near-misses at the intersection of Bellaton Avenue, Austin Road and State Route 
181; and 
 
WHERE AS, Bellaton Avenue is a City of Daphne Maintained public road; Austin Road is a 
Baldwin County Maintained public road; State Route 181 is a State of Alabama Maintained 
public road; and 
 
WHERE AS, the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) Southwest Region is willing 
to conduct a Signal Warrant Study of the intersection of Bellaton Avenue, Austin Road and 
State Route 181 if both the City of Daphne and Baldwin County issues Resolutions of Support; 
and 
 
WHERE AS, if the Signal Warrant Study determines signalization of the intersection is required, 
the City of Daphne, Baldwin County and the Alabama Department of Transportation will share 
the cost of signal improvements on a 25%/25%/50% basis; and  
 
WHERE AS, such proposed intersection signal improvements would come back to the Daphne 
City Council for approval and funding appropriations;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne that: 

1.) Request and Support that the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) 
Southwest Region conduct a Signal Warrant Study at intersection of Bellaton Avenue, 
Austin Road and State Route 181; and 

2.) If signals for the intersection of Bellaton Avenue, Austin Road and State Route 181 are 
warranted, the City will appropriate funds equal to 25% of the construction; and 

3.) Authorize the Mayor to execute any agreements and/or documents between all involved 
parties associated with the Signal Warrant Study. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, THIS    DAY OF                          , 2014. 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

ATTEST: 
 
 
              
REBECCA HAYE, CITY CLERK  DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

43



1 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2014-59 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
DONATION OF REAL PROPERTY TO CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, Henry Aaron and Billye S. Aaron, have expressed a desire to convey and 

donate three (3) parcels of real property to the City of Daphne, an Alabama municipal 

corporation, and;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has investigated, reviewed and determined that the three 

(3) parcels of real property would be of benefit to the City of Daphne, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes that the appraised value of the said parcels 

of real property pursuant to an appraisal performed by Courtney & Morris Appraisals, Inc. dated 

November 7, 2014 has determined that the parcels of real property specifically known as Parcel 

No. 43-03-71-0-006-072.000 is valued at $45,000.00, that Parcel No. 43-03-71-0-006-072.002 is 

valued at $25,000.00, and that Parcel No. 43-03-71-0-006-072.003 is valued at $30,000.00, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, said real property is located within the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama and each parcel of real property is more particularly described as follows: 

 

PARCEL NO.: 43-03-71-0-006-072.000 (2.92 ACRES) 

350ʹ x 315ʹ IRR BEG AT THE INT OF W LINE OF PHILLIPS 

ST EXT & N LINE OF YANCEY RD RN W 315ʹ GR SEC 7.01-

5-2 DB378 P269 AS RECORDED IN THE PROBATE COURT 

OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

PARCEL NO.: 43-03-71-0-006-072.002(.85 ACRES) 

210(S) X 185ʹ(S) IRR FM THE INT OF E/L OF PHILLIPS ST 

EXT AN D S LINE OF LOT 2 D’OLIVE GRANT RUN E 55ʹ(S) 

TO THE POB CONT TH E 210ʹ(S), TH S 180ʹ(S) TH W 210ʹ(S) 

POB GR SEC 7.01 T5S R2E AS RECORDED IN REAL 

PROPERTY BOOK 350 PAGE 160 OF THE PROBATE COURT 

OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

PARCEL NO.: 43-03-71-0-006-072.003 - (1.05 ACRES) 

105ʹ(S) X 250ʹ(S) IRR FM INT OF E/L OF PHILLIPS ST EXT 

AND S/L OF LOT 2 D’OLIVE GRANT RUN SE 213ʹ(S) TO 

POB TH E 250ʹ(S), TH S 195ʹ(S), TH W 213ʹ, TH NW 80ʹ(s), TH 

NW 110ʹ(S) TO POB GR SEC 7.01 T5S R2E AS RECORDED IN 

REAL PROPERTY BOOK 350 PAGE 160 OF THE PROBATE 

COURT OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

44



2 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne does hereby accept the gratuitous donation and transfer 

of the above parcels of real property to the City of Daphne and the City agrees to complete and 

execute those provisions of appropriate IRS forms acknowledging these conveyances and the 

City of Daphne further acknowledges that it has not provided any goods or services or any other 

inducements in return for the acceptance of these donated parcels of real property.    

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the above described three (3) separate parcels of real 

property be and are hereby accepted by the City of Daphne and that the Mayor of the City of 

Daphne be and is further authorized to execute such documents related to the closing and 

acceptance of the parcels as a charitable contribution for Grantors income tax purposes.   

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE 1
st
 DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014. 

 

 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 ____________________________________                                             

        DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

  

 

 

 

 

 

45



1 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2014-60 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DONATION OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, Barry Booth has expressed a desire to convey and donate to the City of 

Daphne, an Alabama municipal corporation,  two (2)  parcels of real property and (3) artistic 

sculptures located at three (3) different locations on City property, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has investigated, reviewed and determined that the two 

(2) parcels of real property and the three (3) artistic sculptures would be of benefit to the City of 

Daphne, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes the appraised value of the two (2) parcels of 

real property, one (1) parcel being located on a triangular parcel of real property being located 

North East of the intersection of Santa Rosa and U. S. Highway 98 with acreage of 

approximately .11 acres, with approximately 99.79 feet of frontage on Highway 98, 

approximately 24.9 feet on Santa Rosa Avenue, and approximately 100 feet of frontage on Old 

Spanish Trail; and one (1) parcel being located North West of the intersection of Santa Rosa and 

U. S. Highway 98 with acreage of approximately .488 acres, with approximately 265.1 feet of 

frontage on U.S. Highway 98, approximately 56.7 feet on Santa Rosa Avenue, and 

approximately 266.8 feet of frontage on Main Street (Scenic Highway 98), and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes that the appraisals were performed by 

Courtney & Morris Appraisals, Inc. and dated November 25, 2014 and have determined that the 

parcel of real property specifically known as the triangular parcel located North East of the 

intersection of Santa Rosa and U. S. Highway 98 is valued at $30,000.00, and the parcel of real 

property specifically known as “Autobahn Park” located North West of the intersection of Santa 

Rosa and U. S. Highway 98 is valued at $75.000.00, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes that the appraised value of the three (3) 

artistic sculptures performed by Lars Britt of Koch Galleries and dated November 25, 2014 are 

valued as follows: Sculpture 1 titled “Millennial Piece” is located at the Daphne Civic Center 

and valued at $30,000.00, Sculpture 2 titled “Wind Sail” is placed at the real property located 

North West of the intersection of Santa Rosa and U. S. Highway 98 and valued at $35,000.00 

and Sculpture 3 titled “Veterans Memorial” is placed at the real property located North East of 

the intersection of Santa Rosa and U. S. Highway 98 and valued at $35,000.00, and; 

 

 WHEREAS, said real property and sculptures are located within the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and;  

 

46



2 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne does hereby accept the gratuitous donation and transfer 

of the above two (2) parcels of real property and the three (3) sculptures to the City of Daphne 

and agrees to complete and execute those provisions of appropriate IRS forms acknowledging 

these conveyances and acknowledges that the City of Daphne has not provided any goods or 

services or any other inducements in return for the acceptance of these gifts. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the above-described two (2) separate parcels of real 

property and three (3) sculptures be and are hereby accepted by the City of Daphne and that the 

Mayor of the City of Daphne be and is further authorized to execute such documents related to 

the closing and acceptance of the parcels as a charitable contribution for Grantors income tax 

purposes. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE 1
st
 DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014. 

 

 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 ____________________________________                                             

        DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

  

 

 

 
 
  

47



 
ORDINANCE 2014-53 

 
Appropriating Funds:  Part-Time Events Assistant 

OR 
Additional Overtime and Temporary Services 

 
 
OPTION 1 - Part-Time Civic Center Events Assistant 

 

OPTION 2 – (only if Option 1 is not approved) Additional Overtime and Temporary Services 

appropriation 

 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on September 23, 2014 

which funded the position of the Civic Center Director; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-50 reclassified the Civic Center Director to the Convention/Visitor’s Bureau 

Civic Center Director on November 3, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Convention/Visitor’s Bureau Civic Center Director has additional responsibilities related to 

tourism and will be traveling to conventions as a result creating the need to have additional help at the Civic 

Center in the Director’s absence; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Convention/Visitor’s Bureau Civic Center Director has presented two options to the City 

Council that will meet those additional needs; and 

 

 

 OPTION 1 – to approve the position of a Part-Time Event Assistant (25 hours per week) 

for the Civic Center and appropriate $18,463 ($15,845 wages & $2,618 benefits) from the 

general fund 

 

OR 

 

 OPTION 2 (only of Option 1 is not approved) – to approve and appropriate $13,000 

from the general fund in Overtime ($1,000) and Temporary Services ($12,000) to the 

Civic Center  

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama: 

 

 OPTION ______ 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ______ day of 

___________, 2014. 

 

           

     __________________________________ 

     Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

48



ORDINANCE 2014-54 
 

A ORDINANCE OF THE DAPHNE CITY COUNCIL TO  
CONTRIBUTE TO THE TWENTY PERCENT (20%) LOCAL MATCH REQUIREMENT  

FUNDING A TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENTS  
STUDY FOR CORRIDORS SERVICING THE EASTERN SHORE 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 

Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is a member of the Eastern Shore Metropolitan 

Planning Organization (MPO); and 
 
WHEREAS, population projections compiled by the MPO indicate that the 

population on the Eastern Shore is expected to increase approximately 21% by the year 
2020 and approximately 67% by the year 2040; and 

 
WHEREAS, US Highway 98 and State Route 181, as the primary north-south 

corridors servicing the Eastern Shore, are frequently congested with heavy traffic; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Eastern Shore MPO Policy Board has authorized the Baldwin 

County Commission, as administrator of the Eastern Shore MPO, to hire a consultant to 
conduct a Traffic Signal System Technology Improvements study to determine whether 
adaptive or responsive traffic signal technology can be used to enhance the efficiency of 
the corridors along the Eastern Shore (see Exhibit A – ESMPO Resolution); and 

 
WHEREAS, Sain Associates Consulting Engineers has prepared a fee and 

scope to perform the signal study within MPO Smoothed Urban Area with said fee 
totaling $35,822 (see Exhibit B – Fee and Scope); and 

 
WHEREAS, eighty percent (80%) or $28,658 of the total fee will be paid with left 

over FY13 MPO Planning Funds and the remaining twenty percent (20%) or $7,164 
must be paid with contributions from the local MPO member governments; and  

 
WHEREAS, the MPO Policy Board agreed (see Exhibit A) to equitable 

contribution amounts from each member government to cover the cost of the required 
local match ($7,164) and said amounts have since been reduced to the following due to 
a negotiation reduction in the total fee: 

 

 Two-sevenths (2/7) or $2,047  from Baldwin County 

 Two-sevenths (2/7) or $2,047  from the City of Daphne 

 Two-sevenths (2/7) or $2,047 from the City of Fairhope 

49



ORDINANCE 2014-54           TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM STUDY                PAGE   2       

 

 One-seventh (1/7) or $1,023 from the City of Spanish Fort; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Baldwin County Highway Department will manage the project 

and invoice each member government in an amount not to exceed the amounts noted 
above; now 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, that funds from the Four Cent Gas Tax Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in the amount of $2,047 
for required local match for the Traffic Signal System Technology Improvements study, 
as set forth above, and will pay said contribution upon receipt of invoice for same from 
the Baldwin County Highway Department.  

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this ____ day of ________________ , 2014. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 
 

50



 
ORDINANCE 2014-55 

 
Alabama Dept of Economic & Community Affairs 

Recreational Trails Program Project: Village Point Park Preserve Boardwalk/Trails 
Extension – Project #14-RT-54-08 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application to the Alabama 
Department of Economic & Community Affairs (ADECA) for the funding of the following 
improvements at the Daphne Village Point Park : 1270 LF of new Boardwalk/Trails 
(2014 PW-031): 

 Construction of 800’ of ADA compliant wooden Boardwalk  

 Construction of 470’ of hard surface trail to connect the existing trail system in Village 
Point Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, such improvements will facilitate the recreational, environmental, and 
historical use of the Park by the citizens of Daphne; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed for matching funds for the grant in the amount 
of $ 30,214 in the Fiscal 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has received notification that the grant application has 
been approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne that: 
 

1) The City of Daphne hereby accepts the offer of financial assistance from ADECA in 
the amount of $88,624 for the improvements (as herein stated) to the Daphne Village 
Point Park Preserve;  AND 

2) Funds in the amount of  $30,214 from the Lodging Tax Fund are hereby appropriated 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for the construction of 1200 LF of 
Boardwalk/Trails at Village Point Park Preserve; AND 

3) The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to go out to bid for the project and 
execute the grant agreement and any other documents required for the acceptance 
of the ADECA Village Point Park Trail RTP Project# 14-RT-54-08 on behalf of the 
City of Daphne. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ________ day of _______________, 2014. 
 
       _________________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

51



ORDINANCE 2014-56 
 

Appropriation for Appraisal, Survey and Associated Fees for Marino 
Property Located near D’Olive Creek 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appraisal and survey for the (Meilyn Marino) Marino family property 
located near D’Olive Creek for a potential purchase is needed to evaluate the 
property for the possibility of further extending the Village Point Park Preserve. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds from the Lodging Tax Fund are hereby appropriated and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in the amount of $2,500 for the appraisal, 
survey, and associated fees for the Marino property located D’Olive Creek: 
 

 PPIN#027259 -  764’ x 251.7’ Acres 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2014. 
 
 
             

_________________________________ 
                                                                      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

52



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-57 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NOS. 2011-08 

AND ESTABLISHING RULES, REGULATIONS, RATES AND 

A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE RENTAL OF THE 

DAPHNE CIVIC CENTER  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires that all citizens of the City of 

Daphne and guests thereof be able to peaceably use and enjoy the Daphne Civic Center; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health and 

safety of the citizens of the City of Daphne by providing rental schedules, rules, regulations and a 

lease agreement for the rental of the Daphne Civic Center; and,  

WHEREAS, the mission statement of the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center, as 

established by the Mayor and City Council is as follows:  

"The Daphne Civic Center will strive to promote a high quality of life, to enhance 

the spiritual, social, and moral well being of each citizen and visitor, to promote 

community awareness and serve as a vehicle for total community enjoyment”; and, 

WHEREAS, changes in policy have mandated the repealing of the preceding 

Ordinance establishing rules, regulations, rates, and a lease agreement for the rental of the 

Daphne Civic Center, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION I.  
 
DEFINITIONS  

 

A. For the purpose of this Ordinance the following terms, phrases, words and their 

derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 

words used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include 

the singular number and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 

"shall" is always mandatory and not merely derived.  
 

1. 

2.  

 
 

Lessor:  

 

Lessee:  

 
 

The City of Daphne and Daphne Civic Center.  

 

Signer of City of Daphne Civic Center Lease Agreement.  

53



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 2 of 19 

 

3.  

4.  

 
Facility:  

Event:  

 
Daphne Civic Center.  

The purpose for which facility is leased.  
 

SECTION II:  

  
RULES AND REGULATIONS-GENERAL  

 

A. The Director is authorized to execute on behalf of the City of Daphne, the City of    

Daphne Civic Center lease agreement as approved by the City Council. The following rules   

apply.  

1. Governmental functions will take precedence over all other functions. All other 

reservations are on a first come first serve basis.  

2. The Lease agreement must be executed by persons 21 years of age or older and the 

lessee must be in attendance at the event. 

3. Dates will not be considered "booked
”
 prior to the completion of a City of Daphne, 

Daphne Civic Center Lease Agreement and payment of applicable fees.  

4. The performance of this Agreement shall terminate without liability upon the occurrence 

of any circumstance beyond the control of Lessor – such as acts of God, fire, storm, 

pestilence, war, terrorism, disaster, Federal regulations, strikes, civil disorder, criminal acts, 

curtailment of transportation facilities or any other casualty or unforeseen occurrence – to 

the extent that such circumstances make it illegal or impossible to provide or use of the 

facilities.  Notice may be provided by Lessor at the earliest practicable time however is not 

required to absolve Lessor of liability under this paragraph Lessee shall pay rental for said 

premises only up to the time of such termination, at the rate specified on the Lease 

Agreement and the said Lessee waives any claim for damages or compensation should the 

lease be so terminated. Should termination due to unforeseen events as described above 

occur prior to any actual use of the facility, Lessee shall be refunded all reservation fees 

that have not been obligated by Lessor. 

5. City personnel will inspect the facility after each event.  If damage is found, lessee will 

be notified of charges to be deducted from damage deposit or of additional charges beyond 

damage deposit. 

6. Garbage cans, trash bags, rest room supplies, and outside trash receptacles will be 

supplied for Lessee use with the exception of Mardi Gras groups, or other large groups as 

determined by the Director. Additional garbage fees may apply.  

7. City functions must portray the City of Daphne in the best light for the good and benefit 

of the citizens of Daphne. 

54



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 3 of 19 

 

8. Additional services and/or equipment (other than those specified at the time of lease) 

which may be requested and utilized will be additionally charged based on Daphne Civic 

Center prevailing rates.  

9. Security, firefighters and other personnel will be charged at the prevailing rates per hour. 

Lessee is responsible for making necessary arrangements.  

10. Arrangements must be confirmed at least fourteen (14) days in advance of an event so 

as to schedule the personnel, equipment and services required.  

11. The Lessor requires that only trained city personnel use and handle Civic Center 

equipment during events and set-ups.  

12. The Lessee is charged with the responsibility of paying all applicable City, County, and 

State sales tax on admissions and sales at the Civic Center as well as applicable license 

fees. 

13. All fees shall be paid 14 (fourteen) days prior to the event. Exceptions may be made for 

State, County, and those approved by the Director.  

14. Lessee agrees to pay for all fees in lawful money of the United States of America, cashiers 

check, personal checks, or company checks at the Sales Office of the Daphne Civic Center. 

Lessee further agrees to pay said Lessor on demand any sum which may be due to said Lessor 

for additional services and/or accommodation for material furnished or provided to said 

Lessee.  

15. The Lessee will comply with all laws of the United States, and of the State of Alabama, all 

ordinances of the City of Daphne, Alabama and all rules and requirements of the Police and 

Fire Departments, or other municipal authorities of the City of Daphne, and will obtain and 

pay for all necessary permits and licenses, and will not do nor suffer to be done, anything on 

said premises during the term of the lease in violation of any such laws, ordinances, rules or 

requirements, and if Lessor calls any such violation to the attention of the Lessee, or any 

person employed by or admitted to the said premises by said Lessee, such Lessee will 

immediately desist from and correct such violation.  Lessee will provide Lessor with a copy of 

all applicable permits and licenses 14 days in advance of start of event.  

16. No performance, exhibition or entertainment shall be given or held on said demised 

premises, which shall be objected to by the Lessor.  

17. The City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center, employees, or agents shall not be responsible 

for any misrepresentation of or failure to perform by any promoter, agent, group, or act that is 

not booked by the City of Daphne or Daphne Civic Center.  

18. LESSEE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE EXECUTION BY LESSOR OF THE LEASE 

AGREEMENT REPRESENTS AND GUARANTEES TO LESSOR THAT PERFORMERS 

BY THEIR SPEECH, SONG, MUSIC, CONDUCT, OR MANNER WILL NOT VIOLATE 55



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 4 of 19 

 

OR INCITE OTHERS TO VIOLATE ANY STATUTE, LAW, ORDINANCE, RULE, 

REGULATION OR ORDER OF ANY FEDERAL, STATE, MUNICIPAL OR OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY.  

a) If performers speak, sing, play, perform or otherwise act in any manner which shall 

cause Lessor or any person, organization, or authority whose duty it is to enforce any 

such statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order to maintain public safety on the 

premises, think that performers have violated or incited others to violate any such 

statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order, the Lessor shall have the absolute 

right in its sole discretion to terminate the performance in progress and, regardless of 

whether the performance is terminated, to delay and withhold payment and settlement 

of all accounts and funds related to money collected or received by Lessor under this 

agreement until completion of an investigation relating to any incident thought to be 

such a violation. Lessee agrees to hold Lessor harmless from any and all damages 

suffered or sustained by reason of the termination of any performance and will defend 

any suit instituted against Lessor arising out of such termination at Lessee's expense, all 

in addition to the remedies otherwise given Lessor herein.  

b) If upon completion of the investigation Lessor concludes that performers have 

violated and/or incited others to violate any such statute, law, ordinance, rule, 

regulation or order, then Lessee shall be deemed to have committed material breach 

of the Lease Agreement, for which breach Lessee shall be liable to the Lessor. The 

Lessee and the Lessor hereto acknowledge and agree that it will be impossible to 

measure actual damages to premises as the result of a breach of this agreement 

arising out of a violation or incitement of others to violate any statute, law, 

ordinance, rule, regulation or order as aforesaid, and therefore, the parties have 

agreed to the sum of $5,000.00 as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, which 

amount Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to deduct from any accounts or funds held 

or received by Lessor prior to any payment to Lessee if monies are due or Lessee 

agrees to pay Lessor the agreed sum of $5,000.00 as stated above or pay the actual 

damage amount which will be determined after inspection and or repair of damage.  

19. The Lessee shall not admit to said premises a larger number of persons than the seating 

capacity thereof will accommodate, or can safely or freely move about in said rented areas, and 

the decision of the Fire Marshal in this respect shall be final.  The Daphne Civic Center 

Director and their agents shall maintain an updated occupancy table with limits pursuant to 

City of Daphne Fire Marshal’s regulations which is to be treated as part of this Ordinance. 

20. In rendering said space to the Lessee; the Lessor does not relinquish the right to control 

the management thereof or to enforce all the necessary and proper rules for the 

management and operation of the same. The City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center, 

their agents, and their employees may enter said building and all the demised premises, at 

any time and on any occasion in performance of their duties and responsibilities.  

  

56



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 5 of 19 

 

21. The Lessee agrees to pay reasonable attorney's fees on any part of said rental or service 

charge that may be collected by suit or by attorney after said rental or service charge is past 

due.  

22. The Lessee shall not permit the demised premises to be used for lodging rooms, or for 

any improper, immoral or objectionable purpose.  

23. The Lessee shall not assign the lease, nor suffer any use of said premises, other than 

specified, nor subject the same premises or any part thereof, without the written consent of 

the Lessor.  

24. The Lessee waives all right under the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama or 

any other state to claim personal property exempt as against any liability, debt or obligation 

arising under the contract.  

25. Lessee shall make all necessary arrangements with the union business agents of all 

trades involved in their presentation of their event.  

26. The Civic Center and the keys thereto shall be at all times under the charge and control 

of the Civic Center Personnel. All exceptions must be approved by the Director.  

27. That Lessee shall agree that if any default is made in the payment of the rent or any part 

thereof or if any default is made in the covenant or agreement the letting and the relation of 

landlord and tenant at the option of Lessor, shall cease and terminate and the relation of the 

parties shall be the same in all respect as if said term had fully expired, and the said Lessor 

may re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate therein, remove all 

persons therefrom and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such possession and the 

said Lessee shall notwithstanding such reenter and must pay the full amount of said lease 

for the facility, services, and any usage fees as herein agreed to be paid.  

28. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may happen to the 

lessee, or the Lessee's agent, employees, property, guests from any cause whatsoever, prior, 

during or subsequent to the period covered by the lease and the said Lessee will release 

said Lessor from, and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for such loss, 

damage or injury.  

 

29. That in the handling, control, custody and keeping of receipts and funds, whether the 

same are received through the box office or otherwise, the Lessor is acting for the 

accommodations and sole benefit of the Lessee, and that as to such receipts, and funds the 

Lessor shall be responsible only for gross neglect or bad faith.  

30. Any matters not expressly provided for shall be in the discretion of the City of Daphne 

Mayor, City Council and/or Civic Center Director.  

31. That all terms and conditions of the written lease shall be binding upon the parties, their 

heirs and assigns, and cannot be varied or waived by any oral representations or promise of 

any agent or other person of the parties hereto unless the same be in writing and mutually 57



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 6 of 19 

 

signed by the duly authorized agent or agents who executed the lease. See attached Lease 

Agreement and information sheet which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth 

herein.  

32. The signed Lease Agreement will hold the City of Daphne and the Civic Center 

harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability for compensation under the 

Alabama Workmen's Compensation law or similar laws arising out of injuries sustained by 

any employees of Lessee or of any contractor or subcontractor under Lessee.  

33. Renters shall adhere to all signs posted at location.  

34. The Mayor and/or his designee are authorized to promulgate and post rules and 

regulations at the facility which provide for proper operation and protect the health, safety, 

and welfare of persons attending events at the facility.  

35. Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, guests, or anyone entering the building that are 

under the supervision of the Lessee may not move or remove any City owned decorations 

or property in the facility.  Doing so will be in violation of said ordinance and may incur 

additional damage fees.  

36. Lessor reserves the right to refuse to lease to any person, group or organization known 

to willfully violate any provisions of this ordinance.  

 

SECTION III:  
 
ADVERTISING  

 

A. All advertising will be straight forward, accurate, true and when admission is charged, 

must state the total admission prices. Advertising of any event or the appearance of any performer, 

selling of tickets, acquiring sponsorships, selling of tradeshow booths or the like is prohibited until 

all contracts between all parties involved have been properly executed and exhibited to the 

Director.  

B. All advertising with reference to the Daphne Civic Center and use of the City of Daphne 

Civic Center logo(s) by city departments or otherwise must be approved by the Director of the 

Daphne Civic Center prior to usage.  

 

SECTION IV:  
 
COPYRIGHT  

 

Lessee/Artist/Promoter warrants at the signing of the Lease Agreement that all copyrighted 

material to be performed has been duly licensed or authorized by the copyright owners or their 

representatives and agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center 

harmless from any and all claims, losses or expenses incurred with regard thereto.  

 

SECTION V:  
 
CONCESSION  

 

The Lessor relinquishes all food and beverage concession rights to the Lessee.   All City, 

County, and State taxes and fees apply.   

 58



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 7 of 19 

 

SECTION VI:  
 
DECORATIONS  

 

A. The Lessor requires that all decorations, signs, and posters must be coordinated with 

Civic Center personnel prior to placing or erecting in the Civic Center building or on facility 

grounds. 

 

B.  All decorations must be free standing.  No nails, tacks, brackets, glue or self-adhesive 

tape or any other similar items will be allowed on or in the walls, ceilings, floors or any material that 

will deface, mar, or damage a finish.  ANY SUCH DAMAGE MAY RESULT IN AN EXTRA 

CHARGE FOR DAMAGES AND WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LEESSEE.  No 

shaving cream, toilet paper, silly string, rice, birdseed, sparklers, glitter, confetti (including 

decorative jewels) or the like will be thrown or used for decoration inside or outside the facility.  All 

candles must be self-contained.  If any of these items are found on the floor, additional clean- 

up/damage fees will be imposed on Lessee. 

C. Combustible decorative materials such as, but not limited to, cotton batting, paper, foam 

plastics, cloth, vegetation, moss straw, hay, vines, split bamboo, leaves and similar material shall not 

be used in the facility unless materials are flame resistant or have been treated with a fire retardant 

coating. The classification of fire retardant coatings shall apply only when the coating is applied at 

the rates of coverage and to the type or kind of surfaces indicated on the test report when the coating 

is applied in accordance with the manufacturer's directions supplied with the container. These 

coatings shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's direction. The applications shall be, 

certified by the applicator as being in conformance with the manufacturer's direction for application. 

A flame test will be done on the material before being approved by the Fire Official. 

WARNING!!!! You are advised to contact the Daphne Fire Marshal for approval of decorations at 

least fourteen (14) days prior to your event. Decorations not meeting the Fire Marshal's approval 

will not be allowed in the facility.  Lessee must present in writing to Lessor the approval from the 

Fire Marshal which will be kept on file.  

 

SECTION VII: FLOOR PLANS 

 

The Lessee shall file with the Sales Assistant or Event Assistant at least fourteen (14) days 

prior to the occurrence of the event for which this agreement is issued, a full and detailed outline of 

all facilities required, stage, sound, and electrical requirements, table and chair set-up, and such other 

information as may be required by the Director for planning, staging and preparation for such event. 

The number of attendees is to be included on the Daphne Civic Center Lease Agreement. 
 

 SECTION VIII:  INSURANCE  

A. By the acceptance of the lease agreement the Lessee covenants to indemnify, save and 

keep free and harmless the City of Daphne, its officers and employees, from and against any and 

all claims, demands, loss, liability, cost or expense of any kind or nature whatsoever which the 

City, its officers or employees, or any of them, may sustain or incur, or that may be imposed upon 

them, or any damages to property arising out of, connected with or attributable to the use and 

occupancy of the facility by Lessee. Lessee agrees to pay for any damage to the facility and for any 

damage to or loss of any City property resulting from the occupancy of said facility by Lessee or 

resulting from the conduct or actions of Lessee, its agents or employees, or any person, or person's 59



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 8 of 19 

 

participation in or attending the event during Lessee's occupancy.  

B. Simultaneously with the acceptance of this lease and as a condition precedent to the 

effectiveness hereof, Lessee shall procure and maintain, in full force, and effect during Lessee's 

occupancy of the facility, and during the term of this permit, a policy of public liability and 

property damage insurance from a reliable insurance company authorized to transact business in 

the State of Alabama. The insurance company must have a minimum rating of A- in the current 

issue of the A. M. Best Manual. The Lessee, the City, and its officers and employees shall be 

named co-insured in said policy and the policy shall cover the insured's against whom claim is or 

may be, in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. Said policy shall 

contain not less than the following limits of liability:  

$1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence. (Bodily injury and property damage)  

C. If the proposed use or occupancy by Lessee is such as to present a high degree of 

exposure to bodily injury or property damage, the Director may, in his/her discretion require higher 

limits of bodily injury and/or damage insurance.  

D. The policy shall provide that the same shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of 

this lease until the Director shall have received a ten-day written notice of such proposed 

cancellation. Said policy shall provide that the insurance afforded thereby shall be primary 

insurance to the full limits of liability stated in the declarations, and if the City, its officers and 

employees have other insurance against a loss covered by said policy, that such other insurance 

shall be excess insurance only.  

E. Lessee shall, coincidentally with the acceptance of this lease, deliver said policy of 

insurance, or certified photo static copy thereof, to the Director. Said policy shall be approved by 

the Director as to sufficiency.  

F. The signed Lease Agreement shall hold the City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center 

harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability arising or resulting from any injury to 

any visitor, spectator or participant in any activity in any part or portion of the Civic Center, 

regardless of entrance gained to said Civic Center whether by paid admissions, by pass issued by 

Lessee or Lessor or by any unlawful admission gained without knowledge of Lessor or Lessee. To 

indemnify Lessor as herein provided, Lessee shall carry public liability insurance with the 

coverage and the amount thereof to be specified and approved by the Director of the Civic Center 

with Lessee to furnish Lessor with a certificate of insurance or other satisfactory evidence of 

compliance with this requirement prior to commencement of Lessees event. This insurance 

requirement may be waived depending on circumstances.  

G. Upon approval of said policy, the same shall be filed with the Director or designee. 

After said policy has been so approved the Lessee shall file with the City a certificate of insurance 

issued by an insurance carrier certifying that the aforesaid insurance is in full force and effect and 

that all operations of the insured under the permit are covered thereby. In lieu of the presentation of 

the original policy, or of a certified photo static copy thereof, the Lessee may file a certificate of 

insurance to which is attached an endorsement in a form approved by the City Attorney. The 

endorsement shall provide that liability assumed by Lessee under this permit is covered by the 
60



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 9 of 19 

 

policy, that the City, its officers, and employees, are named insured under said policy, and that in 

event of anyone of the insured's incurring liability to any other of the insured's, the policy shall 

cover the insured against whom claim is or may be made in the same manner as if separate policies 

have been issued to each, and that said insurance is primary insurance as set forth hereinabove. The 

endorsement shall also provide that the policy shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of the 

permit or until the Director shall have received a ten-day notice~ in writing of such proposed 

cancellation and that such endorsement controls over all other provisions of the policy, or 

endorsements thereto, which are inconsistent therewith. Lessee shall be responsible for all 

insurance deductibles.  

H. Liquor Liability Insurance must be obtained in an amount not less than $1,000,000 

and the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center must be listed as additional insured on the 

policy. Proof of this policy must be presented to the sales office not less than fourteen (14) 

days prior of the event. 

I.  Proof of all policies applicable must be presented to the Daphne Civic Center Sales 

Assistant not less than 14 days prior to event. 

 

SECTION IX:  
 
INVENTORY  

 

Facility inventory will not be loaned or permitted to be removed from the premises. These 

items include but are not limited to chairs, tables, podiums, audiovisual equipment, kitchen 

equipment, plants, decorations, or displays. The City of Daphne shall impose a fine of three 

hundred dollars ($300.00) for each violation in addition to a charge for damage.  

 

SECTION X:  
 
DEFACING OF PROPERTY  

 

A. The Lessee will not injure, nor mar, nor in any manner deface said premises, and shall 

not cause or permit anything to be done whereby the said premises shall be in any manner injured, 

marred or defaced, and will not drive or permit to be driven nails, hooks, tacks or screws into any 

part of said building, and will not make, or allow to be made, any alterations of any kind therein.  

Glue hooks or tacky putty will not be permitted (contact Civic Center Sales Assistant for 

suggestions). 

 

B. No decorations shall be placed in or on the building, nor shall any devices or signs be 

supported by any means on wall or woodwork without the consent of the Sales Agent. Sets, 

scenery, exhibit material, et cetera, shall be of flameproof material and conform to the Fire 

Prevention code of the City of Daphne.  

C. If said premises, or any portion of said building, during the term of the lease, shall be 

damaged by the act, default or negligence of the Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests, or any 

person admitted to said premises by Lessee, or unlawful admission gained, LESSEE WILL PAY 

TO THE LESSOR UPON DEMAND SUCH SUM AS SHALL BE NECESSARY TO RESTORE 

SAID PREMISES TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. The Lessee hereby assumes full 

responsibility for the character, acts and conduct of all persons admitted to said premises, or to any 

portion of said building by the consent of the said Lessee, or by or with the consent of any person 

acting for or on behalf of said Lessee, and said Lessee agrees to have on hand at all times sufficient 61



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 10 of 19 

 

Police and Fire Personnel to maintain order and protect persons and property.  Daphne Police and 

Fire Personnel will be provided at the expense of the Lessee. In addition, the City of Daphne's fine 

of three hundred dollars ($300.00) for Damage/Defacing City Property will be imposed.  
 

SECTION XI:  TICKET OUTLET SALES/BOX OFFICE 

 

A. All ticketed events will be handled through the Daphne Civic Center Sales office unless 

otherwise stated by the Director. The basic Box Office charge will be 5% of all Gross Ticket Sales. 

Civic Center Box Office sales and services are the exclusive right of the City of Daphne Civic 

Center.  

B. The Civic Center Ticket Office hours shall be 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through 

Friday.  

C. All tickets must be sold at advertised prices and any deviation must be approved in 

writing by the Director.  

D. All Moneys' collected for advance ticket sales must be paid in cash and are not be 

subject to 'draw' by the promoter until such time show time occurs, all specifications of the Civic 

Center Lease Agreement have been met and all funds have been collected which exceed Civic 

Center expenses therefore.  

E. Final show settlement payment will not be made until the final act has been on the stage 

at least 20 minutes and all box office transactions have been completed as well as all contractual 

agreements.  

F. All tickets purchased must be paid for in cash. The Director shall notify the Lessee if 

other payment plans are permissible.  

G. Back stage passes will only be accepted for admission of entertainers, stage crews and 

business associates, and must be dated with the day and date of performance. These passes will be 

honored at the back stage door only and will not be admitted through regular ticket gates.  

H. Civic Center management will deal only with the individual who negotiated the contract 

or their duly authorized representative's with regards to box office transactions, show settlement, 

and facility usage.  

I. In the event of show cancellation, the Civic Center Director reserves the right to 

determine the ticket refund procedures. Refunds will be made at the outlet location of purchase 

only.  

J. Any deviation or changes to the stated regulations must be approved by the Civic Center 

Director.  

 

SECTION XII:  

 

POSTING BILLS  

 

A. The Lessee will not post or exhibit, nor allow to be posted or exhibited, signs, 62



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 11 of 19 

 

advertisements, show bills, lithographs, posters or cards of any description, inside or in front of, or 

on any part of said building except upon the regular billboards provided by the Lessor therefore 

and will use, post or exhibit only such signs, advertisements, show bills, lithographs, posters or 

cards upon said billboards as relate to the performance or exhibit to be given in the demised 

premises. Amounts and contents of Lessee's display advertising materials at the Civic Center shall 

be at the discretion of the Director.  

B. The Lessee shall take down and remove forthwith all signs, advertisements, show bills, 

lithographs, posters or cards of any description objected to by said Lessor, or its representatives.  

 SECTION XIII:  PASSAGEWAYS  

A. The Lessee will permit no chair or movable seat to be or remain in the passageways, and 

will keep said passageways clear at all times.  

B. No portion of the sidewalks, entries, passage, vestibules, halls, stairways, or access to 

public utilities or said building shall be obstructed by the Lessee, or used for any purpose other 

than for ingress to and from the demised premises. The doors, stairways, or openings that reflect or 

admit light into any place in the building, including hallways, corridors, passages, also house-

lighting attachments, shall not be covered or obstructed by the Lessee. The water closets or other 

water apparatus shall not be used for any purpose other than for which they were constructed, and 

no sweepings, rubbish, rags, papers or other substance shall be thrown therein. Any damage 

resulting to them from misuse of any nature or character whatever shall be paid for by the Lessee.  

 SECTION XIV:  REMOVAL OF PROPERTY  

A. All personal property, including rental items, brought into the Civic Center for any 

event must be dismantled and removed immediately following the event unless pre-approved by 

the Civic Center Director. Any personal property not removed shall become the property of the 

City of Daphne. The City of Daphne will hold all lost and found items for seven (7) days following 

the event. Thereafter, the City reserves the right to dispose of all unclaimed items.  City of Daphne, 

Daphne Civic Center employees will be held harmless for any property approved by the Director 

to be left in the building or on Civic Center property.  Approval must be made at least ten (10) 

working days prior to start of event.  No exceptions will be made. 

B.  Civic Center employees, workers, volunteers, or any representative of the Civic Center 

cannot assist in the load-in, event set-up and/or load-out of any personal event or handle any 

personal property. 

 C. The Lessor shall have the sole right to collect and have the custody of articles left in the 

building by persons attending any performance, exhibition or entertainment given or held in the 

demised premises, and the Lessee, or any person in Lessee's employ shall not collect nor interfere 

with the collection or custody of such article.  

D. The Lessor reserves the right to remove from the building all effects remaining in 

building after time specified at the expense of the Lessee or to charge the daily rental as shown on 63



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 12 of 19 

 

the current Civic Center rate sheet for the area in which the effects have been left or stored.  

 

SECTION XV:  
 
BUILDING DEPARTURE  

 

Lessee shall agree that the music would be stopped, all bars must be closed and the 

building must be cleared at the ending time stated on the contract. If the Lessee goes over stated 

time on contract the Lessee will be charged with additional rental that must be paid at the time that 

the function goes over the ending time as is stated on the contract.  

 SECTION XVI:  WAIVED FEES  

All requests for waived fees must be sent in writing and addressed to the Civic Center 

Director. The Director will forward all requests to the Mayor, who shall have the final decision.   

 SECTION XVII:  RENTAL FEES 

A. Daphne Civic Center Minimum Rental Fees and hourly rates shall start as listed below:  
 

Entire Facility:    $1,250.00+$375.00 cleaning fee 

Exhibit Hall  

w/ Stage:     $565.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee 

(Exhibit Hall  

w/ Stage 2 Dressing Rooms):  $690.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee  

The Wisteria Reception Hall  

& North Gallery:   $345.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee  

North Gallery:    $65.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

South Gallery:    $65.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

The Willow:     $190.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

Kitchen:     $220.00 + $100.00 cleaning fee 

Greenroom:      $250.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

Greenroom/Dressing Room 2:  $300.00 + $125.00 cleaning fee 

Greenroom/Dressing Room 2  

& Stage:    $375.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee  

Greenroom/Dressing Room 1,  

2 & Stage:    $425.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee   

Parking Lot     $25.00 per displayed vehicle 

 

B. In addition to the base rental fees the following hourly rates shall apply: $20.00 per 

hour for each hour of usage with a minimum of 4 hours required and $50.00 per hour of usage 

for all holidays.  The Director shall maintain an updated list of rental items which is to be 

treated as part of this Ordinance's fee schedule.  

C. Lease rates for the Daphne Civic Center are based on the prevailing rates as set forth 

in this Ordinance.  In addition to the base rental fees, depending on each events setup and 

needs to have a successful event, an additional labor fee may be required. This fee is at the 

discretion of the Civic Center Director and will be presented to lessee prior to the execution of 

Civic Center contract. 64



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 13 of 19 

 

D. The City shall apply rental proceeds to the operating requirements of the facility.  

E. Lessee shall not split rental hours.  

F. Lessee shall pay a $300.00 refundable damage deposit. The damage deposit will be 

refunded after the facility is inspected by Civic Center personnel and no damage is found.  Any 

additional damage charges over $300.00 will be charged to the lessee. 

G. If children are present during event, they must be supervised at all times and for 

safety/security reasons, should remain with parents or guardians.  Children will not be allowed in 

any non-rental or off-limit areas.  Any damaged or broken items caused from lack of supervision 

will be the Lessee’s responsibility. 

H.  Any event having 500+ attendees will be required to pay an additional cleaning fee of 

$300.00. 

SECTION XVIII:  CANCELLATIONS  

Cancellations must be in writing, dated and signed by the Lessee.   Reimbursements 

for cancelled events will be refunded as follows:  75% refund for cancellations received at least 

9 months prior to the day of start of event; 50% refund for cancellations received at least 6 

months prior to the day of start of event; no refunds will be made for cancellations received 

under 6 months prior to the day of start of event. Any exceptions to this rule must be approved 

by the Buildings and Property committee.  **Should Daphne Civic Center be able to book 

another event of equal or greater economic value, then 100% refund will be issued.  Refunds 

will be issued by check.   

 SECTION XIX:  CLEANING FEES  

Cleaning fees are mandatory and are based on the prevailing rates as prescribed in this 

ordinance.  Any event having 500+ attendees will be required to pay an additional cleaning fee of 

$300.00. 

 

SECTION XX:  
 
SECURITY (FIRE/POLICE)  

 

A. The City of Daphne Police Department and Fire Department reserve the right to determine 

the appropriate amount of security and fire protection needed for any and all events held at the Daphne 

Civic Center. The Lessee shall provide security and/or fire protection if it is determined necessary for 

any event. If security and/or fire protection is required, it must be obtained through the City of Daphne 

Police Department and the City of Daphne Fire Department no later than fourteen (14) days prior to an 

event. If the Lessee fails to provide the required security or fire protection, a fine of $300.00 shall be 

imposed and the relation of the landlord and tenant at the option of Lessor shall cease and terminate 

and the relation of the parties shall be the same in all respects as if said term had fully expired. The 

Lessor may re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate, remove all persons 

therefrom, and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such possession.  

B. The Lessor reserves the right through its Director or his/her representatives to eject any 65



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 14 of 19 

 

objectionable person or persons from said building, and upon the exercise of this authority through its 

Director, agents or policemen, the Lessee hereby waives any rights and all claims for damages against 

the Management.  

C. The Lessee shall not, without written consent of the Lessor, put up or operate any engine or 

motor machinery on the demised premises, or use oils, burning fluids, camphene, kerosene, naphtha, or 

gasoline for either mechanical or other purposes or any other agent than natural gas or electricity for 

illuminating the demised premises.  

D. Should an event require security, then Lessee shall comply with Ala. Code § 6-5-338 (1975) 

by the purchasing of general liability insurance in the amount of $100,000.00 per off-duty officer. 

 SECTION XXI:  ALCOHOL/BEVERAGE  

A. Consumption of alcohol will be allowed inside the facility only during the time of 

function. No Alcohol/beverages shall be allowed on the dance floor at any time. Consumption of 

alcohol is not allowed in the parking lot or on the grounds of the facility. The City of Daphne is not 

liable for accidents, deaths, or injuries that may occur as a result of the consumption of alcohol.  

B. The Lessee shall be fined three hundred dollars ($300.00) by the City of Daphne for 

violation by Lessee, Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests, or any person admitted to said 

premises by Lessee per occurrence.  

C. No Alcohol shall be "SOLD" on the grounds or inside of the Daphne Civic Center 

without proper permits or license.   

D.  Distribution of alcohol is to be made in one of the following forms: 

a. Alcohol and/or all mixers may be brought by attendees and checked at the 

door where a bartender (hired by Lessee) will distribute alcohol for the 

duration of the event. Said bartender must be 21 years of age or older and 

must possess any and all then applicable licensing pursuant to local, state, 

and federal law. 

b. An event may contract with a licensed caterer for said event to set up cash 

bar or distribute alcohol. A licensed caterer is one that has purchased the 

requisite host liquor liability insurance, a City of Daphne business license, 

and attained all requisite alcohol licensing. 

E. Should an event have alcohol, host liquor liability insurance in a minimum amount of 

$1,000,000.00 must be purchased. All insurance certificates and proof of requisite licensing must 

be on file at least 14 days prior to the event. 
 

F.  Alcohol shall not be served or sold to anyone under 21 years of age.  

 

G.  Appropriate police action will be taken against any person deemed to be intoxicated and 

posing a danger to himself or others.  

 66



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 15 of 19 

 

H.   A list of bartenders and/or caterers possessing additional voluntary certifications(s), 

provided through alcoholic beverage distributors for the serving of alcoholic beverages, may be 

provided by the Civic Center upon request. 

SECTION XXII:  SMOKING   

ALL CITY OF DAPHNE BUILDINGS ARE SMOKE FREE 20 FEET FROM ANY AND 

ALL ENTRANCES. There will be no smoking in the Daphne Civic Center. A fine of three hundred 

dollars ($300.00) shall be imposed per occurrence by the City of Daphne. A three hundred dollar 

($300.00) cleaning fine shall be imposed on the Lessee if smoking has occurred in the Daphne Civic 

Center. 

 SECTION XXIII:  PETS  

No pets allowed inside the facility other than those for the express use by disabled persons, 

or by permission of the Civic Center Director.  

 

SECTION XXIV:     BUILDING ACCESS  

The City will provide reasonable access according to the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

 

 SECTION XXV:      THEFT  

The City of Daphne is not responsible for theft of property on the grounds of the Daphne Civic 

Center, in automobiles, in the facility or any other structure on the property.  

SECTION XXVI:  HEAVY METAL/RAP/ALTERNATIVE CONCERTS  

A. The City of Daphne has set forth the following guidelines to establish rules and regulations 

for Heavy Metal, Rap, and Alternative concerts in effort to provide a safe and enjoyable concert 

experience for attendees.  

B. The Daphne City Council must approve all heavy metal, rap, and alternative concerts prior 

to the concert booking. The Buildings and Property Committee will determine if a concert is 

Alternative. The following are necessary:  

1 . Names of all artists to appear must be provided to the Civic Center Director.  

2. Date of the event and ticket information must be provided to the Civic Center Director.  

3. A letter stating that approved security and fire arrangements have been made for the concert 

from the Daphne Police Department and Daphne Fire Department must be presented to the 

Civic Center Director. All special effects must be approved by the Fire Marshal and a letter 

stating this information must be provided to the Director. 

4. A letter of approval must be obtained from the Civic Center Director and presented to the 

Buildings and Property Committee along with the above listed documentation. The Buildings 67



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 16 of 19 

 

and Property Committee will make recommendation to the full City Council. The Civic Center 

Director shall provide the Council's approval or disapproval to the proposed Lessee.  

5. A security bond or deposit may be required for potential damages. If required, the bond or 

deposit must be presented to the Director no later than thirty (30) days prior to the event.  

6. A five hundred-dollar cleaning fee may be required.  

7. The promoter must obtain a public liability and property damage policy in an amount not 

less than $3,000,000. The policy must be written by an insurance company licensed to do 

business in the State of Alabama and having a minimum rating of A- in the current issue of the 

A. M. Best Manual. The policy must name the City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center as 

additional insured. This certificate must be presented to the Director at least thirty (30) days 

prior to the scheduled concert.  

8. If required by the State of Alabama, a promoter must obtain Liquor Liability Insurance 

in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and must list the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic 

Center as additional insured on the policy. Proof of this policy must be presented to the 

sales office not less than one week prior of the event.  

9. House lights are not allowed to go dark. A minimum of 20% of house lights must be on 

at all times.  

10. An addendum may be required to the contract if any of the performing acts have a 

history of performing songs or making statements that are considered by the Daphne City 

Council to incite or provoke violence by the audience.  

11. Other rules and regulations as deemed necessary by the Director, Buildings and 

Property Committee, or Daphne City Council may apply.  

SECTION XXVII:  SOUND EQUIPMENT  

A. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may occur from the result 

of sound, lighting, or electrical equipment being utilized by the Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, or, 

guests from any cause whatsoever, prior, during or subsequent to the period covered by the lease and 

the said Lessee will .release said Lessor from, and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for 

such loss, damage or injury.  

  

B. Any damage to the City of Daphne, Civic Center sound, lighting, or electrical equipment 

shall be at the expense of the Lessee when Lessee utilizes said equipment or services. Civic Center 

personnel, The City of Daphne Police Department, or any authorized city employee can request that 

the Lessee or their agents desist from utilizing city property at any time.  

C. The Civic Center must be notified of all sound and lighting requirements at least 

fourteen (14) days prior to the event.  

 68



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 17 of 19 

 

SECTION XXVIII:  FEE WAIVERS  

A. The City of Daphne shall provide the following fee waivers with no others to be 

considered in Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first 

serve basis.  

1. DAPHNE CIVIC CENTER REDUCED RATE PROGRAM MONDAY, TUESDAY &                  

    WEDNESDAY  

(a) This program will apply to all with the following exceptions. This program 

excludes paid concerts, all for profit events, Mardi Gras balls/meetings and fund 

raising events. These events will pay full fare.  

All rental items remain the same. The reduced rate will consist of half rate for the 

base rental fee. The cleaning fee will remain the same. The booking includes four 

(4) hours of usage and must be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Any 

usage over four (4) hours and any hours used after 5:00 p.m. will be charged an 

additional $20.00 per hour. If requested, the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center 

shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday that 

is a holiday or city holiday will be charged all regular holiday rates.  

All bookings remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is not to be used for 

continued bookings. The City of Daphne reserves: the right to deny any group or 

organization usage of these provisions.  

 

2. DAPHNE CIVIC CENTER REDUCED RATE PROGRAM (CIVIC GROUPS AND NOT   

    FOR PROFITS - 501-C3 MONDAY, TUESDAY & WEDNESDAY)  

 

(b) This program will apply to all civic groups that are not for profit and have a 501-C3 

status. Proof of this status is required. This program excludes paid concerts, all for profit 

events, and fund raising events. These events will pay full fare ~ All rental items remain 

the same. The reduced rate will consist of a waived base fee, full rate on cleaning fees, 

and a $20.00 per hour charge. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday booking that is a 

holiday or city holiday will be charged all regular holiday rates. If requested, the City of 

Daphne, Daphne Civic Center shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. All bookings 

remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is not to be used for continued 

bookings. The City of Daphne reserves the right to deny any group or organization 

usage of these provisions. All groups utilizing this reduced rate program must use the 

facility between 8:00 am to 10:00 p.m. All groups that have not left the facility by 10:00 

p.m. will be charged all regular rates.  

 3.  CITY OF DAPHNE DEPARTMENTS FOR CONDUCTING CITY BUSINESS.  

(a) The City of Daphne encourages all City Departments to utilize the Daphne Civic 

Center for your entire department booking needs. For tracking purposes all City 

departments must estimate their projected bookings for the Civic Center and budget 

all fees, rental items, cleaning fees, and per hour charges needed at regular rates for 

their facility functions. The department may submit in writing to the Director a 

request to wave base rental fees only. The decision will be based on the criteria for 69



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 18 of 19 

 

event, time of day and year and day of week.  The approval of this request will be at 

the discretion of the Director and/or Mayor.  Invoices will be routed from the Civic 

Center to the Finance Department for journal entry after each event. The Finance 

Department will notify the Civic Center sales office when the journal entry is 

complete and make report to the Buildings and Property Committee at the monthly 

meeting.  

4. CITY EMPLOYEES FOR PERSONAL BUSINESS 

 (a)  Current City of Daphne employees will be entitled to a 20% discount off of base 

rental rates only for events that the employee is hosting.  This discount is not applicable for 

family or friends, only the employee him/herself.  All rules, guidelines and all other fees of this 

ordinance apply.  The employee must make a request in writing which should include type of 

event, day and time.  The approval of this request will be at the discretion of the Director and/or 

Mayor.  Should for any reason the employee violate the guidelines mentioned above, said 

employee will not be entitled to this benefit in the future and will be responsible for full base 

rental rate which will be deducted from damage fee or billed with additional damage fee. 

 

SECTION XXIX:  BOOKING POLICY - ALL OTHER GROUPS  

If an organization or group desires to book the same date continually, year after year, such 

organizations must submit a letter to the Director making such request listing the exact dates and 

years that the organization is requesting and all facility needs. All base fees must be paid in 

advance for the first two consecutive years. At the end of the second year a new request must be 

made in writing and delivered to the sales department of the Civic Center no later than 7 days after 

the second year event for the following two years, along with the fees for the next two years. Future 

bookings will also be secured using the same guidelines. All bookings are on a first come first 

serve basis.  

SECTION XXX:  PENALTY  

A. Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be punished 

by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or by 

imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6) months, or both, at the discretion of the Municipal 

Judge.  

B. This Ordinance shall also be subject to enforcement by the issuance of a summons and 

complaint. 

SECTION XXXI:  REPEALER  

Ordinance Nos. 2004-20 and 2010-49 are hereby repealed in their entirety. All other City 

Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they 

conflict, are hereby repealed.  

 70



ORDINANCE 2014-57                 CIVIC CENTER RULES & REGULATIONS            Page 19 of 19 

 

 

SECTION XXXII:  SEVERABILITY  

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or 

part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of the Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence : and part thereof separately and independently of each other.  

SECTION XXXII:  EFFECTIVE DATE  

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval and adoption by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this the _____ day of ____, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Dane Haygood, 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

71



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 20114-08 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------  

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NOS. 201104-

0820 & 2010-49 AND ESTABLISHING RULES, 

REGULATIONS, RATES AND A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR 

THE RENTAL OF THE DAPHNE CIVIC CENTER  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires that all citizens of the City of 

Daphne and guests thereof be able to peaceably use and enjoy the Daphne Civic Center; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health and 

safety of the citizens of the City of Daphne by providing rental schedules, rules, regulations and a 

lease agreement for the rental of the Daphne Civic Center; and,  

WHEREAS, the mission statement of the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center, as 

established by the Mayor and City Council is as follows:  

"The Daphne Civic Center will strive to promote a high quality of life, to enhance 

the spiritual, social, and moral well being of each citizen and visitor, to promote 

community awareness and serve as a vehicle for total community enjoyment”; and, 

WHEREAS, changes in policy have mandated the repealing of the preceding 

Ordinance establishing rules, regulations, rates, and a lease agreement for the rental of the 

Daphne Civic Center, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION I.  
 
DEFINITIONS  

 

A. For the purpose of this Ordinance the following terms, phrases, words and their 

derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 

words used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include 

the singular number and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 

"shall" is always mandatory and not merely derived.  
 

1. 

2.  

 
 

Lessor:  

 

Lessee:  

 
 

The City of Daphne and Daphne Civic Center.  

 

Signer of City of Daphne Civic Center Lease Agreement.  

72



3.  

4.  

 
Facility:  

Event:  

 
Daphne Civic Center.  

The purpose for which facility is leased.  
 

SECTION II:  

  
RULES AND REGULATIONS-GENERAL  

 

A. The Director is authorized to execute on behalf of the City of Daphne, the City of    

Daphne Civic Center lease agreement as approved by the City Council. The following rules   

apply.  

1. Governmental functions will take precedence over all other functions. All other 

reservations are on a first come first serve basis.  

2. The Lease agreement must be executed by persons 21 years of age or older and the 

lessee must be in attendance at the event. 

3. Dates will not be considered "booked
”
 prior to the completion of a City of Daphne, 

Daphne Civic Center Lease Agreement and payment of applicable fees.  

4. The performance of this Agreement shall terminate without liability upon the occurrence 

of any circumstance beyond the control of Lessor – such as acts of God, fire, storm, 

pestilence, war, terrorism, disaster, Federal regulations, strikes, civil disorder, criminal acts, 

curtailment of transportation facilities or any other casualty or unforeseen occurrence – to 

the extent that such circumstances make it illegal or impossible to provide or use of the 

facilities.  Notice may be provided by Lessor at the earliest practicable time however is not 

required to absolve Lessor of liability under this paragraph In case the facility, or any part 

thereof, shall be destroyed or damaged by fire, or any other cause, or if any other casualty 

or unforeseen occurrence shall render the fulfillment of the lease by the Lessor impossible, 

then and thereupon the lease shall terminate, and the Lessee shall pay rental for said 

premises only up to the time of such termination, at the rate specified on the Lease 

Agreement and the said Lessee waives any claim for damages or compensation should the 

lease be so terminated. Should termination due to unforeseen events as described above 

occur prior to any actual use of the facility, Lessee shall be refunded all reservation fees 

that have not been obligated by Lessor. 

5. City personnel will inspect the facility after each event.  If damage is found, lessee will 

be notified of charges to be deducted from damage deposit or of additional charges beyond 

damage deposit. 

6. Garbage cans, trash bags, rest room supplies, and outside trash receptacles will be 

supplied for Lessee use with the exception of Mardi Gras groups, or other large groups as 

determined by the Director. Additional garbage fees may apply.  

7. City functions must portray the City of Daphne in the best light for the good and benefit 

of the citizens of Daphne. 

73



8. Additional services and/or equipment (other than those specified at the time of lease) 

which may be requested and utilized will be additionally charged based on Daphne Civic 

Center prevailing rates.  

9. Security, firefighters and other personnel will be charged at the prevailing rates per hour. 

Lessee is responsible for making necessary arrangements.  

10. Arrangements must be confirmed at least fourteen (14) days in advance of an event so 

as to schedule the personnel, equipment and services required.  

11. The Lessor requires that only trained city personnel use and handle Civic Center 

equipment during events and set-ups.  

12. The Lessee is charged with the responsibility of paying all applicable City, County, and 

State sales tax on admissions and sales at the Civic Center as well as applicable license 

fees. 

13. All fees shall be paid 14 (fourteen) days prior to the event. Exceptions may be made for 

State, County, and those approved by the Director.  

14. Lessee agrees to pay for all fees in lawful money of the United States of America, cashiers 

check, personal checks, or company checks at the Sales Office of the Daphne Civic Center. 

Lessee further agrees to pay said Lessor on demand any sum which may be due to said Lessor 

for additional services and/or accommodation for material furnished or provided to said 

Lessee.  

15. The Lessee will comply with all laws of the United States, and of the State of Alabama, all 

ordinances of the City of Daphne, Alabama and all rules and requirements of the Police and 

Fire Departments, or other municipal authorities of the City of Daphne, and will obtain and 

pay for all necessary permits and licenses, and will not do nor suffer to be done, anything on 

said premises during the term of the lease in violation of any such laws, ordinances, rules or 

requirements, and if Lessor calls any such violation to the attention of the Lessee, or any 

person employed by or admitted to the said premises by said Lessee, such Lessee will 

immediately desist from and correct such violation.  Lessee will provide Lessor with a copy of 

all applicable permits and licenses 14 days in advance of start of event.  

16. No performance, exhibition or entertainment shall be given or held on said demised 

premises, which shall be objected to by the Lessor.  

17. The City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center, employees, or agents shall not be responsible 

for any misrepresentation of or failure to perform by any promoter, agent, group, or act that is 

not booked by the City of Daphne or Daphne Civic Center.  

74



18. LESSEE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE EXECUTION BY LESSOR OF THE LEASE 

AGREEMENT REPRESENTS AND GUARANTEES TO LESSOR THAT PERFORMERS 

BY THEIR SPEECH, SONG, MUSIC, CONDUCT, OR MANNER WILL NOT VIOLATE 

OR INCITE OTHERS TO VIOLATE ANY STATUTE, LAW, ORDINANCE, RULE, 

REGULATION OR ORDER OF ANY FEDERAL, STATE, MUNICIPAL OR OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY.  

a) If performers speak, sing, play, perform or otherwise act in any manner which shall 

cause Lessor or any person, organization, or authority whose duty it is to enforce any 

such statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order to maintain public safety on the 

premises, think that performers have violated or incited others to violate any such 

statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order, the Lessor shall have the absolute 

right in its sole discretion to terminate the performance in progress and, regardless of 

whether the performance is terminated, to delay and withhold payment and settlement 

of all accounts and funds related to money collected or received by Lessor under this 

agreement until completion of an investigation relating to any incident thought to be 

such a violation. Lessee agrees to hold Lessor harmless from any and all damages 

suffered or sustained by reason of the termination of any performance and will defend 

any suit instituted against Lessor arising out of such termination at Lessee's expense, all 

in addition to the remedies otherwise given Lessor herein.  

b) If upon completion of the investigation Lessor concludes that performers have 

violated and/or incited others to violate any such statute, law, ordinance, rule, 

regulation or order, then Lessee shall be deemed to have committed material breach 

of the Lease Agreement, for which breach Lessee shall be liable to the Lessor. The 

Lessee and the Lessor hereto acknowledge and agree that it will be impossible to 

measure actual damages to premises as the result of a breach of this agreement 

arising out of a violation or incitement of others to violate any statute, law, 

ordinance, rule, regulation or order as aforesaid, and therefore, the parties have 

agreed to the sum of $5,000.00 as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, which 

amount Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to deduct from any accounts or funds held 

or received by Lessor prior to any payment to Lessee if monies are due or Lessee 

agrees to pay Lessor the agreed sum of $5,000.00 as stated above or pay the actual 

damage amount which will be determined after inspection and or repair of damage.  

19. The Lessee shall not admit to said premises a larger number of persons than the seating 

capacity thereof will accommodate, or can safely or freely move about in said rented areas, and 

the decision of the Fire Marshal in this respect shall be final.  The Daphne Civic Center 

Director and their agents shall maintain an updated occupancy table with limits pursuant to 

City of Daphne Fire Marshal’s regulations which is to be treated as part of this Ordinance. 

20. In rendering said space to the Lessee; the Lessor does not relinquish the right to control 

the management thereof or to enforce all the necessary and proper rules for the 

management and operation of the same. The City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center, 

their agents, and their employees may enter said building and all the demised premises, at 

any time and on any occasion in performance of their duties and responsibilities.  

  
75



21. The Lessee agrees to pay reasonable attorney's fees on any part of said rental or service 

charge that may be collected by suit or by attorney after said rental or service charge is past 

due.  

22. The Lessee shall not permit the demised premises to be used for lodging rooms, or for 

any improper, immoral or objectionable purpose.  

23. The Lessee shall not assign the lease, nor suffer any use of said premises, other than 

specified, nor subject the same premises or any part thereof, without the written consent of 

the Lessor.  

24. The Lessee waives all right under the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama or 

any other state to claim personal property exempt as against any liability, debt or obligation 

arising under the contract.  

25. Lessee shall make all necessary arrangements with the union business agents of all 

trades involved in their presentation of their event.  

26. The Civic Center and the keys thereto shall be at all times under the charge and control 

of the Civic Center Personnel. All exceptions must be approved by the Director.  

27. That Lessee shall agree that if any default is made in the payment of the rent or any part 

thereof or if any default is made in the covenant or agreement the letting and the relation of 

landlord and tenant at the option of Lessor, shall cease and terminate and the relation of the 

parties shall be the same in all respect as if said term had fully expired, and the said Lessor 

may re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate therein, remove all 

persons therefrom and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such possession and the 

said Lessee shall notwithstanding such reenter and must pay the full amount of said lease 

for the facility, services, and any usage fees as herein agreed to be paid.  

28. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may happen to the 

lessee, or the Lessee's agent, employees, property, guests from any cause whatsoever, prior, 

during or subsequent to the period covered by the lease and the said Lessee will release 

said Lessor from, and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for such loss, 

damage or injury.  

 

29. That in the handling, control, custody and keeping of receipts and funds, whether the 

same are received through the box office or otherwise, the Lessor is acting for the 

accommodations and sole benefit of the Lessee, and that as to such receipts, and funds the 

Lessor shall be responsible only for gross neglect or bad faith.  

30. Any matters not expressly provided for shall be in the discretion of the City of Daphne 

Mayor, City Council and/or Civic Center Director.  

31. That all terms and conditions of the written lease shall be binding upon the parties, their 

heirs and assigns, and cannot be varied or waived by any oral representations or promise of 

any agent or other person of the parties hereto unless the same be in writing and mutually 76



signed by the duly authorized agent or agents who executed the lease. See attached Lease 

Agreement and information sheet which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth 

herein.  

32. The signed Lease Agreement will hold the City of Daphne and the Civic Center 

harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability for compensation under the 

Alabama Workmen's Compensation law or similar laws arising out of injuries sustained by 

any employees of Lessee or of any contractor or subcontractor under Lessee.  

33. Renters shall adhere to all signs posted at location.  

34. The Mayor and/or his designee are authorized to promulgate and post rules and 

regulations at the facility which provide for proper operation and protect the health, safety, 

and welfare of persons attending events at the facility.  

35. Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, guests, or anyone entering the building that are 

under the supervision of the Lessee may not move or remove any City owned decorations 

or property in the facility.  Doing so will be in violation of said ordinance and may incur 

additional damage fees.  

36. Lessor reserves the right to refuse to lease to any person, group or organization known 

to willfully violate any provisions of this ordinance.  

 

SECTION III:  
 
ADVERTISING  

 

A. All advertising will be straight forward, accurate, true and when admission is charged, 

must state the total admission prices. Advertising of any event or the appearance of any performer, 

selling of tickets, acquiring sponsorships, selling of tradeshow booths or the like is prohibited until 

all contracts between all parties involved have been properly executed and exhibited to the 

Director.  

B. All advertising with reference to the Daphne Civic Center and use of the City of Daphne 

Civic Center logo(s) by city departments or otherwise must be approved by the Director of the 

Daphne Civic Center prior to usage.  

 

SECTION IV:  
 
COPYRIGHT  

 

Lessee/Artist/Promoter warrants at the signing of the Lease Agreement that all copyrighted 

material to be performed has been duly licensed or authorized by the copyright owners or their 

representatives and agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center 

harmless from any and all claims, losses or expenses incurred with regard thereto.  

 

SECTION V:  
 
CONCESSION  

 

The Lessor relinquishes all food and beverage concession rights to the Lessee.   All City, 

County, and State taxes and fees apply.   

 
77



SECTION VI:  
 
DECORATIONS  

 

A. The Lessor requires that all decorations, signs, and posters must be coordinated with 

Civic Center personnel prior to placing or erecting in the Civic Center building or on facility 

grounds. 

 

B.  All decorations must be free standing.  No nails, tacks, brackets, glue or self-adhesive 

tape or any other similar items will be allowed on or in the walls, ceilings, floors or any material that 

will deface, mar, or damage a finish.  ANY SUCH DAMAGE MAY RESULT IN AN EXTRA 

CHARGE FOR DAMAGES AND WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LEESSEE.  No 

shaving cream, toilet paper, silly string, rice, birdseed, sparklers, glitter, confetti (including 

decorative jewels) or the like will be thrown or used for decoration inside or outside the facility.  All 

candles must be self-contained.  If any of these items are found on the floor, additional clean- 

up/damage fees will be imposed on Lessee. 

C. Combustible decorative materials such as, but not limited to, cotton batting, paper, foam 

plastics, cloth, vegetation, moss straw, hay, vines, split bamboo, leaves and similar material shall not 

be used in the facility unless materials are flame resistant or have been treated with a fire retardant 

coating. The classification of fire retardant coatings shall apply only when the coating is applied at 

the rates of coverage and to the type or kind of surfaces indicated on the test report when the coating 

is applied in accordance with the manufacturer's directions supplied with the container. These 

coatings shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's direction. The applications shall be, 

certified by the applicator as being in conformance with the manufacturer's direction for application. 

A flame test will be done on the material before being approved by the Fire Official. 

WARNING!!!! You are advised to contact the Daphne Fire Marshal for approval of decorations at 

least fourteen (14) days prior to your event. Decorations not meeting the Fire Marshal's approval 

will not be allowed in the facility.  Lessee must present in writing to Lessor the approval from the 

Fire Marshal which will be kept on file.  

78



 

 SECTION VII: FLOOR PLANS 

 

The Lessee shall file with the Sales Assistant or Event Assistant at least fourteen (14) days 

prior to the occurrence of the event for which this agreement is issued, a full and detailed outline of 

all facilities required, stage, sound, and electrical requirements, table and chair set-up, and such 

other information as may be required by the Director for planning, staging and preparation for such 

event. The number of attendees is to be included on the Daphne Civic Center Lease Agreement. 

 

SECTION VIII:  INSURANCE  

A. By the acceptance of the lease agreement the Lessee covenants to indemnify, save and 

keep free and harmless the City of Daphne, its officers and employees, from and against any and 

all claims, demands, loss, liability, cost or expense of any kind or nature whatsoever which the 

City, its officers or employees, or any of them, may sustain or incur, or that may be imposed upon 

them, or any damages to property arising out of, connected with or attributable to the use and 

occupancy of the facility by Lessee. Lessee agrees to pay for any damage to the facility and for any 

damage to or loss of any City property resulting from the occupancy of said facility by Lessee or 

resulting from the conduct or actions of Lessee, its agents or employees, or any person, or person's 

participation in or attending the event during Lessee's occupancy.  

B. Simultaneously with the acceptance of this lease and as a condition precedent to the 

effectiveness hereof, Lessee shall procure and maintain, in full force, and effect during Lessee's 

occupancy of the facility, and during the term of this permit, a policy of public liability and 

property damage insurance from a reliable insurance company authorized to transact business in 

the State of Alabama. The insurance company must have a minimum rating of A- in the current 

issue of the A. M. Best Manual. The Lessee, the City, and its officers and employees shall be 

named co-insured in said policy and the policy shall cover the insured's against whom claim is or 

may be, in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. Said policy shall 

contain not less than the following limits of liability:  

$1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence. (Bodily injury and property damage)  

C. If the proposed use or occupancy by Lessee is such as to present a high degree of 

exposure to bodily injury or property damage, the Director may, in his/her discretion require higher 

limits of bodily injury and/or damage insurance.  

D. The policy shall provide that the same shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of 

this lease until the Director shall have received a ten-day written notice of such proposed 

cancellation. Said policy shall provide that the insurance afforded thereby shall be primary 

insurance to the full limits of liability stated in the declarations, and if the City, its officers and 

employees have other insurance against a loss covered by said policy, that such other insurance 

shall be excess insurance only.  

E. Lessee shall, coincidentally with the acceptance of this lease, deliver said policy of 

insurance, or certified photo static copy thereof, to the Director. Said policy shall be approved by 

the Director as to sufficiency.  

79



F. The signed Lease Agreement shall hold the City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center 

harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability arising or resulting from any injury to 

any visitor, spectator or participant in any activity in any part or portion of the Civic Center, 

regardless of entrance gained to said Civic Center whether by paid admissions, by pass issued by 

Lessee or Lessor or by any unlawful admission gained without knowledge of Lessor or Lessee. To 

indemnify Lessor as herein provided, Lessee shall carry public liability insurance with the 

coverage and the amount thereof to be specified and approved by the Director of the Civic Center 

with Lessee to furnish Lessor with a certificate of insurance or other satisfactory evidence of 

compliance with this requirement prior to commencement of Lessees event. This insurance 

requirement may be waived depending on circumstances.  

G. Upon approval of said policy, the same shall be filed with the Director or designee. 

After said policy has been so approved the Lessee shall file with the City a certificate of insurance 

issued by an insurance carrier certifying that the aforesaid insurance is in full force and effect and 

that all operations of the insured under the permit are covered thereby. In lieu of the presentation of 

the original policy, or of a certified photo static copy thereof, the Lessee may file a certificate of 

insurance to which is attached an endorsement in a form approved by the City Attorney. The 

endorsement shall provide that liability assumed by Lessee under this permit is covered by the 

policy, that the City, its officers, and employees, are named insured under said policy, and that in 

event of anyone of the insured's incurring liability to any other of the insured's, the policy shall 

cover the insured against whom claim is or may be made in the same manner as if separate policies 

have been issued to each, and that said insurance is primary insurance as set forth hereinabove. The 

endorsement shall also provide that the policy shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of the 

permit or until the Director shall have received a ten-day notice~ in writing of such proposed 

cancellation and that such endorsement controls over all other provisions of the policy, or 

endorsements thereto, which are inconsistent therewith. Lessee shall be responsible for all 

insurance deductibles.  

H. Liquor Liability Insurance must be obtained in an amount not less than $1,000,000 

and the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center must be listed as additional insured on the 

policy. Proof of this policy must be presented to the sales office not less than fourteen (14) 

days prior of the event. 

I.  Proof of all policies applicable must be presented to the Daphne Civic Center Sales 

Assistant not less than 14 days prior to event. 

 

SECTION IX:  
 
INVENTORY  

 

Facility inventory will not be loaned or permitted to be removed from the premises. These 

items include but are not limited to chairs, tables, podiums, audiovisual equipment, kitchen 

equipment, plants, decorations, or displays. The City of Daphne shall impose a fine of three 

hundred dollars ($300.00) for each violation in addition to a charge for damage.  

 

SECTION X:  
 
DEFACING OF PROPERTY  

 

A. The Lessee will not injure, nor mar, nor in any manner deface said premises, and shall 

not cause or permit anything to be done whereby the said premises shall be in any manner injured, 
80



marred or defaced, and will not drive or permit to be driven nails, hooks, tacks or screws into any 

part of said building, and will not make, or allow to be made, any alterations of any kind therein.  

Glue hooks or tacky putty will not be permitted (contact Civic Center Sales Assistant for 

suggestions). 

 

B. No decorations shall be placed in or on the building, nor shall any devices or signs be 

supported by any means on wall or woodwork without the consent of the Sales Agent. Sets, 

scenery, exhibit material, et cetera, shall be of flameproof material and conform to the Fire 

Prevention code of the City of Daphne.  

C. If said premises, or any portion of said building, during the term of the lease, shall be 

damaged by the act, default or negligence of the Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests, or any 

person admitted to said premises by Lessee, or unlawful admission gained, LESSEE WILL PAY 

TO THE LESSOR UPON DEMAND SUCH SUM AS SHALL BE NECESSARY TO RESTORE 

SAID PREMISES TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. The Lessee hereby assumes full 

responsibility for the character, acts and conduct of all persons admitted to said premises, or to any 

portion of said building by the consent of the said Lessee, or by or with the consent of any person 

acting for or on behalf of said Lessee, and said Lessee agrees to have on hand at all times sufficient 

Police and Fire Personnel to maintain order and protect persons and property.  Daphne Police and 

Fire Personnel will be provided at the expense of the Lessee. In addition, the City of Daphne's fine 

of three hundred dollars ($300.00) for Damage/Defacing City Property will be imposed.  
 

SECTION XI:  TICKET OUTLET SALES/BOX OFFICE 

 

A. All ticketed events will be handled through the Daphne Civic Center Sales office unless 

otherwise stated by the Director. The basic Box Office charge will be 5% of all Gross Ticket Sales. 

Civic Center Box Office sales and services are the exclusive right of the City of Daphne Civic 

Center.  

B. The Civic Center Ticket Office hours shall be 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through 

Friday.  

C. All tickets must be sold at advertised prices and any deviation must be approved in 

writing by the Director.  

D. All Moneys' collected for advance ticket sales must be paid in cash and are not be 

subject to 'draw' by the promoter until such time show time occurs, all specifications of the Civic 

Center Lease Agreement have been met and all funds have been collected which exceed Civic 

Center expenses therefore.  

E. Final show settlement payment will not be made until the final act has been on the stage 

at least 20 minutes and all box office transactions have been completed as well as all contractual 

agreements.  

F. All tickets purchased must be paid for in cash. The Director shall notify the Lessee if 

other payment plans are permissible.  

G. Back stage passes will only be accepted for admission of entertainers, stage crews and 81



business associates, and must be dated with the day and date of performance. These passes will be 

honored at the back stage door only and will not be admitted through regular ticket gates.  

H. Civic Center management will deal only with the individual who negotiated the contract 

or their duly authorized representative's with regards to box office transactions, show settlement, 

and facility usage.  

I. In the event of show cancellation, the Civic Center Director reserves the right to 

determine the ticket refund procedures. Refunds will be made at the outlet location of purchase 

only.  

J. Any deviation or changes to the stated regulations must be approved by the Civic Center 

Director.  

 

SECTION XII:  

 

POSTING BILLS  

 

A. The Lessee will not post or exhibit, nor allow to be posted or exhibited, signs, 

advertisements, show bills, lithographs, posters or cards of any description, inside or in front of, or 

on any part of said building except upon the regular billboards provided by the Lessor therefore 

and will use, post or exhibit only such signs, advertisements, show bills, lithographs, posters or 

cards upon said billboards as relate to the performance or exhibit to be given in the demised 

premises. Amounts and contents of Lessee's display advertising materials at the Civic Center shall 

be at the discretion of the Director.  

B. The Lessee shall take down and remove forthwith all signs, advertisements, show bills, 

lithographs, posters or cards of any description objected to by said Lessor, or its representatives.  

 SECTION XIII:  PASSAGEWAYS  

A. The Lessee will permit no chair or movable seat to be or remain in the passageways, and 

will keep said passageways clear at all times.  

B. No portion of the sidewalks, entries, passage, vestibules, halls, stairways, or access to 

public utilities or said building shall be obstructed by the Lessee, or used for any purpose other 

than for ingress to and from the demised premises. The doors, stairways, or openings that reflect or 

admit light into any place in the building, including hallways, corridors, passages, also house-

lighting attachments, shall not be covered or obstructed by the Lessee. The water closets or other 

water apparatus shall not be used for any purpose other than for which they were constructed, and 

no sweepings, rubbish, rags, papers or other substance shall be thrown therein. Any damage 

resulting to them from misuse of any nature or character whatever shall be paid for by the Lessee.  

 SECTION XIV:  REMOVAL OF PROPERTY  

A. All personal property, including rental items, brought into the Civic Center for any 

event must be dismantled and removed immediately following the event unless pre-approved by 

the Civic Center Director. Any personal property not removed shall become the property of the 

City of Daphne. The City of Daphne will hold all lost and found items for seven (7) days following 82



the event. Thereafter, the City reserves the right to dispose of all unclaimed items.  City of Daphne, 

Daphne Civic Center employees will be held harmless for any property approved by the Director 

to be left in the building or on Civic Center property.  Approval must be made at least ten (10) 

working days prior to start of event.  No exceptions will be made. 

B.  Civic Center employees, workers, volunteers, or any representative of the Civic Center 

cannot assist in the load-in, event set-up and/or load-out of any personal event or handle any 

personal property. 

 C. The Lessor shall have the sole right to collect and have the custody of articles left in the 

building by persons attending any performance, exhibition or entertainment given or held in the 

demised premises, and the Lessee, or any person in Lessee's employ shall not collect nor interfere 

with the collection or custody of such article.  

D. The Lessor reserves the right to remove from the building all effects remaining in 

building after time specified at the expense of the Lessee or to charge the daily rental as shown on 

the current Civic Center rate sheet for the area in which the effects have been left or stored.  

 

SECTION XV:  
 
BUILDING DEPARTURE  

 

Lessee shall agree that the music would be stopped, all bars must be closed and the 

building must be cleared at the ending time stated on the contract. If the Lessee goes over stated 

time on contract the Lessee will be charged with additional rental that must be paid at the time that 

the function goes over the ending time as is stated on the contract.  

 SECTION XVI:  WAIVED FEES  

All requests for waived fees must be sent in writing and addressed to the Civic Center 

Director. The Director will forward all requests to the Mayor, who shall have the final decision.   

 SECTION XVII:  RENTAL FEES 

A. Daphne Civic Center Minimum Rental Fees and hourly rates shall start as listed below:  
 

Entire Facility:    $1,250.00+$375.00 cleaning fee 

Exhibit Hall  

w/ Stage:     $565.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee 

(Exhibit Hall  

w/ Stage 2 Dressing Rooms):  $690.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee  

The Wisteria Reception Hall  

& North Gallery:   $345.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee  

North Gallery:    $65.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

South Gallery:    $65.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

The Willow:     $190.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

Kitchen:     $220.00 + $100.00 cleaning fee 

Greenroom:      $250.00 + $65.00 cleaning fee 

Greenroom/Dressing Room 2:  $300.00 + $125.00 cleaning fee 83



Greenroom/Dressing Room 2  

& Stage:    $375.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee  

Greenroom/Dressing Room 1,  

2 & Stage:    $425.00 + $250.00 cleaning fee   

Parking Lot     $25.00 per displayed vehicle 

 

B. In addition to the base rental fees the following hourly rates shall apply: $20.00 per 

hour for each hour of usage with a minimum of 4 hours required and $50.00 per hour of usage 

for all holidays.  The Director shall maintain an updated list of rental items which is to be 

treated as part of this Ordinance's fee schedule.  

C. Lease rates for the Daphne Civic Center are based on the prevailing rates as set forth 

in this Ordinance.  In addition to the base rental fees, depending on each events setup and 

needs to have a successful event, an additional labor fee may be required. This fee is at the 

discretion of the Civic Center Director and will be presented to lessee prior to the execution of 

Civic Center contract. 

D. The City shall apply rental proceeds to the operating requirements of the facility.  

E. Lessee shall not split rental hours.  

F. Lessee shall pay a $300.00 refundable damage deposit. The damage deposit will be 

refunded after the facility is inspected by Civic Center personnel and no damage is found.  Any 

additional damage charges over $300.00 will be charged to the lessee. 

G. If children are present during event, they must be supervised at all times and for 

safety/security reasons, should remain with parents or guardians.  Children will not be allowed in 

any non-rental or off-limit areas.  Any damaged or broken items caused from lack of supervision 

will be the Lessee’s responsibility. 

H.  Any event having 500+ attendees will be required to pay an additional cleaning fee of 

$300.00. 

SECTION XVIII:  CANCELLATIONS  

Cancellations must be in writing, dated and signed by the Lessee.   Reimbursements 

for cancelled events will be refunded as follows:  75% refund for cancellations received at least 

9 months prior to the day of start of event; 50% refund for cancellations received at least 6 

months prior to the day of start of event; no refunds will be made for cancellations received 

under 6 months prior to the day of start of event. Any exceptions to this rule must be approved 

by the Buildings and Property committee.  **Should Daphne Civic Center be able to book 

another event of equal or greater economic value, then 100% refund will be issued.  Refunds 

will be issued by check.   

 SECTION XIX:  CLEANING FEES  

Cleaning fees are mandatory and are based on the prevailing rates as prescribed in this 
84



ordinance.  Any event having 500+ attendees will be required to pay an additional cleaning fee of 

$300.00. 

 

SECTION XX:  
 
SECURITY (FIRE/POLICE)  

 

A. The City of Daphne Police Department and Fire Department reserve the right to determine 

the appropriate amount of security and fire protection needed for any and all events held at the Daphne 

Civic Center. The Lessee shall provide security and/or fire protection if it is determined necessary for 

any event. If security and/or fire protection is required, it must be obtained through the City of Daphne 

Police Department and the City of Daphne Fire Department no later than fourteen (14) days prior to an 

event. If the Lessee fails to provide the required security or fire protection, a fine of $300.00 shall be 

imposed and the relation of the landlord and tenant at the option of Lessor shall cease and terminate 

and the relation of the parties shall be the same in all respects as if said term had fully expired. The 

Lessor may re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate, remove all persons 

therefrom, and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such possession.  

B. The Lessor reserves the right through its Director or his/her representatives to eject any 

objectionable person or persons from said building, and upon the exercise of this authority through its 

Director, agents or policemen, the Lessee hereby waives any rights and all claims for damages against 

the Management.  

C. The Lessee shall not, without written consent of the Lessor, put up or operate any engine or 

motor machinery on the demised premises, or use oils, burning fluids, camphene, kerosene, naphtha, or 

gasoline for either mechanical or other purposes or any other agent than natural gas or electricity for 

illuminating the demised premises.  

D. Should an event require security, then Lessee shall comply with Ala. Code § 6-5-338 (1975) 

by the purchasing of general liability insurance in the amount of $100,000.00 per off-duty officer. 

 SECTION XXI:  ALCOHOL/BEVERAGE  

A. Consumption of alcohol will be allowed inside the facility only during the time of 

function. No Alcohol/beverages shall be allowed on the dance floor at any time. Consumption of 

alcohol is not allowed in the parking lot or on the grounds of the facility. The City of Daphne is not 

liable for accidents, deaths, or injuries that may occur as a result of the consumption of alcohol.  

B. The Lessee shall be fined three hundred dollars ($300.00) by the City of Daphne for 

violation by Lessee, Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests, or any person admitted to said 

premises by Lessee per occurrence.  

C. No Alcohol shall be "SOLD" on the grounds or inside of the Daphne Civic Center 

without proper permits or license.   

D.  Distribution of alcohol is to be made in one of the following forms: 

a. Alcohol and/or all mixers may be brought by attendees and checked at the 

door where a bartender (hired by Lessee) will distribute alcohol for the 

duration of the event. Said bartender must be 21 years of age or older and 85



must possess any and all then applicable licensing pursuant to local, state, 

and federal law. 

b. An event may contract with a licensed caterer for said event to set up cash 

bar or distribute alcohol. A licensed caterer is one that has purchased the 

requisite host liquor liability insurance, a City of Daphne business license, 

and attained all requisite alcohol licensing. 

E. Should an event have alcohol, host liquor liability insurance in a minimum amount of 

$1,000,000.00 must be purchased. All insurance certificates and proof of requisite licensing must 

be on file at least 14 days prior to the event. 
 

F.  Alcohol shall not be served or sold to anyone under 21 years of age.  

 

G.  Appropriate police action will be taken against any person deemed to be intoxicated and 

posing a danger to himself or others.  

 

H.   A list of bartenders and/or caterers possessing additional voluntary certifications(s), 

provided through alcoholic beverage distributors for the serving of alcoholic beverages, may be 

provided by the Civic Center upon request. 

SECTION XXII:  SMOKING   

ALL CITY OF DAPHNE BUILDINGS ARE SMOKE FREE 20 FEET FROM ANY AND 

ALL ENTRANCES. There will be no smoking in the Daphne Civic Center. A fine of three hundred 

dollars ($300.00) shall be imposed per occurrence by the City of Daphne. A three hundred dollar 

($300.00) cleaning fine shall be imposed on the Lessee if smoking has occurred in the Daphne Civic 

Center. 

 SECTION XXIII:  PETS  

No pets allowed inside the facility other than those for the express use by disabled persons, 

or by permission of the Civic Center Director.  

 

SECTION XXIV:     BUILDING ACCESS  

The City will provide reasonable access according to the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

 

 SECTION XXV:      THEFT  

The City of Daphne is not responsible for theft of property on the grounds of the Daphne Civic 

Center, in automobiles, in the facility or any other structure on the property.  

SECTION XXVI:  HEAVY METAL/RAP/ALTERNATIVE CONCERTS  

A. The City of Daphne has set forth the following guidelines to establish rules and regulations 

for Heavy Metal, Rap, and Alternative concerts in effort to provide a safe and enjoyable concert 

experience for attendees.  86



B. The Daphne City Council must approve all heavy metal, rap, and alternative concerts prior 

to the concert booking. The Buildings and Property Committee will determine if a concert is 

Alternative. The following are necessary:  

1 . Names of all artists to appear must be provided to the Civic Center Director.  

2. Date of the event and ticket information must be provided to the Civic Center Director.  

3. A letter stating that approved security and fire arrangements have been made for the concert 

from the Daphne Police Department and Daphne Fire Department must be presented to the 

Civic Center Director. All special effects must be approved by the Fire Marshal and a letter 

stating this information must be provided to the Director. 

4. A letter of approval must be obtained from the Civic Center Director and presented to the 

Buildings and Property Committee along with the above listed documentation. The Buildings 

and Property Committee will make recommendation to the full City Council. The Civic Center 

Director shall provide the Council's approval or disapproval to the proposed Lessee.  

5. A security bond or deposit may be required for potential damages. If required, the bond or 

deposit must be presented to the Director no later than thirty (30) days prior to the event.  

6. A five hundred-dollar cleaning fee may be required.  

7. The promoter must obtain a public liability and property damage policy in an amount not 

less than $3,000,000. The policy must be written by an insurance company licensed to do 

business in the State of Alabama and having a minimum rating of A- in the current issue of the 

A. M. Best Manual. The policy must name the City of Daphne and the Daphne Civic Center as 

additional insured. This certificate must be presented to the Director at least thirty (30) days 

prior to the scheduled concert.  

8. If required by the State of Alabama, a promoter must obtain Liquor Liability Insurance 

in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and must list the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic 

Center as additional insured on the policy. Proof of this policy must be presented to the 

sales office not less than one week prior of the event.  

9. House lights are not allowed to go dark. A minimum of 20% of house lights must be on 

at all times.  

10. An addendum may be required to the contract if any of the performing acts have a 

history of performing songs or making statements that are considered by the Daphne City 

Council to incite or provoke violence by the audience.  

11. Other rules and regulations as deemed necessary by the Director, Buildings and 

Property Committee, or Daphne City Council may apply.  

 

87



SECTION XXVII:  SOUND EQUIPMENT  

A. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may occur from the result 

of sound, lighting, or electrical equipment being utilized by the Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, or, 

guests from any cause whatsoever, prior, during or subsequent to the period covered by the lease and 

the said Lessee will .release said Lessor from, and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for 

such loss, damage or injury.  

  

B. Any damage to the City of Daphne, Civic Center sound, lighting, or electrical equipment 

shall be at the expense of the Lessee when Lessee utilizes said equipment or services. Civic Center 

personnel, The City of Daphne Police Department, or any authorized city employee can request that 

the Lessee or their agents desist from utilizing city property at any time.  

C. The Civic Center must be notified of all sound and lighting requirements at least 

fourteen (14) days prior to the event.  

SECTION XXVIII:  FEE WAIVERS  

A. The City of Daphne shall provide the following fee waivers with no others to be 

considered in Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first 

serve basis.  

1. DAPHNE CIVIC CENTER REDUCED RATE PROGRAM MONDAY, TUESDAY &                  

    WEDNESDAY  

(a) This program will apply to all with the following exceptions. This program 

excludes paid concerts, all for profit events, Mardi Gras balls/meetings and fund 

raising events. These events will pay full fare.  

All rental items remain the same. The reduced rate will consist of half rate for the 

base rental fee. The cleaning fee will remain the same. The booking includes four 

(4) hours of usage and must be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Any 

usage over four (4) hours and any hours used after 5:00 p.m. will be charged an 

additional $20.00 per hour. If requested, the City of Daphne, Daphne Civic Center 

shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday that 

is a holiday or city holiday will be charged all regular holiday rates.  

All bookings remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is not to be used for 

continued bookings. The City of Daphne reserves: the right to deny any group or 

organization usage of these provisions.  

 

2. DAPHNE CIVIC CENTER REDUCED RATE PROGRAM (CIVIC GROUPS AND NOT   

    FOR PROFITS - 501-C3 MONDAY, TUESDAY & WEDNESDAY)  

 

(b) This program will apply to all civic groups that are not for profit and have a 501-C3 

status. Proof of this status is required. This program excludes paid concerts, all for profit 

events, and fund raising events. These events will pay full fare ~ All rental items remain 

the same. The reduced rate will consist of a waived base fee, full rate on cleaning fees, 

and a $20.00 per hour charge. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday booking that is a 
88



holiday or city holiday will be charged all regular holiday rates. If requested, the City of 

Daphne, Daphne Civic Center shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. All bookings 

remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is not to be used for continued 

bookings. The City of Daphne reserves the right to deny any group or organization 

usage of these provisions. All groups utilizing this reduced rate program must use the 

facility between 8:00 am to 10:00 p.m. All groups that have not left the facility by 10:00 

p.m. will be charged all regular rates.  

 3.  CITY OF DAPHNE DEPARTMENTS FOR CONDUCTING CITY BUSINESS.  

(a) The City of Daphne encourages all City Departments to utilize the Daphne Civic 

Center for your entire department booking needs. For tracking purposes all City 

departments must estimate their projected bookings for the Civic Center and budget 

all fees, rental items, cleaning fees, and per hour charges needed at regular rates for 

their facility functions. The department may submit in writing to the Director a 

request to wave base rental fees only. The decision will be based on the criteria for 

event, time of day and year and day of week.  The approval of this request will be at 

the discretion of the Director and/or Mayor.  Invoices will be routed from the Civic 

Center to the Finance Department for journal entry after each event. The Finance 

Department will notify the Civic Center sales office when the journal entry is 

complete and make report to the Buildings and Property Committee at the monthly 

meeting.  

4. CITY EMPLOYEES FOR PERSONAL BUSINESS 

 (a)  Current City of Daphne employees will be entitled to a 20% discount off of base 

rental rates only for events that the employee is hosting.  This discount is not applicable for 

family or friends, only the employee him/herself.  All rules, guidelines and all other fees of this 

ordinance apply.  The employee must make a request in writing which should include type of 

event, day and time.  The approval of this request will be at the discretion of the Director and/or 

Mayor.  Should for any reason the employee violate the guidelines mentioned above, said 

employee will not be entitled to this benefit in the future and will be responsible for full base 

rental rate which will be deducted from damage fee or billed with additional damage fee. 

 

SECTION XXIX:  BOOKING POLICY - ALL OTHER GROUPS  

If an organization or group desires to book the same date continually, year after year, such 

organizations must submit a letter to the Director making such request listing the exact dates and 

years that the organization is requesting and all facility needs. All base fees must be paid in 

advance for the first two consecutive years. At the end of the second year a new request must be 

made in writing and delivered to the sales department of the Civic Center no later than 7 days after 

the second year event for the following two years, along with the fees for the next two years. Future 

bookings will also be secured using the same guidelines. All bookings are on a first come first 

serve basis.  

 89



SECTION XXX:  PENALTY  

A. Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be punished 

by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or by 

imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6) months, or both, at the discretion of the Municipal 

Judge.  

B. This Ordinance shall also be subject to enforcement by the issuance of a summons and 

complaint. 

SECTION XXXI:  REPEALER  

Ordinance Nos. 2004-20 and 2010-49 are hereby repealed in their entirety. All other City 

Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they 

conflict, are hereby repealed.  

SECTION XXXII:  SEVERABILITY  

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or 

part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of the Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence : and part thereof separately and independently of each other.  

SECTION XXXII:  EFFECTIVE DATE  

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval and adoption by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this the 7
th

 day of February, 2011. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, 

Council President 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Fred Small, 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

90



Page 1 of 20 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-58 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NOS. 2011-09 AND ESTABLISHING 

RULES, REGULATIONS, RATES AND A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE RENTAL 

OF THE BAYFRONT PARK PAVILION 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires that all citizens of the City of 

Daphne and guests thereof be able to peaceably use and enjoy the Bayfront Park Pavilion; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health and 

safety of the citizens of the City of Daphne by providing rental schedules, rules, regulations and 

a lease agreement for the rental of the Bayfront Park Pavilion, and,  

WHEREAS, changes in policy have mandated the repealing of the preceding Ordinance 

establishing rules, regulations, rates, and a lease agreement for the rental of the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION I:  DEFINITIONS 

 

For the purpose of this Ordinance the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations shall 

have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 

present tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include the singular number 

and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" is always 

mandatory and not merely directive. 

 

1. Lessor: The City of Daphne and Bayfront Park Pavilion. 

2. Lessee:  Signer of City of Daphne Bayfront Park Pavilion Lease Agreement. 

3. Facility:  Bayfront Park Pavilion. 

4. Event: The purpose for which facility is leased. 

 

SECTION II:  RULES AND REGULATIONS—GENERAL 

 

The Director is authorized to execute on behalf of the City of Daphne, the Bayfront Park   

Pavilion lease agreement as approved by the City Council. The following rules apply: 

 

1. Governmental functions will take precedence over all other functions. All other 

reservations are on a first come first served basis. 

 

91



Page 2 of 20 

2. The Lease agreement must be executed by persons 21 years of age or older and the 

executor of said lessee agreement must be in attendance at the event. 

 

3. Dates will not be considered "booked" prior to the completion of a City of Daphne 

Bayfront Park Pavilion Lease Agreement and payment of applicable fees. 

 

4. The performance of this Agreement shall terminate without liability upon the occurrence 

of any circumstance beyond the control of Lessor – such as emergency use of the facility 

as a distribution or dispensing center, acts of God, fire, storm, pestilence, war, terrorism, 

disaster, Federal regulations, strikes, civil disorder, criminal acts, curtailment of 

transportation facilities or any other casualty or unforeseen occurrence – to the extent that 

such circumstances make it illegal or impossible to provide or use of the facilities.  

Notice may be provided by Lessor at the earliest practicable time however is not required 

to absolve Lessor of liability under this paragraph. Lessee shall pay rental for said 

premises only up to the time of such termination, at the rate specified on the Lease 

Agreement and the said Lessee waives any claim for damages or compensation should 

the lease be so terminated.  Should termination due to unforeseen events as described 

above occur prior to any actual use of the facility, Lessee shall be refunded all reservation 

fees that have not been obligated by Lessor. 

 

5. City personnel will inspect the facility after each event.  If damage is found, lessee will 

be notified of charges to be deducted from damage deposit or of additional charges 

beyond damage deposit. 

 

6. Garbage cans, trash bags, rest room supplies, and outside trash receptacles will be 

supplied for Lessee use with the exception of Mardi Gras groups, or other large groups as 

determined by the Director. Additional charges may apply. 

 

7. City functions must portray the City of Daphne in the best light for the good and benefit 

of the citizens of Daphne. 

 

8. Additional services, personnel and/or equipment (other than those specified at the time of 

lease) which may be requested and utilized will be additionally charged based on 

Bayfront Park Pavilion prevailing rates. 

 

9. Security, firefighters and other personnel will be charged at the prevailing rates per hour. 

Lessee must make necessary arrangements. 

 

10. Arrangements must be confirmed at least fourteen (14) days in advance of an event so as 

to schedule the personnel, equipment and services required. 

 

11. The Lessor requires that only trained city personnel use and handle facility equipment 

during events and set-ups. 

 

92



Page 3 of 20 

12. The Lessee is charged with the responsibility of paying all applicable City, County, and 

State sales tax on admissions and sales at the Bayfront Pavilion as well as applicable 

license fees. 

 

13. All fees shall be paid 14 (fourteen) days prior to the event. Exceptions may be made for 

State, County, and those approved by the Director. 

 

14. The Lessor will bill any final charges that cannot be determined prior to, during, or after 

the event by Bayfront Park personnel. These fees must be paid no later than 7 days after 

the event date. All accounts that are not paid within the 7 days will be turned in for 

collection.  In accordance with paragraph 22 of this Agreement any cost, including but 

not limited to attorney fees, incurred by attempts to recover said fees, Lessee shall pay 

such costs. 

 

15. Lessee agrees to pay for all fees in lawful money of the United States of America, 

cashier’s check, personal checks, or company checks at the Sales Office of the Bayfront 

Park Pavilion. Lessee further agrees to pay said Lessor on demand any sum which may 

be due to said Lessor for additional services and/or accommodation for material furnished 

or provided to said Lessee. 

 

16. The Lessee will comply with all laws of the United States, and of the State of Alabama, 

all ordinances of the City of Daphne, Alabama and all rules and requirements of the 

Police and Fire Departments, or other municipal authorities of the City of Daphne, and 

will obtain and pay for all necessary permits and licenses, and will not do nor suffer to be 

done, anything on said premises during the term of the lease in violation of any such 

laws, ordinances, rules or requirements, and if Lessor calls any such violation to the 

attention of the Lessee, or any person employed by or admitted to the said premises by 

said Lessee, such Lessee will immediately desist from and correct such violation.  Lessee 

will provide Lessor with a copy of all necessary permits and licenses fourteen (14) days 

in advance from start of event. 

 

17. No performance, exhibition or entertainment shall be given or held on said demised 

premises, which shall be objected to by the Lessor. 

 

18. The City of Daphne, Bayfront Park Pavilion, employees, or agents shall not be 

responsible for any misrepresentation of or failure to perform by any promoter, agent, 

group, or act that is not booked by the City of Daphne or Bayfront Park Pavilion. 

 

19. LESSEE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE EXECUTION BY LESSOR OF THE LEASE 

AGREEMENT REPRESENTS AND GUARANTEES TO LESSOR THAT 

PERFORMERS BY THEIR SPEECH, SONG, MUSIC, CONDUCT, OR MANNER 

WILL NOT VIOLATE OR INCITE OTHERS TO VIOLATE ANY STATUTE, LAW, 

ORDINANCE, RULE, REGULATION OR ORDER OF ANY FEDERAL, STATE, 

MUNICIPAL OR OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY. 

 

93



Page 4 of 20 

a. If performers speak, sing, play, perform or otherwise act in any manner which shall 

cause Lessor or any person, organization, or authority whose duty it is to enforce any 

such statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order to maintain public safety on the 

premises, think that performers have violated or incited others to violate any such 

statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order, the Lessor shall have the absolute 

right in its sole discretion to terminate the performance in progress and, regardless of 

whether the performance is terminated, to delay and withhold payment and settlement 

of all accounts and funds related to money collected or received by Lessor under this 

agreement until completion of an investigation relating to any incident thought to be 

such a violation. Lessee agrees to hold Lessor harmless from any and all damages 

suffered or sustained by reason of the termination of any performance and will defend 

any suit instituted against Lessor arising out of such termination at Lessee's expense, 

all in addition to the remedies otherwise given Lessor herein. 

 

b. If upon completion of the investigation Lessor concludes that performers have 

violated· and/or incited others to violate any such statute, law, ordinance, rule, 

regulation or order, then Lessee shall be deemed to have committed material breach 

of the Lease Agreement, for which breach Lessee shall be liable to the Lessor. The 

Lessee and the Lessor hereto acknowledge and agree that it will be impossible to 

measure actual damages to premises as the result of a breach of this agreement arising 

out of a violation or incitement of others to violate any statute, law, ordinance, rule, 

regulation or order as aforesaid, and therefore, the parties have agreed to the sum of 

$5,000.00 as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, which amount Lessee hereby 

authorizes Lessor to deduct from any accounts or funds held or received by Lessor 

prior to any payment to Lessee if monies are due or Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the 

agreed sum of $5,000.00 as stated above or pay the actual damage amount which will 

be determined after inspection and or repair of damage. 

 

20. The Lessee shall not admit to said premises a larger number of persons than the seating 

capacity thereof will accommodate, or can safely or freely move about in said rented 

areas, and the decision of the Fire Marshal in this respect shall be final.  The Bayfront 

Pavilion Director and their agents shall maintain an updated occupancy table with limits 

pursuant to City of Daphne Fire Marshal’s regulations which is to be treated as part of 

this Ordinance. 

 

21. In rendering said space to the Lessee; the Lessor does not relinquish the right to control 

the management thereof or to enforce all the necessary and proper rules for the 

management and operation of the same. The City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion, their agents, and their employees may enter said building and all the demised 

premises, at any time and on any occasion in performance of their duties and 

responsibilities. 

 

22. The Lessee agrees to pay reasonable attorney's fees on any part of said rental or service 

charge that may be collected by suit or by attorney after said rental or service charge is 

past due.  

 

94



Page 5 of 20 

23. The Lessee shall not permit the demised premises to be used for lodging rooms, or for 

any improper, immoral or objectionable purpose.  

 

24. The Lessee shall not assign the lease, nor suffer any use of said premises, other than 

specified, nor subject the same premises or any part thereof, without the written consent 

of the Lessor.  

 

25. The Lessee waives all right under the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama or 

any other state to claim personal property exempt as against any liability, debt or 

obligation arising under the contract.  

 

26. Lessee shall make all necessary arrangements with the union business agents of all trades 

involved in their presentation of their event.  

 

27. The Bayfront Park Pavilion and the keys thereto shall be at all times under the charge and 

control of the Bayfront Park Pavilion personnel. All exceptions must be approved by the 

Director.  

 

28. That Lessee shall agree that if any default is made in the payment of the rent or any part 

thereof or if any default is made in the covenant or agreement the letting and the relation 

of landlord and tenant at the option of Lessor, shall cease and terminate and the relation 

of the parties shall be the same in all respect as if said term had fully expired, and the said 

Lessor may re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate therein, 

remove all persons there from and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such 

possession and the said Lessee shall notwithstanding such re-enter and must pay the full 

amount of said lease for the facility, services, and any usage fees as herein agreed to be 

paid.  

 

29. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may happen to the 

lessee, or the Lessee's agent, employees, property, guests from any cause whatsoever, 

prior, during or subsequent to the period covered by the lease and the said Lessee will 

release said Lessor from, and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for such 

loss, damage or injury.  

 

30. That in the handling, control, custody and keeping of receipts and funds, whether the 

same are received through the box office or otherwise, the Lessor is acting for the 

accommodations and sole benefit of the Lessee, and that as to such receipts, and funds 

the Lessor shall be responsible only for gross neglect or bad faith.  

 

31. Any matters not expressly provided for shall be in the discretion of the City of Daphne 

Mayor, City Council and/or Bayfront Director.  

 

32. That all terms and conditions of the written lease shall be binding upon the parties, their 

heirs and assigns, and cannot be varied or waived by any oral representations or promise 

of any agent or other person of the parties hereto unless the same be in writing and 

mutually signed by the duly authorized agent or agents who executed the lease. See 

95



Page 6 of 20 

attached Lease Agreement and information sheet which is incorporated by reference as if 

fully set forth herein.  

 

33. The signed Lease Agreement will hold the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability for compensation 

under the Alabama Workmen's Compensation law or similar laws arising out of injuries 

sustained by any employees of Lessee or of any contractor or subcontractor under Lessee.  

 

34. Renters shall adhere to all signs posted at location.  

 

35. The Mayor and/or his designee are authorized to promulgate and post rules and 

regulations at the facility which provide for proper operation and protect the health, 

safety, and welfare of persons attending events at the facility.  

 

36. Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, guests, or anyone entering the building that are under 

the supervision of the Lessee may not move or remove any City owned decorations or 

property in the facility.  Doing so will be in violation of said ordinance and may incur 

additional damage fees. 

 

37. Lessor reserves the right to refuse to lease to any person, group or organization known to 

willfully violate any provisions of this ordinance 

 

SECTION III:  ADVERTISING 

 

A. All advertising will be straightforward, accurate, and true and when admission is charged, 

must state the total admission prices. Advertising of any event or the appearance of any 

performer, selling of tickets, acquiring sponsorships, selling of tradeshow booths or the 

like is prohibited until all contracts between all parties involved have been properly executed 

and exhibited to the Director is prohibited.  

 

 

B. All advertising with reference to the Bayfront Park Pavilion and use of Bayfront Park 

Pavilion by city departments or otherwise must be approved by the Director of the Bayfront 

Park Pavilion prior to usage.  

 

SECTION IV:  COPYRIGHT 

 

Lessee/Artist/Promoter warrants at the signing of the Lease Agreement that all copyrighted 

material to be performed has been duly licensed or authorized by the copyright owners or their 

representatives and agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion harmless from any and all claims, losses, or expenses incurred with regard thereto. 

 

SECTION V:  CONCESSION 

 

The Lessor relinquishes all food and beverage concession rights to the Lessee. All City, County, 

and State taxes and fees apply. 

96



Page 7 of 20 

 

SECTION VI:  DECORATIONS 

 

A. The Lessor requires that all decorations, signs, and posters must be coordinated with 

Bayfront Park Pavilion personnel prior to placing or erecting in the Bayfront Park Pavilion 

building or on facility grounds.   

 

B. All decorations must be free standing.  No nails, tacks, brackets, glue or self-adhesive tape or 

any other similar items will be allowed on or in the walls, ceilings, floors or any material that 

will deface, mar, or damage a finish.  ANY SUCH DAMAGE MAY RESULT IN AN 

EXTRA CHARGE FOR DAMAGES AND WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 

LEESSEE.  No shaving cream, toilet paper, silly string, rice, birdseed, sparklers, glitter, 

confetti (including decorative jewels) or the like will be thrown or used for decoration inside 

or outside the facility. ALL FIRE MUST BE 30 FEET FROM THE BUILDING; 

ABSOLUTLEY NO FIRE INSIDE OR ON DECK.  If any of these items are found on the 

floor, additional clean-up/damage fees will be imposed on Lessee. 

 

C. Combustible decorative materials such as, but not limited to, cotton batting, paper, foam 

plastics, cloth, vegetation, moss straw, hay, vines, split bamboo, leaves and similar material 

shall not be used in the facility unless materials are flame resistant or have been treated with 

a fire retardant coating. The classification of fire retardant coatings shall apply only when the 

coating is applied at the rates of coverage and to the type or kind of surfaces indicated on the 

test report when the coating is applied in accordance with the manufacturer's directions 

supplied with the container. These coatings shall be applied in accordance with the 

manufacturer's direction. The applications shall be certified by the applicator as being in 

conformance with the manufacturer's direction for application. A flame test will be done on 

the material before being approved by the Fire Official. WARNING!!! You are advised to 

contact the Daphne Fire Marshal for approval of decorations at least 2 weeks prior to 

your event. Decorations not meeting the Fire Marshal's approval will not be allowed in 

the facility. Lessee must present in writing to Lessor the approval from the Fire Marshal 

which will be kept on file. 

 

SECTION VII:  FLOOR PLANS 

 

A. The Lessee shall file with the Sales Office or Event Office at least fourteen (14) days prior to 

the occurrence of the event for which this agreement is issued, a full and detailed outline of 

all facilities required, stage requirements, table and chair set-up, and such other information 

as may be required by the Director for planning, staging and preparation for such event. The 

number of attendees is to be included on the Bayfront Park Pavilion Lease Agreement.  

 

B. Occupancy Limits. Pursuant to City of Daphne Fire Department regulations: 

 

Room Square Ft. Chairs/people Chairs/Tables 

Sunset 4,500 290 210/21 

97



Page 8 of 20 

Jubilee 1,200 49 50/10 

  

SECTION VIII: INSURANCE 

 

A. By the acceptance of the lease agreement the Lessee covenants to indemnify, save and keep 

free and harmless the City of Daphne, its officers and employees, from and against any and 

all claims, demands, loss, liability, cost or expense of any kind or nature whatsoever which 

the City, its officers or employees, or any of them, may sustain or incur, or that may be 

imposed upon them, or any damages to property arising out of, connected with or attributable 

to the use and occupancy of the facility by Lessee. Lessee agrees to pay for any damage to 

the facility and for any damage to or loss of any City property resulting from the occupancy 

of said facility by Lessee or resulting from the conduct or actions of Lessee, its agents or 

employees, or any person, or person's participation in or attending the event during Lessee's 

occupancy.  

 

B. Simultaneously with the acceptance of this lease and as a condition precedent to the 

effectiveness hereof, Lessee shall procure and maintain, in full force, and effect during 

Lessee's occupancy of the facility, and during the term of this permit, a policy of public 

liability and property damage insurance from a reliable insurance company authorized to 

transact business in the State of Alabama. The insurance company must have a minimum 

rating of A- in the current issue of the A. M. Best Manual. The Lessee, the City, and its 

officers and employees shall be named co-insured in said policy and the policy shall cover 

the insured's against whom claim is or may be, in the same manner as if separate policies had 

been issued to each. Said policy shall contain not less than the following limits of liability:  

 

$1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence. (Bodily injury and property damage)  

 

C. If the proposed use or occupancy by Lessee is such as to present a high degree of exposure to 

bodily injury or property damage, the Director may, in his/her discretion require higher limits 

of bodily injury and/or damage insurance.  

 

D. The policy shall provide that the same shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of this 

lease until the Director shall have received a ten-day written notice of such proposed 

cancellation. Said policy shall provide that the insurance afforded thereby shall be primary 

insurance to the full limits of liability stated in the declarations, and if the City I its officers 

and employees have other insurance against a loss covered by said policy, that such other 

insurance shall be excess insurance only.  

 

E. Lessee shall, coincidentally with the acceptance of this lease, deliver said policy of insurance, 

or certified photo static copy thereof, to the Director. Said policy shall be approved by the 

Director as to sufficiency.  

 

F. The signed lease Agreement shall hold the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park Pavilion 

harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability arising or resulting from any 

injury to any visitor, spectator or participant in any activity in any part or portion of the 

Bayfront Park, regardless of entrance gained to said Bayfront Park Pavilion whether by paid 

98



Page 9 of 20 

admissions, by pass- issued by Lessee or Lessor or by any unlawful admission gained 

without knowledge of Lessor or Lessee. To indemnify Lessor as herein provided, Lessee 

shall carry public liability insurance with the coverage and the amount thereof to be specified 

and approved by the Director of the Bayfront Park Pavilion with Lessee to furnish Lessor 

with a certificate of insurance or other satisfactory evidence of compliance with this 

requirement prior to commencement of Leasees event. This insurance requirement may be 

waived depending on circumstances.  

 

G. Upon approval of said policy, the same shall be filed with the Director or designee. After said 

policy has been so approved the Lessee shall file with the City a certificate of insurance 

issued by an insurance carrier certifying that the aforesaid insurance is in full force and effect 

and that all operations of the insured under the permit are covered thereby. In lieu of the 

presentation of the original policy, or of a certified photo static copy thereof, the Lessee may 

file a certificate of insurance to which is attached an endorsement in a form approved by the 

City Attorney. The endorsement shall provide that liability assumed by Lessee under this 

permit is covered by the policy, that the City, its officers, and employees, are named insured 

under said policy, and that in event of anyone of the insured's incurring liability to any other 

of the insured's, the policy shall cover the insured against whom claim is or may be made in 

the same manner as if separate policies have been issued to each, and that said insurance is 

primary insurance as set forth hereinabove. The endorsement shall also provide that the 

policy shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of the permit or until the Director shall 

have received a ten-day notice in writing of such proposed cancellation and that such 

endorsement controls over all other provisions of the policy, or endorsements thereto, which 

are inconsistent therewith. Lessee shall be responsible for all insurance deductibles.  

 

H. Host Liquor Liability Insurance must be obtained in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and 

the City of Daphne, Bayfront Park Pavilion must be listed as additionally insured on the 

policy. Proof of this policy must be presented to the sales office not less than fourteen (14) 

days prior of the event.   

 

I. Proof of all policies applicable must be presented to the Bayfront Pavilion Sales Office not 

less than fourteen (14) days prior to event. 

 

SECTION IX:  INVENTORY 

 

Facility inventory will not be loaned or permitted to be removed from the premises. These items 

include but are not limited to chairs, tables, podiums, audiovisual equipment, kitchen equipment, 

plants, decorations, or displays. The City of Daphne shall impose a fine of three hundred dollars 

($300.00) for each violation in addition to a charge for damage. 

 

SECTION X:  DEFACING OF PROPERTY 

 

A. The Lessee will not injure, nor mar, nor in any manner deface said premises, and shall not 

cause or permit anything to be done whereby the said premises shall be in any manner 

injured, marred or defaced; and will not drive or permit to be driven nails, hooks, tacks or 

screws into any part of said building, and will not make, or allow to be made, any alterations 

99



Page 10 of 20 

of any kind therein. Glue hooks or tacky putty will not be permitted (contact Bayfront 

Pavilion Sales Assistant for suggestions). 

 

B. No decorations shall be placed in or on the building, nor shall any devices or signs be 

supported by any means on wall or woodwork without the consent of the Sales Agent. Sets, 

scenery, exhibit material, et cetera, shall be of flameproof material and conform to the Fire 

Prevention code of the City of Daphne.  

 

C. If said premises, or any portion of said building, during the term of the lease, shall be 

damaged by the act, default or negligence of the Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests 

or any person admitted to said premises by Lessee, or unlawful admission gained, LESSEE 

WILL PAY TO THE LESSOR UPON DEMAND SUCH SUM AS SHALL BE 

NECESSARY TO RESTORE SAID PREMISES TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. The 

Lessee hereby assumes full responsibility for the character, acts and conduct of all persons 

admitted to said premises, or to any portion of said building by the consent of the said 

Lessee, or by or with the consent of any person acting for or on behalf of said Lessee, and 

said Lessee agrees to have on hand at all times sufficient Police and Fire Personnel to 

maintain order and protect persons and property. Daphne Police and Fire Personnel will be 

provided at the expense of the Lessee. Fire Personnel to maintain order and protect persons 

and property.  Daphne Police and fire Personnel will be provided at the expense of the 

Lessee. In addition, the City of Daphne's fine of three hundred dollars ($300.00) for 

Damage/Defacing City Property will be imposed. 

 

SECTION XI: TICKET OUTLET SALES/BOX OFFICE 

 

A. The City of Daphne stipulates that all ticketed events will be handled through the Bayfront 

Park Pavilion Sales office unless otherwise stated by the Director. The basic Box Office 

charge will be 5% of all Gross Ticket Sales. Bayfront Park Pavilion Box Office sales and 

services are the exclusive right of Bayfront Park Pavilion. 

 

B. The Bayfront Park Pavilion Ticket Office hours shall be 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday 

through Friday.  

 

C. All tickets must be sold at advertised prices and any deviation must be approved in writing 

by the Director.  

 

D. All Moneys' collected for advance ticket sales must be paid in cash and are not be subject to 

'draw' by the promoter until such time show time occurs, all specifications of the Bayfront 

Park Pavilion Lease Agreement have been met and all funds have been collected which 

exceed Bayfront Park Pavilion expenses therefore.  

 

E. All tickets purchased must be paid for in cash. The Director shall notify the Lessee if other 

payment plans are permissible.  

 

100



Page 11 of 20 

F. The Bayfront Park Pavilion management will deal only with the individual who negotiated 

the contract or their duly authorized representative's with regards to box office transactions, 

show settlement, and facility usage.  

 

G. In the event of show cancellation, the Bayfront Park Pavilion Director reserves the right to 

determine the ticket refund procedures. Refunds will be made at the outlet location of 

purchase only.  

 

H. Any deviation or changes to the stated regulations must be approved by the Director.  

 

SECTION XII: POSTING BILLS 

 

A. The Lessee will not post or exhibit, nor allow to be posted or exhibited, signs, 

advertisements, show bills. lithographs, posters or cards of any description, inside or in front 

of, or on any part of said building except upon the regular billboards provided by the Lessor 

therefore and will use, post or exhibit only such signs, advertisements, show bills, 

lithographs, posters or cards upon said billboards as relate to the performance or exhibit to be 

given in the demised premises. Amounts and contents of Lessee's display advertising 

materials at the Bayfront Park shall be at the discretion of the Director. 

 

B. The Lessee shall take down and remove forthwith all signs, advertisements, show bills, 

lithographs, posters or cards of any description objected to by said Lessor, or its 

representatives.  

 

SECTION XIII:  PASSAGEWAYS  

 

A. The Lessee will permit no chair or movable seat to be or remain in the passageways, and will 

keep said passageways clear at all times.  

 

B. No portion of the sidewalks, entries, passage, vestibules, halls, stairways, or access to public 

utilities or said building shall be obstructed by the Lessee, or used for any purpose other than 

for ingress to and from the demised premises. The doors, stairways, or openings that reflect 

or admit light into any place in the building, including hallways, corridors, passages, also 

house-lighting attachments, shall not be covered or obstructed by the Lessee. The water 

closets or other water apparatus shall not be used for any purpose other than for which they 

were constructed, and no sweepings, rubbish, rags, papers or other substance shall be thrown 

therein. Any damage resulting to them from misuse of any nature or character whatever shall 

be paid for by the Lessee.  

 

SECTION XIV:  REMOVAL OF PROPERTY  

 

A. All personal property, including rental items, brought into the Bayfront Pavilion for any 

event must be dismantled and removed immediately following the event unless pre-approved 

by the Director. Any personal property not removed shall become the property of the City of 

Daphne. The City of Daphne wil1 hold all lost and found items for seven (7) days following 

the event. Thereafter, the City reserves the right to dispose of all unclaimed items.  City of 

101



Page 12 of 20 

Daphne, Bayfront Pavilion employees will be held harmless for any property approved by the 

Director to be left in the building or in Bayfront Park Pavilion. Approval must be made at 

least fourteen (14) working days prior to start of event.  No exceptions will be made. 

B. Bayfront Park Pavilion employees, workers, volunteers, or any representative of the Bayfront 

Park Pavilion cannot assist in the load-in, event set-up and/or load-out of any personal event 

or handle any personal property. 

 

C. The Lessor shall have the sole right to collect and have the custody of articles left in the 

building by persons attending any performance, exhibition or entertainment given or held in 

the demised premises, and the Lessee, or any person in Lessee's employ shall not collect nor 

interfere with the collection or custody of such article.  

 

D. The Lessor reserves the right to remove from the building all effects remaining in building 

after time specified at the expense of the Lessee or to charge the daily rental as shown on the 

current Bayfront Park rate sheet for the area in which the effects have been left or stored. 

102



Page 13 of 20 

 

SECTION XV:  BUILDING DEPARTURE 

 

Lessee shall agree that the music would be stopped, all bars must be closed and the building must 

be cleared at the ending time stated on the contract. If the Lessee goes over stated time on 

contract the Lessee will be charged with additional rental that must be paid at the time that the 

function goes over the ending time as is stated on the contract.  

  

SECTION XVI: WAIVED FEES 

 

All requests for waived fees must be sent in writing and addressed to the Director. The Director 

will forward all requests to the Mayor. 

 

SECTION XVII: RENTAL FEES 

 

A. Bayfront Park Rental Fees and hourly rates shall start as listed below:  

 

Entire Facility: $475.00 (This reserves sections of the parking area) 

The Sunset  $300.00 

The Jubilee $150.00 

The Kitchen   $40.00 

Cleaning  $200.00 (Optional) 

 

B. In addition to the base rental fees the following hourly rates shall apply: $20.00 per hour for 

each hour of usage with a minimum of 4 hours required and $50.00 per hour of usage for all 

holidays and City holidays. The Director shall maintain an updated list of rental items which 

is to be treated as part of this Ordinance's fee schedule.  

 

C. Lease rates for the Bayfront Park Pavilion are based on the prevailing rates as set forth in this 

Ordinance.  In addition to the base rental fees, depending on each events setup and needs to 

have a successful event, an additional labor fee may be required. This fee is at the discretion 

of the Bayfront Pavilion Director and will be presented to lessee prior to the execution of 

Bayfront Pavilion contract. 

 

D. The City shall apply rental proceeds to the operating requirements of the facility.  

 

E. Lessee shall not split rental hours.  

 

F. Lessee shall pay a $150.00 refundable damage deposit. The damage deposit will be refunded 

after the facility is inspected by Bayfront Park Pavilion personnel and no damage is found.   

Any additional damage charges over $150.00 will be charged to the lessee. 

 

G. If children are present during event, they must be supervised at all times and for 

safety/security reasons, should remain with parents or guardians.  Children will not be 

allowed in any non-rental or off-limit areas.  Any damaged or broken items caused from lack 

of supervision will be the Lessee’s responsibility. 

103



Page 14 of 20 

 

SECTION XVIII: CANCELLATIONS 

 

Cancellations must be in writing, dated and signed by the Lessee.   Reimbursements for 

cancelled events will be refunded as follows:  75% refund for cancellations received at least 9 

months prior to the day of start of event; 50% refund for cancellations received at least 6 months 

prior to the day of start of event; no refunds will be made for cancellations received under 6 

months prior to the day of start of event. Any exceptions to this rule must be approved by the 

Buildings and Property committee.  **Should Bayfront Pavilion be able to book another event of 

equal or greater economic value, then 100% refund will be issued.  Refunds will be issued by 

check.  

 

SECTION XIX: CLEANING FEES 

 

In addition to any and all fees, costs and deposits, a mandatory cleaning fee of $200 shall be 

payable at the time of reservation. 

 

SECTION XX: SECURITY (FIRE/POLICE) 

 

A. The City of Daphne Police Department and Fire Department reserve the right to determine 

the appropriate amount of security and fire protection needed for any and all events held at 

the Bayfront Park. The Lessee shall provide security and/or fire protection if it is determined 

necessary for any event. If security and/or fire protection is required, it must be obtained 

through the City of Daphne Police Department and the City of Daphne Fire Department no 

later than fourteen (14) days prior to an event. If the Lessee fails to provide the required 

security or fire protection if required, a fine of $300.00 shall be imposed and the relation of 

the landlord and tenant at the option· of Lessor, shall cease and terminate and the relation of 

the parties shall be the same in all respects as if said term had fully expired, and the said 

Lessor may re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate therein, 

remove all persons there from and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such possession.  

 

B. The Lessor reserves the right through its Director or his/her representatives to eject any 

objectionable person or persons from said building, and upon the exercise of this authority 

through its Director, agents or policemen, the Lessee hereby waives any rights and all claims 

for damages against the Management.  

 

C. The Lessee shall not, without written consent of the Lessor, put up or operate any engine or 

motor machinery on the demised premises, or use oils, burning fluids, camphene, kerosene, 

naphtha, or gasoline for either mechanical or other purposes or any other agent than natural 

gas or electricity for illuminating the demised premises.  

D. Should an event require security, then Lessee shall comply with Ala. Code § 6-5-338 (1975) 

by the purchasing of general liability insurance in the amount of $100,000.00 per off-duty 

officer. 

 

SECTION XXI: ALCOHOL/BEVERAGE 

104



Page 15 of 20 

 

A. Consumption of alcohol will be allowed inside the facility only during the time of function. 

No Alcohol/beverages shall be allowed on the dance floor. Consumption of alcohol is not 

allowed in the parking lot or on the grounds of the facility. The City of Daphne is not liable 

for accidents, deaths, or injuries that may occur as a result of the consumption of 

alcohol.  
 

B. The Lessee shall be fined three hundred dollars ($300.00) by the City of Daphne for violation 

by Lessee, Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests, or any person admitted to said 

premises by Lessee per occurrence.  

 

C. No Alcohol shall be "SOLD" on the grounds or inside of the Bayfront Pavilion without 

proper permits or license.  

 

D. Alcohol shall not be served or sold to anyone under 21 years of age.  

 

E. Appropriate police action will be taken against any person deemed to be intoxicated and 

posing a danger to himself or others.  

F. Distribution of alcohol is to be made in one of the following forms: 

a. Alcohol and/or all mixers may be brought by attendees and checked at the door 

where a bartender (hired by Lessee) will distribute alcohol for the duration of the 

event. Said bartender must be 21 years of age or older and must possess any and 

all then applicable licensing pursuant to local, state, and federal law. 

b. An event may contract with a licensed caterer for said event to set up cash bar or 

distribute alcohol. A licensed caterer is one that has purchased the requisite host 

liquor liability insurance, a City of Daphne business license, and attained all 

requisite alcohol licensing 

G. Should an event have alcohol, host liquor liability insurance in a minimum amount of 

$1,000,000.00 must be purchased. All insurance certificates and proof of requisite licensing 

must be on file at least 14 days prior to the event. 

H. A list of bartenders and/or caterers possessing additional voluntary certifications(s), provided 

through alcoholic beverage distributors for the serving of alcoholic beverages, may be 

provided by the Bayfront Pavilion Director upon request. 

SECTION XXII: SMOKING 

ALL CITY OF DAPHNE BUILDINGS ARE SMOKE FREE 20 feet from any and all entrances. 

There will be no smoking in the Bayfront Pavilion. A fine of three hundred dollars ($300.00) 

shall be imposed per occurrence by the City of Daphne. A three hundred dollar ($300.00) 

cleaning fine shall be imposed on the Lessee if smoking has occurred in the Bayfront Pavilion.  

105



Page 16 of 20 

No smoking on the deck, all fire must be 30 feet from the building. 

SECTION XXIII: PETS 

No pets allowed inside the facility other than those for the express use by disabled persons, or by 

permission of the Bayfront Pavilion Director. 

SECTION XXIV: BUILDING ACCESS 

The City will provide reasonable access according to the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

SECTION XV: THEFT 

The City of Daphne is not responsible for theft of property on the grounds of the Daphne 

Bayfront Pavilion, in automobiles, in the facility or any other structure on the property. 

SECTION XVI: HEAVY METAL/RAP/ALTERNATIVE CONCERTS 

 

A. The City of Daphne has set forth the following guidelines to establish rules and regulations 

for Heavy Metal, Rap, and Alternative concerts in effort to provide a safe and enjoyable 

concert experience for attendees.  

 

B. The Daphne City Council must approve all heavy metal, rap, and alternative concerts prior to 

the concert booking. The Buildings and Property Committee will determine if a concert is 

Alternative. The following are necessary:  

 

1. Names of all artists to appear must be provided to the Bayfront Pavilion Director. 

 

2. Date of the event and ticket information must be provided to the Bayfront 

Pavilion Director.  

 

3. A letter stating that approved security and fire arrangements have been made for 

the concert from the Daphne Police Department and Daphne Fire Department 

must be presented to the Bayfront Pavilion Director.  All special effects must be 

approved by the Fire Marshal and a letter stating this information must be 

provided to the Director. 

 

4. A letter of approval must be obtained from the Bayfront Pavilion Director and 

presented to the Buildings and Property Committee along with the above listed 

documentation. The Buildings and Property Committee will make 

recommendation to the full City Council. The Bayfront Pavilion Director shall 

provide the Council's approval or disapproval to the proposed Lessee.  

 

106



Page 17 of 20 

5. A security bond or deposit may be required for potential damages. If required, the 

bond or deposit must be presented to the Director no later than thirty (30) days 

prior to the event.  

 

6. A five hundred-dollar cleaning fee may be required.  

 

7. The promoter must obtain a public liability and property damage policy in an 

amount not less than $1,000,000.00.  The policy must be written by an insurance 

company licensed to do business in the State of Alabama and having a minimum 

rating of A- in the current issue of the A. M. Best Manual. The policy must name 

the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park Pavilion as additional insured. This 

certificate must be presented to the Director at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

scheduled concert.  

 

8. If required by the State of Alabama, promoter must obtain Liquor Liability 

Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and list the City of Daphne, 

Bayfront Pavilion as additional insured on the policy. Proof of this policy must be 

presented to the sales office not less than one week prior of the event.  

 

9. House lights are not allowed to go dark. A minimum of 20% of house lights must 

be on at all times.  

 

10. An addendum may be required to the contract if any of the performing acts have a 

history of performing songs or making statements that are considered by the 

Daphne City Council to incite or provoke violence by the audience.  

 

11. Other rules and regulations as deemed necessary by the Director, Buildings and 

Property Committee, or Daphne City Council may apply.  

SECTION XXVII: SOUND EQUIPMENT 

 

A. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may occur from the result 

of sound, lighting, or electrical equipment being utilized by the Lessee, Lessee's agent, 

employees, or guest from any cause whatsoever, prior, during, or subsequent to the period 

covered by the lease and the said Lessee will release said Lessor from, and agrees to 

indemnify it against any and all claims for such Joss, damage, or injury.  

 

B. Any damage to the City of Daphne, Bayfront Pavilion sound, lighting, or electrical 

equipment shall be at the expense of the Lessee when Lessee utilizes said equipment or 

services. Bayfront Park personnel, The City of Daphne, Daphne Police Department, or any 

authorized City Employee can request that the Lessee, or their agents, desist from utilizing 

City Property at any time.  

 

C. The Bayfront Pavilion must be notified of all sound requirements at least fourteen (14) days 

prior to the event.  

107



Page 18 of 20 

 

D. The City of Daphne shall provide the following fee waivers with no others to be considered 

in Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first 

serve basis. 

 

SECTION XXVIII: FEE WAIVERS 

 

The City of Daphne shall provide the fol1owing fee waivers with no others to be considered in 

Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first serve basis.  

 

1. BAYFRONT PAVILION REDUCED RATE PROGRAM MONDAY, TUESDAY & 

WEDNESDAY:  

 

This program will apply to all with the following exceptions. This program excludes paid 

concerts, all for profit events, Mardi Gras balls/meetings and fund raising events. These 

events will pay full fare. AU rental items remain the same. The reduced rate will consist of 

half rate for the base rental fee. The cleaning fee will remain the same. The booking includes 

four (4) hours of usage and must be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Any usage 

over four (4) hours and any hours used after 5:00 p.m. will be charged an additional $15.00 

per hour. If requested, the City of Daphne, Bayfront Pavilion shall be listed as a Sponsor of 

the event. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday that is a holiday or city holiday will be 

charged all regular holiday rates. All bookings remain on a first come first serve basis. This 

program is not to be used for continued bookings. The City of Daphne reserves the right to 

deny any group or organization usage of these provisions.  

 

2. BAYFRONT PAVILION REDUCED RATE PROGRAM (CIVIC GROUPS AND NOT 

FOR PROFITS -501-C3 MONDAY, TUESDAY & WEDNESDAY)  

 

This program will apply to all civic groups that are not for profit and have a 501-C3 status. 

Proof of this status is required. This program excludes paid concerts, all for profit events, and 

fund raising events. These events will pay full fare. All rental items remain the same. The 

reduced rate will consist of a waived base fee, full rate on cleaning fees, and a $15.00 per 

hour charge. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday booking that is a holiday or city holiday 

will be charged all .regular holiday rates. If requested, the City of Daphne, Daphne Bayfront 

Pavilion shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. All bookings remain on a first come first 

serve basis. This program is not to be used for continued bookings. The City of Daphne 

reserves the right to deny any group, or organization usage of these provisions. All groups 

utilizing this reduced rate program must use the facility between 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. All 

groups that have not left the facility by 10:00 p.m. will be charged all regular rates.  

 

3. CITY OF DAPHNE DEPARTMENTS FOR CONDUCTING CITY BUSINESS.  

 

The City of Daphne encourages all City Departments to utilize the Bayfront Pavilion for your 

entire department booking needs. For tracking purposes all City departments must estimate 

108



Page 19 of 20 

their projected bookings for the Bayfront Pavilion and budget all fees, rental items, cleaning 

fees, and per hour charges needed at regular rates for their facility functions. The department 

may submit in writing to the Director a request to wave base rental fees only. The decision 

will be based on the criteria for event, time of day and year and day of week.  The approval 

of this request will be at the discretion of the Director and Mayor.  Invoices for usage will be 

routed from the Bayfront Pavilion to the Finance Department for journal entry after each 

event. The Finance Department will notify the Bayfront Pavilion sales office when the 

journal entry is complete to make report to the Buildings and Property Committee at the 

monthly meeting.  

4. CITY EMPLOYEES FOR PERSONAL BUSINESS 

Current and in good standing City of Daphne employees will be entitled to a 20% discount 

off of base rental rates only for events that the employee is hosting.  This discount is not 

applicable for family or friends, only the employee him/herself.  All rules, guidelines and all 

other fees of this ordinance apply.  The employee must make a request in writing which 

should include type of event, day and time.  The approval of this request will be at the 

discretion of the Director and/or Mayor.  Should for any reason the employee violate the 

guidelines mentioned above, said employee will not be entitled to this benefit in the future 

and will be responsible for full base rental rate which will be deducted from damage fee or 

billed with additional damage fee. 

 

SECTION XXIX: BOOKING POLICY—ALL OTHER GROUPS 

If an organization or group desires to book the same date continually, year after year, such 

organizations must submit a letter to the Director making such request listing the exact dates and 

years that the organization is requesting and all facility needs. All base fees must be paid in 

advance for the first two consecutive years. At the end of the second year a new request must be 

made in writing and delivered to the sales department of the Bayfront Pavilion no later than 7 

days after the second year event for the following two years, along with the fees for the next two 

years. Future bookings will also be secured using the same guidelines. All bookings are on a first 

come first serve basis. 

SECTION XXX: PENALTY 

 

A. Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be punished by a 

fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or by 

imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6) months, or both, at the discretion of the 

Municipal Judge.  

 

B. This Ordinance shall also be subject to enforcement by the issuance of a summons and 

complaint. 

 

109



Page 20 of 20 

SECTION XXXI: REPEALER 

 

Ordinances Nos. 2004-21 and 2014-50 are hereby repealed in their entirety. All other City 

Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they 

conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION XXXII: SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or 

part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of the Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

SECTION XXXIII: EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in force from and after the date of its approval and 

adoption by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this the _____day of ________, 2014. 

 

 

 

         

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Dane Haygood, 

        Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

110



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014- 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NOS. 2011-09 

AND ESTABLISHING RULES, REGULATIONS, RATES AND 

A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE RENTAL OF THE 

BAYFRONT PARK PAVILION 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires that all citizens of the City of 

Daphne and guests thereof be able to peaceably use and enjoy the Bayfront Park Pavilion; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health and 

safety of the citizens of the City of Daphne by providing rental schedules, rules, regulations and a 

lease agreement for the rental of the Bayfront Park Pavilion, and,  

WHEREAS, changes in policy have mandated the repealing of the preceding 

Ordinance establishing rules, regulations, rates, and a lease agreement for the rental of the 

Bayfront Park Pavilion, 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION I:  DEFINITIONS  

 

A. For the purpose of this Ordinance the following terms, phrases, words and their 

derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 

words used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include 

the singular number and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 

"shall" is always mandatory and not merely directive.  

 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.

Lessor:  

Lessee:  

Facility:  

Event:  

The City of Daphne and Bayfront Park Pavilion.  

Signer of City of Bayfront Park Pavilion Lease Agreement.  

Bayfront Park Pavilion.  

The purpose for which facility is leased.  

111



 

 

 

SECTION II:  RULES AND REGULATIONS-GENERAL  

 

A. The Director is authorized to execute on behalf of the City of Daphne, the Bayfront Park   

Pavilion lease agreement as approved by the City Council. The following rules apply.  

 

1. Governmental functions will take precedence over all other functions. All other 

reservations are on a first come first served basis.  

 

2. The Lease agreement must be executed by persons 21 years of age or older and the 

executor of said lessee agreement must be in attendance at the event. 

 

3. Dates will not be considered "booked" prior to the completion of a City of Daphne 

Bayfront Park Pavilion Lease Agreement and payment of applicable fees.  

 

4.  The performance of this Agreement shall terminate without liability upon the occurrence 

of any circumstance beyond the control of Lessor – such as emergency use of the facility as 

a distribution or dispensing center, acts of God, fire, storm, pestilence, war, terrorism, 

disaster, Federal regulations, strikes, civil disorder, criminal acts, curtailment of 

transportation facilities or any other casualty or unforeseen occurrence – to the extent that 

such circumstances make it illegal or impossible to provide or use of the facilities.  Notice 

may be provided by Lessor at the earliest practicable time however is not required to 

absolve Lessor of liability under this paragraph. In case the facility, or any part thereof, 

shall be destroyed or damaged by fire, or any other cause, or if any other casualty or 

unforeseen occurrence shall render the fulfillment of the lease by the Lessor impossible, 

then and thereupon the lease shall terminate, and the Lessee shall pay rental for said 

premises only up to the time of such termination, at the rate specified on the Lease 

Agreement and the said Lessee waives any claim for damages or compensation should the 

lease be so terminated.  Should termination due to unforeseen events as described above 

occur prior to any actual use of the facility, Lessee shall be refunded all reservation fees that 

have not been obligated by Lessor. 

 

5. City personnel will inspect the facility after each event.  If damage is found, lessee will 

be notified of charges to be deducted from damage deposit or of additional charges beyond 

damage deposit. 

 

6. Garbage cans, trash bags, rest room supplies, and outside trash receptacles will be 

supplied for Lessee use with the exception of Mardi Gras groups, or other large groups as 

determined by the Director. Additional charges may apply.  

 

7. City functions must portray the City of Daphne in the best light for the good and benefit 

of the citizens of Daphne.  

 

8. Additional services, personnel and/or equipment (other than those specified at the time of 

lease) which may be requested and utilized will be additionally charged based on Bayfront 

Park Pavilion prevailing rates.  

 

  

112



 

 

 

9. Security, firefighters and other personnel will be charged at the prevailing rates per hour. 

Lessee must make necessary arrangements.  

 

10. Arrangements must be confirmed at least fourteen (14) days in advance of an event so 

as to schedule the personnel, equipment and services required.  

 

11. The Lessor requires that only trained city personnel use and handle facility equipment 

during events and set-ups.  

 

12. The Lessee is charged with the responsibility of paying all applicable City, County, and 

State sales tax on admissions and sales at the Bayfront Pavilion as well as applicable 

license fees.  

 

13. All fees shall be paid 14 (fourteen) days prior to the event. Exceptions may be made for 

State, County, and those approved by the Director.  

 

14. The Lessor will bill any final charges that cannot be determined prior to, during, or 

after the event by Bayfront Park personnel. These fees must be paid no later than 7 days 

after the event date. All accounts that are not paid within the 7 days will be turned in for 

collection.  In accordance with paragraph 22 of this Agreement any cost, including but not 

limited to attorney fees, incurred by attempts to recover said fees, Lessee shall pay such 

costs.     

  

 

15. Lessee agrees to pay for all fees in lawful money of the United States of America, 

cashier’s check, personal checks, or company checks at the Sales Office of the Bayfront 

Park Pavilion. Lessee further agrees to pay said Lessor on demand any sum which may be 

due to said Lessor for additional services and/or accommodation for material furnished or 

provided to said Lessee.  

 

16. The Lessee will comply with all laws of the United States, and of the State of Alabama, 

all ordinances of the City of Daphne, Alabama and all rules and requirements of the Police 

and Fire Departments, or other municipal authorities of the City of Daphne, and will obtain 

and pay for all necessary permits and licenses, and will not do nor suffer to be done, 

anything on said  

 

  

113



 

 

 

premises during the term of the lease in violation of any such laws, ordinances, rules or 

requirements, and if Lessor calls any such violation to the attention of the Lessee, or any 

person employed by or admitted to the said premises by said Lessee, such Lessee will 

immediately desist from and correct such violation.  Lessee will provide Lessor with a copy 

of all necessary permits and licenses fourteen (14) days in advance from start of event.  

 

17. No performance, exhibition or entertainment shall be given or held on said demised 

premises, which shall be objected to by the Lessor.  

 

18. The City of Daphne, Bayfront Park Pavilion, employees, or agents shall not be 

responsible for any misrepresentation of or failure to perform by any promoter, agent, 

group, or act that is not booked by the City of Daphne or Bayfront Park Pavilion.  

 

19. LESSEE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE EXECUTION BY LESSOR OF THE 

LEASE AGREEMENT REPRESENTS AND GUARANTEES TO LESSOR THAT 

PERFORMERS BY THEIR SPEECH, SONG, MUSIC, CONDUCT, OR MANNER WILL 

NOT VIOLATE OR INCITE OTHERS TO VIOLATE ANY STATUTE, LAW, 

ORDINANCE, RULE, REGULATION OR ORDER OF ANY FEDERAL, STATE, 

MUNICIPAL OR OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY.  

 

a) If performers speak, sing, play, perform or otherwise act in any manner which 

shall cause Lessor or any person, organization, or authority whose duty it is to 

enforce any such statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order to maintain public 

safety on the premises, think that performers have violated or incited others to 

violate any such statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation, or order, the Lessor shall 

have the absolute right in its sole discretion to terminate the performance in progress 

and, regardless of whether the performance is terminated, to delay and withhold 

payment and settlement of all accounts and funds related to money collected or 

received by Lessor under this agreement until completion of an investigation 

relating to any incident thought to be such a violation. Lessee agrees to hold Lessor 

harmless from any and all damages suffered or sustained by reason of the 

termination of any performance and will defend any suit instituted against Lessor 

arising out of such termination at Lessee's expense, all in addition to the remedies 

otherwise given Lessor herein.  

 

  

114



 

 

 

b) If upon completion of the investigation Lessor concludes that performers have 

violated· and/or incited others to violate any such statute, law, ordinance, rule, 

regulation or order, then Lessee shall be deemed to have committed material breach of 

the Lease Agreement, for which breach Lessee shall be liable to the Lessor. The Lessee 

and the Lessor hereto acknowledge and agree that it will be impossible to measure 

actual damages to premises as the result of a breach of this agreement arising out of a 

violation or incitement of others to violate any statute, law, ordinance, rule, regulation 

or order as aforesaid, and therefore, the parties have agreed to the sum of $5,000.00 as 

liquidated damages and not as a penalty, which amount Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor 

to deduct from any accounts or funds held or received by Lessor prior to any payment to 

Lessee if monies are due or Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the agreed sum of $5,000.00 as 

stated above or pay the actual damage amount which will be determined after inspection 

and or repair of damage.  

 

20. The Lessee shall not admit to said premises a larger number of persons than the seating 

capacity thereof will accommodate, or can safely or freely move about in said rented areas, and 

the decision of the Fire Marshal in this respect shall be final.  The Bayfront Pavilion Director 

and their agents shall maintain an updated occupancy table with limits pursuant to City of 

Daphne Fire Marshal’s regulations which is to be treated as part of this Ordinance. 

 

21. In rendering said space to the Lessee; the Lessor does not relinquish the right to control the 

management thereof or to enforce all the necessary and proper rules for the management and 

operation of the same. The City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park Pavilion, their agents, and 

their employees may enter said building and all the demised premises, at any time and on any 

occasion in performance of their duties and responsibilities.  

 

22. The Lessee agrees to pay reasonable attorney's fees on any part of said rental or service 

charge that may be collected by suit or by attorney after said rental or service charge is past 

due.  

 

23. The Lessee shall not permit the demised premises to be used for lodging rooms, or for any 

improper, immoral or objectionable purpose.  

 

24. The Lessee shall not assign the lease, nor suffer any use of said premises, other than 

specified, nor subject the same premises or any part thereof, without the written consent of the 

Lessor.  

 

25. The Lessee waives all right under the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama or any 

other state to claim personal property exempt as against any liability, debt or obligation arising 

under the contract.  

 

26. Lessee shall make all necessary arrangements with the union business agents of all trades 

involved in their presentation of their event.  

 

27. The Bayfront Park Pavilion and the keys thereto shall be at all times under the charge and 

control of the Bayfront Park Pavilion personnel. All exceptions must be approved by the 

Director.  

 

28. That Lessee shall agree that if any default is made in the payment of the rent or any part 

thereof or if any default is made in the covenant or agreement the letting and the relation of 115



 

 

landlord and tenant at the option of Lessor, shall cease and terminate and the relation of the 

parties shall be the same in all respect as if said term had fully expired, and the said Lessor may 

re-enter the said premises and hold the same as of its former estate therein, remove all persons 

there from and resort to any legal proceedings to obtain such possession and the said Lessee 

shall notwithstanding such re-enter and must pay the full amount of said lease for the facility, 

services, and any usage fees as herein agreed to be paid.  

 

29. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may happen to the lessee, 

or the Lessee's agent, employees, property, guests from any cause whatsoever, prior, during or 

subsequent to the period covered by the lease and the said Lessee will release said Lessor from, 

and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for such loss, damage or injury.  

 

30. That in the handling, control, custody and keeping of receipts and funds, whether the same 

are received through the box office or otherwise, the Lessor is acting for the accommodations 

and sole benefit of the Lessee, and that as to such receipts, and funds the Lessor shall be 

responsible only for gross neglect or bad faith.  

 

31. Any matters not expressly provided for shall be in the discretion of the City of Daphne 

Mayor, City Council and/or Bayfront Director.  

 

32. That all terms and conditions of the written lease shall be binding upon the parties, their 

heirs and assigns, and cannot be varied or waived by any oral representations or promise of any 

agent or other person of the parties hereto unless the same be in writing and mutually signed by 

the duly authorized agent or agents who executed the lease. See attached Lease Agreement and 

information sheet which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.  

 

33. The signed Lease Agreement will hold the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park Pavilion 

harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability for compensation under the 

Alabama Workmen's Compensation law or similar laws arising out of injuries sustained by any 

employees of Lessee or of any contractor or subcontractor under Lessee.  

 

34. Renters shall adhere to all signs posted at location.  

 

35. The Mayor and/or his designee are authorized to promulgate and post rules and regulations 

at the facility which provide for proper operation and protect the health, safety, and welfare of 

persons attending events at the facility.  

 

36. Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, guests, or anyone entering the building that are under the 

supervision of the Lessee may not move or remove any City owned decorations or property in 

the facility.  Doing so will be in violation of said ordinance and may incur additional damage 

fees. 

 

37. Lessor reserves the right to refuse to lease to any person, group or organization known to 

willfully violate any provisions of this ordinance.  

 

 

SECTION III:  ADVERTISING    

 

116



 

 

A. All advertising will be straightforward, accurate, and true and when admission is 

charged, must state the total admission prices. Advertising of any event or the appearance of 

any performer, selling of tickets, acquiring sponsorships, selling of tradeshow booths or 

the like is prohibited until all contracts between all parties involved have been properly 

executed and exhibited to the Director is prohibited.  

 

 

B. All advertising with reference to the Bayfront Park Pavilion and use of Bayfront Park 

Pavilion by city departments or otherwise must be approved by the Director of the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion prior to usage.  

 

SECTION IV:  COPYRIGHT  

 

Lessee/Artist/Promoter warrants at the signing of the Lease Agreement that all copyrighted 

material to be performed has been duly licensed or authorized by the copyright owners or their 

representatives and agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion harmless from any and all claims, losses, or expenses incurred with regard thereto.  

 

SECTION V:  CONCESSION  

 

The Lessor relinquishes all food and beverage concession rights to the Lessee. All City, 

County, and State taxes and fees apply.   

 

SECTION VI:  DECORATIONS  

 

A. The Lessor requires that all decorations, signs, and posters must be coordinated with 

Bayfront Park Pavilion personnel prior to placing or erecting in the Bayfront Park Pavilion building 

or on facility grounds.   

 

B.  All decorations must be free standing.  No nails, tacks, brackets, glue or self-adhesive 

tape or any other similar items will be allowed on or in the walls, ceilings, floors or any material 

that will deface, mar, or damage a finish.  ANY SUCH DAMAGE MAY RESULT IN AN EXTRA 

CHARGE FOR DAMAGES AND WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LEESSEE.  No 

shaving cream, toilet paper, silly string, rice, birdseed, sparklers, glitter, confetti (including 

decorative jewels) or the like will be thrown or used for decoration inside or outside the facility. 

ALL FIRE MUST BE 30 FEET FROM THE BUILDING; ABSOLUTLEY NO FIRE INSIDE OR 

ON DECK.  If any of these items are found on the floor, additional clean-up/damage fees will be 

imposed on Lessee. 

 

C. Combustible decorative materials such as, but not limited to, cotton batting, paper, foam 

plastics, cloth, vegetation, moss straw, hay, vines, split bamboo, leaves and similar material shall 

not be used in the facility unless materials are flame resistant or have been treated with a fire 

retardant coating. The classification of fire retardant coatings shall apply only when the coating is 

applied at the rates of coverage and to the type or kind of surfaces indicated on the test report when 

the coating is applied in accordance with the manufacturer's directions supplied with the container. 

These coatings shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's direction. The applications 

shall be certified by the applicator as being in conformance with the manufacturer's direction for 

application. A flame test will be done on the material before being approved by the Fire Official. 

WARNING!!! You are advised to contact the Daphne Fire Marshal for approval of 

decorations at least 2 weeks prior to your event. Decorations not meeting the Fire Marshal's 117



 

 

approval will not be allowed in the facility. Lessee must present in writing to Lessor the approval 

from the Fire Marshal which will be kept on file. 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION VII:  

FLOOR PLANS  

 

A. The Lessee shall file with the Sales Office or Event Office at least fourteen (14) days 

prior to the occurrence of the event for which this agreement is issued, a full and detailed outline of 

all facilities required, stage requirements, table and chair set-up, and such other information as may 

be required by the Director for planning, staging and preparation for such event. The number of 

attendees is to be included on the Bayfront Park Pavilion Lease Agreement.  

 

B. Occupancy Limits. Pursuant to City of Daphne Fire Department regulations:  

 

Room  Square Ft.  Chairs/people  ChairslTables  

 

The Sunset  

 

4,500 290  

 

210/21 

 The Jubliee     1,200     49     50/10  

 

118



 

 

 SECTION VIII:  INSURANCE  

 

A. By the acceptance of the lease agreement the Lessee covenants to indemnify, save and 

keep free and harmless the City of Daphne, its officers and employees, from and against any and 

all claims, demands, loss, liability, cost or expense of any kind or nature whatsoever which the 

City, its officers or employees, or any of them, may sustain or incur, or that may be imposed upon 

them, or any damages to property arising out of, connected with or attributable to the use and 

occupancy of the facility by Lessee. Lessee agrees to pay for any damage to the facility and for any 

damage to or loss of any City property resulting from the occupancy of said facility by Lessee or 

resulting from the conduct or actions of Lessee, its agents or employees, or any person, or person's 

participation in or attending the event during Lessee's occupancy.  

 

B. Simultaneously with the acceptance of this lease and as a condition precedent to the 

effectiveness hereof, Lessee shall procure and maintain, in full force, and effect during Lessee's 

occupancy of the facility, and during the term of this permit, a policy of public liability and 

property damage insurance from a reliable insurance company authorized to transact business in 

the State of Alabama. The insurance company must have a minimum rating of A- in the current 

issue of the A. M. Best Manual. The Lessee, the City, and its officers and employees shall be 

named co-insured in said policy and the policy shall cover the insured's against whom claim is or 

may be, in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. Said policy shall 

contain not less than the following limits of liability:  

 

$1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence. (Bodily injury and property 

damage)  

 

C. If the proposed use or occupancy by Lessee is such as to present a high degree of 

exposure to bodily injury or property damage, the Director may, in his/her discretion require higher 

limits of bodily injury and/or damage insurance.  

 

D. The policy shall provide that the same shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of 

this lease until the Director shall have received a ten-day written notice of such proposed 

cancellation. Said policy shall provide that the insurance afforded thereby shall be primary 

insurance to the full limits of liability stated in the declarations, and if the City I its officers and 

employees have other insurance against a loss covered by said policy, that such other insurance 

shall be excess insurance only.  

 

E. Lessee shall, coincidentally with the acceptance of this lease, deliver said policy of 

insurance, or certified photo static copy thereof, to the Director. Said policy shall be approved by 

the Director as to sufficiency.  

 

F. The signed lease Agreement shall hold the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion harmless and indemnify them against any claims or liability arising or resulting from any 

injury to any visitor, spectator or participant in any activity in any part or portion of the Bayfront 

Park, regardless of entrance gained to said Bayfront Park Pavilion whether by paid admissions, by 

pass- issued by Lessee or Lessor or by any unlawful admission gained without knowledge of 

Lessor or Lessee. To indemnify Lessor as herein provided, Lessee shall carry public liability 

insurance with the coverage and the amount thereof to be  

119



 

 

 

specified and approved by the Director of the Bayfront Park Pavilion with Lessee to furnish Lessor 

with a certificate of insurance or other satisfactory evidence of compliance with this requirement prior 

to commencement of Leasees event. This insurance requirement may be waived depending on 

circumstances.  

 

G. Upon approval of said policy, the same shall be filed with the Director or designee. After 

said policy has been so approved the Lessee shall file with the City a certificate of insurance issued by 

an insurance carrier certifying that the aforesaid insurance is in full force and effect and that all 

operations of the insured under the permit are covered thereby. In lieu of the presentation of the 

original policy, or of a certified photo static copy thereof, the Lessee may file a certificate of insurance 

to which is attached an endorsement in a form approved by the City Attorney. The endorsement shall 

provide that liability assumed by Lessee under this permit is covered by the policy, that the City, its 

officers, and employees, are named insured under said policy, and that in event of anyone of the 

insured's incurring liability to any other of the insured's, the policy shall cover the insured against 

whom claim is or may be made in the same manner as if separate policies have been issued to each, 

and that said insurance is primary insurance as set forth hereinabove. The endorsement shall also 

provide that the policy shall not be cancelled prior to the termination of the permit or until the Director 

shall have received a ten-day notice in writing of such proposed cancellation and that such 

endorsement controls over all other provisions of the policy, or endorsements thereto, which are 

inconsistent therewith. Lessee shall be responsible for all insurance deductibles.  

 

H. Host Liquor Liability Insurance must be obtained in an amount not less than $1,000,000 and 

the City of Daphne, Bayfront Park Pavilion must be listed as additionally insured on the policy. Proof 

of this policy must be presented to the sales office not less than fourteen (14) days prior of the event.   

I.  Proof of all policies applicable must be presented to the Bayfront Pavilion Sales Office 

not less than fourteen (14) days prior to event. 

 

 

SECTION IX:  INVENTORY   

.  

Facility inventory will not be loaned or permitted to be removed from the premises. These 

items include but are not limited to chairs, tables, podiums, audiovisual equipment, kitchen equipment, 

plants, decorations, or displays. The City of Daphne shall impose a fine of three hundred dollars 

($300.00) for each violation in addition to a charge for damage.  

120



 

 

 

SECTION X:  DEFACING OF PROPERTY  

 

A. The Lessee will not injure, nor mar, nor in any manner deface said premises, and shall 

not cause or permit anything to be done whereby the said premises shall be in any manner injured, 

marred or defaced; and will not drive or permit to be driven nails, hooks, tacks or screws into any 

part of said building, and will not make, or allow to be made, any alterations of any kind therein. 

Glue hooks or tacky putty will not be permitted (contact Bayfront Pavilion Sales Assistant for 

suggestions). 

 

B. No decorations shall be placed in or on the building, nor shall any devices or signs be 

supported by any means on wall or woodwork without the consent of the Sales Agent. Sets, 

scenery, exhibit material, et cetera, shall be of flameproof material and conform to the Fire 

Prevention code of the City of Daphne.  

 

C. If said premises, or any portion of said building, during the term of the lease, shall be 

damaged by the act, default or negligence of the Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests or any 

person admitted to said premises by Lessee, or unlawful admission gained, LESSEE WILL PAY 

TO THE LESSOR UPON DEMAND SUCH SUM AS SHALL BE NECESSARY TO RESTORE 

SAID PREMISES TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. The Lessee hereby assumes full 

responsibility for the character, acts and conduct of all persons admitted to said premises, or to any 

portion of said building by the consent of the said Lessee, or by or with the consent of any person 

acting for or on behalf of said Lessee, and said Lessee agrees to have on hand at all times sufficient 

Police and Fire Personnel to maintain order and protect persons and property. Daphne Police and 

Fire Personnel will be provided at the expense of the Lessee. Fire Personnel to maintain order and 

protect persons and property.  Daphne Police and fire Personnel will be provided at the expense of 

the Lessee. In addition, the City of Daphne's fine of three hundred dollars ($300.00) for 

Damage/Defacing City Property will be imposed.  

 

SECTION XI:  TICKET OUTLET SALES/BOX OFFICE  

 

A. The City of Daphne stipulates that all ticketed events will be handled through the 

Bayfront Park Pavilion Sales office unless otherwise stated by the Director. The basic Box Office 

charge will be 5% of all Gross Ticket Sales. Bayfront Park Pavilion Box Office sales and services 

are the exclusive right of Bayfront Park Pavilion. 

  

B. The Bayfront Park Pavilion Ticket Office hours shall be 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday 

through Friday.  

121



 

 

 

C. All tickets must be sold at advertised prices and any deviation must be approved in writing 

by the Director.  

 

D. All Moneys' collected for advance ticket sales must be paid in cash and are not be subject to 

'draw' by the promoter until such time show time occurs, all specifications of the Bayfront Park 

Pavilion Lease Agreement have been met and all funds have been collected which exceed Bayfront 

Park Pavilion expenses therefore.  

 

E. All tickets purchased must be paid for in cash. The Director shall notify the Lessee if other 

payment plans are permissible.  

 

F. The Bayfront Park Pavilion management will deal only with the individual who negotiated 

the contract or their duly authorized representative's with regards to box office transactions, show 

settlement, and facility usage.  

 

G. In the event of show cancellation, the Bayfront Park Pavilion Director reserves the right to 

determine the ticket refund procedures. Refunds will be made at the outlet location of purchase only.  

 

H. Any deviation or changes to the stated regulations must be approved by the Director.  

 

SECTION XII:  POSTING BILLS  

 

A. The Lessee will not post or exhibit, nor allow to be posted or exhibited, signs, 

advertisements, show bills. lithographs, posters or cards of any description, inside or in front of, or 

on any part of said building except upon the regular billboards provided by the Lessor therefore 

and will use, post or exhibit only such signs, advertisements, show bills, lithographs, posters or 

cards upon said billboards as relate to the performance or exhibit to be given in the demised 

premises. Amounts and contents of Lessee's display advertising materials at the Bayfront Park 

shall be at the discretion of the Director.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

122



 

 

B. The Lessee shall take down and remove forthwith all signs, advertisements, show bills, 

lithographs, posters or cards of any description objected to by said Lessor, or its representatives.  

 

 SECTION XIII:  PASSAGEWAYS  

 

A. The Lessee will permit no chair or movable seat to be or remain in the passageways, and 

will keep said passageways clear at all times.  

 

B. No portion of the sidewalks, entries, passage, vestibules, halls, stairways, or access to 

public utilities or said building shall be obstructed by the Lessee, or used for any purpose other than 

for ingress to and from the demised premises. The doors, stairways, or openings that reflect or 

admit light into any place in the building, including hallways, corridors, passages, also house-

lighting attachments, shall not be covered or obstructed by the Lessee. The water closets or other 

water apparatus shall not be used for any purpose other than for which they were constructed, and 

no sweepings, rubbish, rags, papers or other substance shall be thrown therein. Any damage 

resulting to them from misuse of any nature or character whatever shall be paid for by the Lessee.  

  

SECTION XIV:  REMOVAL OF PROPERTY  

A. All personal property, including rental items, brought into the Bayfront Pavilion for any 

event must be dismantled and removed immediately following the event unless pre-approved by 

the Director. Any personal property not removed shall become the property of the City of Daphne. 

The City of Daphne wil1 hold all lost and found items for seven (7) days following the event. 

Thereafter, the City reserves the right to dispose of all unclaimed items.  City of Daphne, Bayfront 

Pavilion employees will be held harmless for any property approved by the Director to be left in 

the building or in Bayfront Park Pavilion. Approval must be made at least fourteen (14) working 

days prior to start of event.  No exceptions will be made. 

B.  Bayfront Park Pavilion employees, workers, volunteers, or any representative of the 

Bayfront Park Pavilion cannot assist in the load-in, event set-up and/or load-out of any personal 

event or handle any personal property. 

 

C. The Lessor shall have the sole right to collect and have the custody of articles left in the 

building by persons attending any performance, exhibition or entertainment given or held in the 

demised premises, and the Lessee, or any person in Lessee's employ shall not collect nor interfere 

with the collection or custody of such article.  

 

D. The Lessor reserves the right to remove from the building all effects remaining in 

building after time specified at the expense of the Lessee or to charge the daily rental as shown on 

the current Bayfront Park rate sheet for the area in which the effects have been left or stored.  

 

SECTION XV: 

   

BUILDING DEPARTURE  

Lessee shall agree that the music would be stopped, all bars must be closed and the building 

must be cleared at the ending time stated on the contract. If the Lessee goes over stated time on 

contract the Lessee will be charged with additional rental that must be paid at the time that the 

function goes over the ending time as is stated on the contract.  

  

SECTION XVI:  WAIVED FEES  
123



 

 

 

All requests for waived fees must be sent in writing and addressed to the Director. The 

Director will forward all requests to the Mayor. 

 

 SECTION XVII:  RENTAL FEES 

 

A. Bayfront Park Rental Fees and hourly rates shall start as listed below:  

 

Entire Facility:  

The Sunset  

The Jubilee 

The Kitchen 

Cleaning  

$475.00 (This reserves sections of the parking area)  

$300.00 

$150.00  

$40.00 

200.00 (Optional)  

 

B. In addition to the base rental fees the following hourly rates shall apply: $1520.00 per 

hour for each hour of usage with a minimum of 4 hours required and $50.00 per hour of usage for 

all holidays and City holidays. The Director shall maintain an updated list of rental items which is 

to be treated as part of this Ordinance's fee schedule.  

 

C. Lease rates for the Bayfront Park Pavilion are based on the prevailing rates as set forth 

in this Ordinance.  In addition to the base rental fees, depending on each events setup and needs to 

have a successful event, an additional labor fee may be required. This fee is at the discretion of the 

Bayfront Pavilion Director and will be presented to lessee prior to the execution of Bayfront 

Pavilion contract. 

 

D. The City shall apply rental proceeds to the operating requirements of the facility.  

 

E. Lessee shall not split rental hours.  

 

F. Lessee shall pay a $150.00 refundable damage deposit. The damage deposit will be 

refunded after the facility is inspected by Bayfront Park Pavilion personnel and no damage is 

found.   Any additional damage charges over $150.00 will be charged to the lessee. 

G. If children are present during event, they must be supervised at all times and for 

safety/security reasons, should remain with parents or guardians.  Children will not be allowed in 

any non-rental or off-limit areas.  Any damaged or broken items caused from lack of supervision 

will be the Lessee’s responsibility. 

124



 

 

 

 

SECTION XVIII:  

 

 

CANCELLATIONS  

 

Cancellations must be in writing, dated and signed by the Lessee.   Reimbursements for 

cancelled events will be refunded as follows:  75% refund for cancellations received at least 9 

months prior to the day of start of event; 50% refund for cancellations received at least 6 months 

prior to the day of start of event; no refunds will be made for cancellations received under 6 months 

prior to the day of start of event. Any exceptions to this rule must be approved by the Buildings and 

Property committee.  **Should Bayfront Pavilion be able to book another event of equal or greater 

economic value, then 100% refund will be issued.  Refunds will be issued by check.  

  

SECTION XIX:        CLEANING FEES  

 

Cleaning fees will be waived if and only if lessee does own cleanup – Bayfront will provide 

all necessary cleaning supplies and check list as reference.  Should lessee choose to forgo this 

option, then the $200.00 is mandatory. In addition to any and all fees, costs and deposits, a 

mandatory cleaning fee of $200 shall be payable at the time of reservation.   

 

 

SECTION XX:  

 

SECURITY (FIRE/POLICE)  

 

A. The City of Daphne Police Department and Fire Department reserve the right to 

determine the appropriate amount of security and fire protection needed for any and all events held 

at the Bayfront Park. The Lessee shall provide security and/or fire protection if it is determined 

necessary for any event. If security and/or fire protection is required, it must be obtained through 

the City of Daphne Police Department and the City of Daphne Fire Department no later than 

fourteen (14) days prior to an event. If the Lessee fails to provide the required security or fire 

protection if required, a fine of $300.00 shall be imposed and the relation of the landlord and tenant 

at the option· of Lessor, shall cease and terminate and the relation of the parties shall be the same 

in all respects as if said term had fully expired, and the said Lessor may re-enter the said premises 

and hold the same as of its former estate therein, remove all persons there from and resort to any 

legal proceedings to obtain such possession.  

 

B. The Lessor reserves the right through its Director or his/her representatives to eject any 

objectionable person or persons from said building, and upon the exercise of this authority through 

its Director, agents or policemen, the Lessee hereby waives any rights and all claims for damages 

against the Management.  

 

C. The Lessee shall not, without written consent of the Lessor, put up or operate any engine 

or motor machinery on the demised premises, or use oils, burning fluids, camphene, kerosene, 

naphtha, or gasoline for either mechanical or other purposes or any other agent than natural gas or 

electricity for illuminating the demised premises.  

D. Should an event require security, then Lessee shall comply with Ala. Code § 6-5-338 

(1975) by the purchasing of general liability insurance in the amount of $100,000.00 per off-duty 

officer. 

 

 

 

 125



 

 

 SECTION XXI:  ALCOHOL/BEVERAGE  

 

A. Consumption of alcohol will be allowed inside the facility only during the time of function. 

No Alcohol/beverages shall be allowed on the dance floor. Consumption of alcohol is not allowed in 

the parking lot or on the grounds of the facility. The City of Daphne is not liable for accidents, 

deaths, or injuries that may occur as a result of the consumption of alcohol.  
 

B. The Lessee shall be fined three hundred dollars ($300.00) by the City of Daphne for 

violation by Lessee, Lessee's agents, employees, patrons, guests, or any person admitted to said 

premises by Lessee per occurrence.  

 

C.  No Alcohol shall be "SOLD" on the grounds or inside of the Bayfront Pavilion without 

proper permits or license.  

 

D.  Alcohol shall not be served or sold to anyone under 21 years of age.  

 

E.  Appropriate police action will be taken against any person deemed to be intoxicated and 

posing a danger to himself or others.  

F.  Distribution of alcohol is to be made in one of the following forms: 

a. Alcohol and/or all mixers may be brought by attendees and checked at the 

door where a bartender (hired by Lessee) will distribute alcohol for the 

duration of the event. Said bartender must be 21 years of age or older and 

must possess any and all then applicable licensing pursuant to local, state, 

and federal law. 

b. An event may contract with a licensed caterer for said event to set up cash 

bar or distribute alcohol. A licensed caterer is one that has purchased the 

requisite host liquor liability insurance, a City of Daphne business license, 

and attained all requisite alcohol licensing. 

G. Should an event have alcohol, host liquor liability insurance in a minimum amount of 

$1,000,000.00 must be purchased. All insurance certificates and proof of requisite licensing must 

be on file at least 14 days prior to the event. 

 

H.  A list of bartenders and/or caterers possessing additional voluntary certifications(s), 

provided through alcoholic beverage distributors for the serving of alcoholic beverages, may be 

provided by the Bayfront Pavilion Director upon request. 

 

SECTION XXII:  SMOKING  

 

ALL CITY OF DAPHNE BUILDINGS ARE SMOKE FREE 20 feet from any and all 

entrances. There will be no smoking in the Bayfront Pavilion. A fine of three hundred dollars 

($300.00) shall be imposed per occurrence by the City of Daphne. A three hundred dollar ($300.00) 

cleaning fine shall be imposed on the Lessee if smoking has occurred in the Bayfront Pavilion.  No 

smoking on the deck, all fire must be 30 feet from the building.  

 

  

SECTION XXIII:  PETS  126



 

 

 

No pets allowed inside the facility other than those for the express use by disabled persons, or 

by permission of the Bayfront Pavilion Director.  

 

SECTION XXIV:  BUILDING ACCESS  

 

The City will provide reasonable access according to the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

 

 

SECTION XXV:  THEFT  

 

The City of Daphne is not responsible for theft of property on the grounds of the Daphne 

Bayfront Pavilion, in automobiles, in the facility or any other structure on the property.  

 

SECTION XXVI:  HEAVY METAL/RAP/ALTERNATIVE CONCERTS  

 

A. The City of Daphne has set forth the following guidelines to establish rules and regulations 

for Heavy Metal, Rap, and Alternative concerts in effort to provide a safe and enjoyable concert 

experience for attendees.  

 

B. The Daphne City Council must approve all heavy metal, rap, and alternative concerts prior 

to the concert booking. The Buildings and Property Committee will determine if a concert is 

Alternative. The following are necessary:  

 

1. Names of all artists to appear must be provided to the Bayfront Pavilion Director.  

 

2. Date of the event and ticket information must be provided to the Bayfront Pavilion Director.  

3. A letter stating that approved security and fire arrangements have been made for the concert 

from the Daphne Police Department and Daphne Fire Department must be presented to the 

Bayfront Pavilion Director.  All special effects must be approved by the Fire Marshal and a 

letter stating this information must be provided to the Director. 

 

4. A letter of approval must be obtained from the Bayfront Pavilion Director and presented to 

the Buildings and Property Committee along with the above listed documentation. The 

Buildings and Property Committee will make recommendation to the full City Council. The 

Bayfront Pavilion Director shall provide the Council's approval or disapproval to the proposed 

Lessee.  

 

5. A security bond or deposit may be required for potential damages. If required, the bond or 

deposit must be presented to the Director no later than thirty (30) days prior to the event.  

 

6. A five hundred-dollar cleaning fee may be required.  

 

7. The promoter must obtain a public liability and property damage policy in an amount not less 

than $1,000,000.00.  The policy must be written by an insurance company licensed to do 

business in the State of Alabama and having a minimum rating of A- in the current issue of the 

A. M. Best Manual. The policy must name the City of Daphne and the Bayfront Park Pavilion 

as additional insured. This certificate must be presented to the Director at least thirty (30) days 

prior to the scheduled concert.  
127



 

 

 

8. If required by the State of Alabama, promoter must obtain Liquor Liability Insurance in an 

amount not less than $1,000,000 and list the City of Daphne, Bayfront Pavilion as additional 

insured on the policy. Proof of this policy must be presented to the sales office not less than one 

week prior of the event.  

 

9. House lights are not allowed to go dark. A minimum of 20% of house lights must be on at all 

times.  

 

10. An addendum may be required to the contract if any of the performing acts have a history 

of performing songs or making statements that are considered by the Daphne City Council to 

incite or provoke violence by the audience.  

 

11. Other rules and regulations as deemed necessary by the Director, Buildings and Property 

Committee, or Daphne City Council may apply.  

 

SECTION XXVII:  SOUND EQUIPMENT  

 

A. The Lessor shall not be responsible for any damage or injury that may occur from the result 

of sound, lighting, or electrical equipment being utilized by the Lessee, Lessee's agent, employees, or 

guest from any cause whatsoever, prior, during, or subsequent to the period covered by the lease and 

the said Lessee will release said Lessor from, and agrees to indemnify it against any and all claims for 

such Joss, damage, or injury.  

 

B. Any damage to the City of Daphne, Bayfront Pavilion sound, lighting, or electrical 

equipment shall be at the expense of the Lessee when Lessee utilizes said equipment or services. 

Bayfront Park personnel, The City of Daphne, Daphne Police Department, or any authorized City 

Employee can request that the Lessee, or their agents, desist from utilizing City Property at any time.  

 

C. The Bayfront Pavilion must be notified of all sound requirements at least fourteen (14) days 

prior to the event.  

 

D. The City of Daphne shall provide the following fee waivers with no others to be considered 

in Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first serve basis.  

 

SECTION XXVIII:   FEE WAIVERS  

 

A. The City of Daphne shall provide the fol1owing fee waivers with no others to be considered 

in Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first serve basis.  

 

1. BAYFRONT PAVILION REDUCED RATE PROGRAM MONDAY, TUESDAY & 

WEDNESDAY  

 

(a) This program will apply to all with the following exceptions. This program excludes 

paid concerts, all for profit events, Mardi Gras balls/meetings and fund raising 

events. These events will pay full fare. AU rental items remain the same. The 

reduced rate will consist of half rate for the base rental fee. The cleaning fee will 

remain the same. The booking includes four (4) hours of usage and must be between 

the hours of 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Any usage over four (4) hours and any hours used 

after 5:00 p.m. will be charged an additional $15.00 per hour. If requested, the City 

of Daphne, Bayfront Pavilion shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. Any Monday, 128



 

 

Tuesday, or Wednesday that is a holiday or city holiday will be charged all regular 

holiday rates. All bookings remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is 

not to be used for continued bookings. The City of Daphne reserves the right to deny 

any group or organization usage of these provisions.  

 

 

SECTION XXVIII:   FEE WAIVERS  

 

A. The City of Daphne shall provide the fol1owing fee waivers with no others to be considered 

in Committee meetings or City Council meetings. All bookings are on a first come first serve basis.  

 

1. BAYFRONT PAVILION REDUCED RATE PROGRAM MONDAY, TUESDAY & 

WEDNESDAY  

 

(a) This program will apply to all with the following exceptions. This program excludes 

paid concerts, all for profit events, Mardi Gras balls/meetings and fund raising events. 

These events will pay full fare. AU rental items remain the same. The reduced rate will 

consist of half rate for the base rental fee. The cleaning fee will remain the same. The 

booking includes four (4) hours of usage and must be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. - 

5:00 p.m. Any usage over four (4) hours and any hours used after 5:00 p.m. will be 

charged an additional $15.00 per hour. If requested, the City of Daphne, Bayfront 

Pavilion shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday 

that is a holiday or city holiday will be charged all regular holiday rates. All bookings 

remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is not to be used for continued 

bookings. The City of Daphne reserves the right to deny any group or organization 

usage of these provisions.  

 

2. BAYFRONT PAVILION REDUCED RATE PROGRAM (CIVIC GROUPS AND NOT 

FOR PROFITS -501-C3 MONDAY, TUESDAY & WEDNESDAY)  

 

(a) This program will apply to all civic groups that are not for profit and have a 501-C3 

status. Proof of this status is required. This program excludes paid concerts, all for profit 

events, and fund raising events. These events will pay full fare. All rental items remain 

the same. The reduced rate will consist of a waived base fee, full rate on cleaning fees, 

and a $15.00 per hour charge. Any Monday, Tuesday, or Wednesday booking that is a 

holiday or city holiday will be charged all .regular holiday rates. If requested, the City 

of Daphne, Daphne Bayfront Pavilion shall be listed as a Sponsor of the event. All 

bookings remain on a first come first serve basis. This program is not to be used for 

continued bookings. The City of Daphne reserves the right to deny any group, or 

organization usage of these provisions. All groups utilizing this reduced rate program 

must use the facility between 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. All groups that have not left the 

facility by 10:00 p.m. will be charged all regular rates.  

129



 

 

 

3.  CITY OF DAPHNE DEPARTMENTS FOR CONDUCTING CITY BUSINESS.  

 

(a) The City of Daphne encourages all City Departments to utilize the Bayfront 

Pavilion for your entire department booking needs. For tracking purposes all City 

departments must estimate their projected bookings for the Bayfront Pavilion and 

budget all fees, rental items, cleaning fees, and per hour charges needed at regular 

rates for their facility functions. The department may submit in writing to the 

Director a request to wave base rental fees only. The decision will be based on the 

criteria for event, time of day and year and day of week.  The approval of this 

request will be at the discretion of the Director and Mayor.  Invoices for usage will 

be routed from the Bayfront Pavilion to the Finance Department for journal entry 

after each event. The Finance Department will notify the Bayfront Pavilion sales 

office when the journal entry is complete to make report to the Buildings and 

Property Committee at the monthly meeting.  

4. CITY EMPLOYEES FOR PERSONAL BUSINESS 

(a)  Current and in good standing City of Daphne employees will be entitled to a 

20% discount off of base rental rates only for events that the employee is hosting.  

This discount is not applicable for family or friends, only the employee him/herself.  

All rules, guidelines and all other fees of this ordinance apply.  The employee must 

make a request in writing which should include type of event, day and time.  The 

approval of this request will be at the discretion of the Director and/or Mayor.  

Should for any reason the employee violate the guidelines mentioned above, said 

employee will not be entitled to this benefit in the future and will be responsible for 

full base rental rate which will be deducted from damage fee or billed with 

additional damage fee. 

 

SECTION XXIX:  BOOKING POLICY - ALL OTHER GROUPS  

 

If an organization or group desires to book the same date continually, year after year, such 

organizations must submit a letter to the Director making such request listing the exact dates and 

years that the organization is requesting and all facility needs. All base fees must be paid in 

advance for the first two consecutive years. At the end of the second year a new request must be 

made in writing and delivered to the sales department of the Bayfront Pavilion no later than 7 days 

after the second year event for the following two years, along with the fees for the next two years. 

Future bookings will also be secured using the same guidelines. All bookings are on a first come 

first serve basis.  

 

SECTION XXX: PENALTY  

 

A. Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be punished 

by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), or by 

imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6) months, or both, at the discretion of the Municipal 

Judge.  

 

B. This Ordinance shall also be subject to enforcement by the issuance of a summons and 

complaint. 

 130



 

 

 

SECTION XXXI:  REPEALER  

 

Ordinances Nos. 2004-21 and 2010-50 are hereby repealed in their entirety. All other City 

Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as they 

conflict, are hereby repealed.  

 

 

SECTION XXXII:  SEVERABILITY  
 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of the Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and independently of each other.  

 

 

SECTION XXXIII:   EFFECTIVE DATE  

 

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval and adoption by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this the 21
st
 day of February, 2011. 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Fred Small, 

        Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

 

131



 

 

 

 

132


	2014-59 - RES Property Donation AARON TO CITY - PARK DR  MOORE LANE
	Council Packet
	Council Minutes
	Proclamation - Kenny Hanak
	Public Safety Minutes
	Backup to Public Safety Minutes
	IDB Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	MEMO FOR FEMA AGMT -  Put Before Agmt - EnCompass360 Memo 11-25-2014
	FEMA AGMT - EnCompass360 - 2014 Consultng and HMGP Pre-Award Professional Services Agreement for City of Daphne
	2014-57 - RES - AA-RESOLIST-GOVDEALS COM-2
	Backup to 2014-57 - ORD -  REDLINE - Revision to Civic Center Ordinance
	2014-58 -  RES - Signal Warrant Study - Bellaton Ave and SR181
	Backup to 2014-59 - RES - Park Drive Appraisals
	2014-53 - ORD - Civic Center PT Event Assistant
	2014-54 - ORD - Traffic Signal Study - ITS - 20% Match 
	2014-55 - ORD - ADECA Grant-Rec Trails-Accept VP Park Preserve Enhancement-ORDINANCE-2014
	2014-56 - ORD - Marino Property (D'Olive Creek) Appraisal   Fees
	2014-57 - ORD - Revision to Civic Center Ordinance
	2014-57 - RES - AA-RESOLIST-GOVDEALS COM-2
	Backup to 2014-57 - ORD -  REDLINE - Revision to Civic Center Ordinance
	2014-58 -  ORD - Bayfront Rules and Regulations
	Backup to 2014-58 - ORD - REDLINE - Revision Bay Front Park Ordinance (2)




